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2013 Severn Trent group hlghlights

+ Detivering on dividend policy -
8.2% growthvs. 2011/12.

« Total shareholder retum in the current
regulatory period (AMP5)* - 72%.

» Creating long term value through
efficient investment - £555 mition
invested this year.

« Continued growth in RCV? from
£7,089 mitlion to £7,364 million
(+3.9%).

» Detivered significant operational
improvernents and higher levels
of customer service

- Improved or stable performance on

13 out of 14 Ofwat KPIs year on yegr.

- Customer satisfaction (SIM score)
improving.
« Effidency improverments at
Severn Trent Water helping to offset
additional infrastructure investrments.

« Non-regulated business delivered
revenue growth year on year,

« Well prepared for next price review.
* Full year dividend for 2013/14 set to
be 80.40 pence, up 6%, in line with

current RPI+3% growth policy.
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What we do

Our business

We provide clean water and waste water services
in the UK and internationally, principally through
our regulated and non-requlated businesses -
Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services.

Regulated - Severn Trent Water

One of the largest of the 10 requlated water

and sewerage companies in England and Wales.
We provide high quadlity services to more than
4.2 million households and businesses in the
Midlands and mid-Wales.

More on pages 12-23

Non-regulated - Severn Trent Services

One of the world’s leading commercial suppliers
of water and waste water treatment services
and products, with customers in the UK,

the Americas, Europe, Middle East and Asia.

More on poges 24-32

Find out mone on our corporote website: www severmtrent.com
Severn Trert Water website: www.stwater.co.uk

Severn Trert Services website: www.severntrentsesvices. conm
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The Severn
Trent World

2012/13 has been a year of continued focus and
evolution for Severn Trent. We fundamentally
believe in the positive impact of increasing
competition in our industry and the opportunities
it will bring. The boundary between regulated and
non-regulated activities in the UK is changing and
we are adapting our business to take full
advantage of the changes ahead, while
continuing to focus on ensuring our core activities
maintain quality and deliver excellent customer
service and value.

£5.6m

Water trading

Wehaveseen

amnd

water tmdmg in the UK with

Severn Trent being

geographcally
trade water wi

'Y

Y
ioned to
our neighbours.

£38m

: We’roe wvested £38 mﬂﬁ?:e
We spent £5 6 million across i Oloucestershire since t
2007 floods. The Mythe water
5?“‘5’“ Trent on the development tregtrnent works has new flood
of renewables such as large scole «  defences and prpelnes to provide
Tecuce ocstelancs onong et SpPes o 16000
etectnaty, & also reduces our new sewer!:svglmgvﬂm o
carbon ermussions. tanks to prevent networks being
T overwhetmed by heavy rain.
2 l More on page 19
) Image ramoved
2012 recorded the second
hughest annual rainfall in
England since 1910, We collect
water from reservorrs, nvers and
underground boreholes across ¢
our region. '
Severn Trent
Services '
In October 2012 we formed a
business with Costainto offer
largfe mutt-site G\?mter usc‘e;)rsd a
single supplier of water a effectrve procurement
waste water services. Itams to zhmrjo;?:itnldeﬁvay e
delver efficency improvements, generated £150 milbon of
save costs, manage legol effigency savings. We ore
cornpliance and risk and deliver reinvestng this to mprove the
water efficency solutions performance of our network and
More on page 25 treatrnent assets to provide




Regulatory
reform

We have continued to play an
actve m\ dscussions about
the evo regu and
framework for the water
industry Mony of the ideas
we have proposed m Dwuf
Changing Course senes
publicgtions have now been

adopted by policy makers,

= 7000

We have cormned out research
with more than 7,000 household
and business customers obout
the future of our senvices.

| 11 years

89p

The average aost to our customer
per day for combined servicesis

g&g\eﬂn:: Our customers benefit

lowest average :

combined billsn Engl]ﬁgnd Severn Trert DeNorawas

ond Wales, : established in 2002 to provide
i seawater and brine onstte

* o typachlonte generation
systems for maring, offshore

. water and waste water
: treatment applications.
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5%

£555m  EEEET gOQ)

nd through our operaton and

Copltal Spe umughi_u-:'nome contract with the We opemte more than

Over the last fincriciel year UK Mirsstry of Defence we have 900 rruncpal water and

we have invested £555 million cut the lealoge at ther sites waste water treatment facilties
into our network and above to an all time low., across the US and

ground assets.
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Chairman’s statement

Severn Trent.’
Andrew Duff, Chairmnan

Our focus on water and waste water services has
agon delvered benefits for our customers and good
retumns for our shareholders. This year Sevem Trent
Water customers sow the first positive mpact of
some of the extra £150 milhon of Investrment in

our water and waoste water networks, which we
announced in May 2012.

In addrbon, we conbinue to leveroge our skills

in water and waste water services in aur
non-requlated business Seven Trent Services.

This year we completed the sole of aur analytical
senvices and metering operations in order to foaus
on growth in the emerging markets for commenal
and industnal users in the UK, in the US and our
global water punfication products business.

‘We continue to set ourselves high
standards in everything we do and
the continuous improvement that
we see owes much to the hard work
and commitment of our team at

Image removed

Strong performance at Severn Trent Water
In this third year of our current 2010-2015
business plan, [ am pleased to report further
progress in the opertional performance and
customer service delvered by our regutated
business, Severn Trent Water,

Our customers contine to benafit from high quality
dninking water as well as the lowest averoge bills for
waoter and sewwerage combned in England ond
Wales Customer service standards improved

year on year and complaint levels have fallen for
the last two years.

Dunng the early part of the year when we
experienced drought in the Midlands, we carefudly
managed our waterresources, so that we avorded
the need for ahoseppe ban. Sevem Trent Woter 15
the only company targeting significont leakage
reductions over this five year regulatory penod
and in 2012/13, we cut leakage to a 20 year low,
beating our target m the process.

Drought over the early part of the year was followed
by extended ranfall dunng the rest of the year and
again, our teams performed well 1o help protect
asstomers from flooding Despite the rainfall,

we achieved record levels of cormpliance at

waste water tregtment works and a reduction

in pailution inadents.




Overview Chairman's statement

The success of Severn Trent Water reflects the
commitrent of everyone i our business to
continuous improverment and our drive towards
higher standards of service, efficency and
operatonal performance. P'm porticularly proud that
the lost year was our safest ever I am personally
committed to pushing our safety standards even
higher so that everybody remains healthy and safe
when they are at work.

Good financial performance

In 2012113, our financial perforrnance was as
expected. Total group revenus increased by 3 4% to
£1,832 million, whilst undertying group profit before
tox deaecsed 3 3%to £266 3 millon This resulted
in adjusted basic eamings per share of 98.9 pence,
up1l 2%

Our policy during this current five year period to
March 2015 is to increase our dnvidend each year
by 3% more than the retail pnce ndex. The board
therefore proposes a final dividend of 45 51 pence,
ta be pard on 26 July 2013 This will gve o total
dividerd for the year of 75 85 pence, anincrease
of 8 2%

During the year we were pleased to retum a further
£150 million to shareholders, through the special
divdend of 63 pence per share in Juty 2012 ond
we glso announced the investrment of an extra
£150 million i our woter and waste water network
for the benefit of our customers. This reflects our
ability to create value from the business plan
approved by our regulator to the benefit of both
customers and shareholders.

Customers and shareholders have benefited from
our consistent delivery over recent years. Since the
start of the current cyde on 1 Apnl 2010, Severn
Trent's total shareholder retum including the special
distribution has been 71.71%, well ahead of the

25 57% retum from the FTSE 100 and the 61.4%
achieved by the utilibes sector os o whole,

Supporting our local economies

On other mportant matters, we'ne very mindfid of
the economic, environmental and soaal benefits we
brng to the region i which we operate Where we
con, we aim to make ¢ posibve difference,

1n Sevem Trertt Woter, we directly ernploy over
5,500 people and many more through our controct
portners and supply chains. With the UK economy
struggling to grow, mvestment by water comparies
has a partiautarly signficant role. Irvesting in
infrastructure s one of the fastest ways to boost
econormic actvity and water companies use private
copital, rather than drawang on public funds which
could be usefully employed elsewhere, Dunng the
year, we invested £555 million into our network,
rnaking o substarial contnbuhon to jobs and the
local economy.
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‘Customers and shareholders
have benefited from our
consistent delivery over
recent years.'

We also help to create the skills thot we, the
econamy and our region need Severn Trent Water
currently has more than 80 apprentices in water,
waste water and customer service roles. The calibre
of young people we attracted for our apprenticeship
programme has been particularly high, showing the
attroctions of our traning and the prospect of a
long term career in awvital industry.

Building for growth in non-regulated markets
Sevam Trent Services, our man non-regulated
business, hos sharpened the focus of its actmvties on
water punfication products and operating services,
having disposed of its analytical services ond
metenng operations.

Its undertying performonce in the year was
encouraging Despite challenging conditions in its
markets, it hos won contracts and seen growthiin
sales of water punfication products in emerging
markets. After a period of consolidation, the
continuing businesses of Severn Trent Services are
agamn making progress

Shaping the future of our industry

The last 12 months have seen much discussion
about the direction of regulotion in the water
industry, Severn Trent conthinues to play aleading
role in shaping the course of regulation and intends
to continue to do so. As a progressive busmess, we
have advocated changes which wil help the country
make the best use of fts water resources, improve
outcomes for customers and provide surtoble
retums for investors,

We're therefore supportive of the proposed direction
of trovel for reguiabon and of the Water Bill, as ¢t
passes through Parbarment. In partiadar, we're
positrve about the prospects for water troding and
the opportunities ¢ bnngs for greater resitence and
keeping customers’ costs down.
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The corming year wil see the submission of our
fina! business plans for the next regulatory pencd
2015-2020, following an extensive period of
corsultation with customers, stakeholders and
requlators, I would like to recognise the role of the
independent Water Forurn, charred by Dame Yve
Buckland, in providing a heglthy chollenge oround
our plans as they have come together.

As g respansible companty, our cim s to produce
a goad plan, based on meaningful consuttation,
which finds the right batance between making
improverments where custormers volue them the
rmost, keeping bills offordable and providing a forr
return to our investors,

Faced with competing pressures to momntain
investment and dnve up standards, whilst keeping
bills low, it 15 essential that our sector hos continued
access to future financing and at a reasoniable cost.
At Sevem Trent, we believe that a sustainable

long term approach to financing should be

taken by the industry and that reguiabion must
therefore ottract and mcentivise equity finance
Excessive rebance on leveroge characterises much
of our sector today

mage removed

Summary

In summary, good performance continues

to underpin confidence that we can create
vatue through the remander of the curment
regulatory penod.

We have dedivered further improvernents n
operabonal performance and custormer service
at Severn Trent Water, In Severn Trent Services
we retumned to underying growth We met our
financial expectations and generated good
retums for our sharehelders,

This year's results owe a great deal to the
commitment, excellence and hard work of

our people. We continue to set ourselves high
standards in everything we do and 1 would ke
to thank management and stoff for putting us
i a strong position for future success.

Finally, ] would like to use this opportunity to

note rmy thanks to our Chief Executive, Tony Wray,
who has informed the board of his intention to retire
from Sevem Trent in Spring 2014

With a strong executive team in place the timmng

of his decision prowades us with the continuity of
leadership and the necessary time to search for
and identify his successor over the coming months.

Sigrahurs rernoved

Andrew Duff
Chammnan




Chnef Executive’s review

‘The world is changmg for water

companies and Severn Trent leads

the way in shaping that change.

We are continually improving our
performance, improving our customer

service and positioning the
group for sustainable growth.’

Tony Wray, Chief Executive

) S"eewﬁh'nntummsevemumtccrmommter )

Delivering the future of water

The UK water industry faces significant challenges.
We need to deal with the real impact of climate
change and the increasing frequency of water
shortages and flooding, We need to access and use

water ond environmentat resources more efficiently.

We need to keep improving customer service and
austorer choice whilst keeping our bills affordable
for our customers. We need to maintan the
significant imvestments thot are required to ensure
that our networks can delver the essenbial water
and waste water services. And, whilst keeping bitls
as low as we can for our customers, we need to
generote sustainable retums for our investors.
Proposals from the UK Government and Ofwat will
help us respond to these challenges. The changes
are evolubonary, but together they add upto the
largest shift in the industry’s nules since privatisation.
The Water Bill will allow more competition for
non-household austomers, greater ‘upstrear?
cormpetiion - woter trading in particutar - and
inarease the scope for mergers and ocquisitions,
which should eventually lead to 0 more efficent
ndustry structure.
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Irmage Removed

Ofwat 15 considenng important changes to the way
it regulates, <s it prepares for the next pnce review
in 2014 (PR14) Notoble differences from the
current regime include separote controls for the
wholesale part of the buginass - the networks and
trectrment plonts - and the retail elerment, which
manages customer relationships. This will increase
focus on delvering the best custorer service at
lowest cost, and aeste more choice for
non-household customers.

There will be greater emphasis on achieving
cbjectives that companies set in consuttation with
their customers, helping thern to innovate and
benefit oll stakeholders. Companies will be able to
choose larger incentves for outperformance, at the
sk of bigger pendities f they fall short. Also our
customers ond other stakeholders now have g
much bigger role in mfluencing our next five year
plan, Further detalls of our stokeholder engagernent
and the role of the Water Forum are provided on
pages 18 and 20

Sevem Trent welcomes these changes. We've been
active m the debote about the future of water and
we're pleased that the changes are aligned with our
own proposals. That's allowed us to prepare for
these changes, through a strategy that aeates
opportuniies to leverage our core skills,
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Overview Chief Executive’s review
Our strategy
Sustainable
Strategy gim o Vanbghts2013
Delivering vatue for our customers * Our regulated business met ts
and investors. target, reduced ntenmuptions to
and protected more homes from
sewer flooding.

* We maintained the lowest average bills for
water and sewage combined in England
and Wales.

» Our non-regulated busness delvered
top ne growth, focused ts operations
and 1s well postioned for the future

« We contire.ted to grow our divdend.

+ Our Foaus an Water strateqy
vatue for money for our customers and
long term sustanable growth for our
Ivestors.

Responsible leadership, protecting the « We achieved our best ever health and
environment, thinking long term and safety performance.

setting high standards in everything - We continued to invest in our sector
we do. leading renewable enengy operation.

Sustainable financing, ensunng we have
o strong and flexible balance sheet.

Growth

Stotegyaim .
Growing Severn Trent Water in the UK
through investrment in our networks
and services.

= We made further progress with our
catchrment management programme

+ We contimued to nfluence the regulatory

Positioning Sevemn Trent to copitalise
on opportunities in a changing
regulatory framework.

Deploying Sevem Trent Services business
mnto new markets.

Keymeasures = .

441 MI/Id 419

Leckoge megalitres Customer written

per day compiaints per 1,000

(2012 464) properties (STW)
(2012 4£8)

+ 0.2 Lost tme ngdents per 100,000 hrs
worked (2012 0.3).
« We generote just under a quarter of the
electnaty needed by our regulated
business.
+ We support the drection of the Water Bill, ,
whichts expected to become law later )

debate about the future of our industry, ths year.
through a senes of publiogtions,
“Weemanedprudenty fironcedond—~ £7314 I BQ 4,04
mohtolnedwrstmng{:reditmmg £731-2m 58-4 /0
» We successfully refinanced £500 million Coshgeneratedfrom  Net Debt/RCV Gearng
of our debt and ssued our first retalbond ~ operabors (2012 56.0%)
drawing £75 million from new mvestors. {2012 £7259m)
Highlights 2013 - __ Keymeosures ..
* We continued o moke good progress o)
with our preparations for PR14 3-9 /0
« We invested £555 millon in our ROV growth
infrastructure (2012 4.0%)
* We increased our requiatory capital
volue by £275 milbon.
+We cregted o new venture with HrstMch,ﬂTeﬁstbmnssmstmﬁr
Costain to comnpete for large user to switch water supplier.
business customers, - Input lessons from the first mutt-stte,
mutt-national switch mto
Regulatory bodies.
- We strengthened Severn Trent De Nora T T
%y‘!gcqunéngcenmn product (ines from £1 134m
nne Engineers Corp, giving usan Water Puficobion tu
opportunity for future growth in Japan. (2012, £98m) vt
~Wernvestedinfurther developng [ 7. £ v I
wm?undmmdmgm f£4.6m
es.

New commeraal orders




A strateqy to deliver the future of water

Our ‘Focus on Water strategy, with the goal of
creating sustainoble growth through our focus on
water and waste water servces inthe UK and key
intemnabonal markets, drives everything that we do.
This strategy recognises that the boundary between
our regulated and non-regulated activibies i moving
and that in future, we will generate retums from a
broader range of operations ocross the regulated
ond non-requlated areas. As one of the UK’s biggest
water and waste water companies, Severn Trent i
well posthioned 1o succeed.

Our focus on sustainable growth means that we
balance the needs of our customers, our people,

the emvironment and investors Actueving this
balance leads direcily to good financiol performance
ond delivers value for our customers and investors
today and in the longer term

We recognise that economic conditions are tough
and that our custormers have seen ther ncomes
squeezed. While pnces will inevitably nse because of
the ongoing need for investment, we're determmed
to keep them as low as we con and deliver value for
money This means further improving our service,
protecting customers from the effects of drought
ond floods and providng them with water that's
good to dnnk and atways available,

Protecting the environment is also key because we
and our customers depend on it to provide the
resources we need.

Efficient investment allows us to deliver sustainable
retumns for our shareholders. Our strategy s to
remain focused on water and woste water services.

Our people are central to our future. We work hard
to make sure they have the skills and tools they
need, and are motivated to contmually Improve our
service to custormers.

With significarit cheriges in the sector approaching,
we keep our strateqy under constant remew This
indudes having open ond constructive relationshups
with key stakeholders, such as customer
representatives, our economic and environmental
regulators and our investors, so we understand what
they expect from us. We then formally review our
stroteqy each year, involving both the Executive
Commuttee and the board, so i remams relevont,
batanced and suffidentty forword looking.

‘Our focus on sustainable
growth means that we
balance the needs of our
customers, our people, the
environment and investors.’

0S

Business perfermance review

The group delivered o good financial performance
dunng the year, despite challenging condrtions in
some markets, This underpins our dmdend prorrese,
which 5 to grow our dividend by 3% more than the
retail pnce mdex upto 2014/15.

We also mantamed our financial stability, by
continuing to refinance our existing debt ond issuing
new debt to support our investment progromme
Thus included our first ever retail bond, which raised
£75 mullion.

Reguiated - focused on continuous improvement
Our customers berefited for the fourth year running
from the lowest average bills for water and
sewerage combined in England and Woles, Whilst
prices iIncreased they were below the industry
average. We continued to supply customers with
excellent dnnking woter and, despite the drought

at the stort of the year, we once agam avoided a
hosepipe ban.

Our UK regulated business, Severn Trent Water,
continued to mnprove its operational and
envirenmental performance. These mprovernents,
along with effective procurement and capitol
delivery, help us to be more efficent, In this
Regulatory Period we are re-investing £150 milon
of our effioency gains into our plant and networks
to smprove services for our customers furthey

This investment contributed to our ongoing
performance improvernent. We cut leckage to g

20 year low an beat our target. Undertying levels
of intemuptions to supply also fell, with our Ofwat
rmeasure improving, although a handfl of burst
mains which affected numerous customers meant
that we didrt meet our intemal target. We further
reduced pollution inadents, while cormpliance at our
waste water treatment works readched a new record
high, contributing to mproving river water quality.
During the year, we delvered the outputs that
Ofwat required fromus. We were pleased to see
that recent rvestrnent in the flood defences ot

the Mythe Water Treatmert Works proved their
woarth as the plant withstood exceptionally heavy
mains and ficoding. We also reduced the number

of homes at nsk of sewer flooding and there are
now fewer propertes on the ‘at-nsk’ reqgister than
ever before

In previous years, we've identified custorner service
as an areo where we would like 10 improve. OQur
customer-expenence programme s changmng the
way we think about how we mteract with our
customers, which has led to pleasing improvernents
N OUF CUStoMer senvice scores, as measured by
Ofwat’s Service Incentwe Mechanism (SIM)
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Overview Chief Executive’s review

This contributed to a customer satsfaction level of
4.36 out of 5 n our SIM quantitative survey, as well
os falling levels of complants However, we know we
have much further 1o go e we are not complacent.
This indudes resciving more of our customers’ issues
to their satisfaction on first point of contact and
cornnuing to irvest inour pecple, to help thern form
a better appreciation of our austomers’ needs and
concerns when they have to contact us.

Our combined SIM score for 2012/13 was 781
agamst 69 9n 2011/12. This represents 0 12%
year on year improverment and we're the most
mproved water and waste water company

Non-reguloted - driving new markets n

the UK and overseas

We improved our operational and finandal
performance in our non-regulated busmess

Like for lke revenue in Severn Trent Services grew
by 5 3% and we mantained underlying profits
after rvesting further in business development.

We strengthened our Severn Trent De Nora busmess
by acquinng some electrochlonnation technologies
from Chlonne Engineers Corp for £1.3 million This
gves Sevemn Trent De Nord an opportunity for future
growthin Japan Our Operating Services business
won severd new contracts in the US, induding

21 from SouthWest Water Compary as they exted
contract cperations n the Texas Muniapal Utility
Distnict We recently agreed to acquire serace
contracts with 10 municipdlities and three prvate
entities in California which will provide us with a base
for growth in the Westemn US. We reargarised our
products business to create a regional structure,
which will bring it doser to its customers and reduce
costs by sourang and assernbling more locally

We also sharpened our focus by disposing of the
metering and analytical services businesses.
Bisposal of our analytical senvices business also
satisfied an undertaking made to Ofwat who

have now dosed the section 26 investigationinto
this market.

In the UK, we're driving forward retal compettion
with the UK’s first retait switch when we signed
major dairy First Milk as a customer, induding sites
n England, Scotland and Wales.

We also continue to leverage our secter leading
position in renewable and green energy For the
second successive year, we generated around one
quarter of the electriaty needed by our UK regulcted
businesses. We lead the UK in anaerobic digestion
technology and are developing plans to expand into
the emerging UK opportunity from food waste
digestion. Dunng the year, we also extended our
crop digestion plant n Nottinghamshire and started
construchion of the first of three large wind turbnes.

People and culture

The perforrnance we've delivered this year shows
the quality of our people and ther desire todo an
excellent job. [ would like to thank thern for
everything they hove done.

We have tatented and committed people throughout
the group Together, they have a wide breadth of
expertise, from hydrologists and engineers to
custorner service experts and technologists.

They apply these skills to our commion msston,
delivenng high standards and the lowest possible
charges for customers, with great pecple.

We've created a culture of continuous improvement
that sustamns our desire to do better. This cutture is
key. While we have a sophisticated set of tools which
combine behavioural scierice and lean management
t0 help us Improve the way we work, it's the culture,
values and atttude of our people that make those
tools effective and drve us forward, every day.

Looking forward

Severn Trent 15 well positioned as the UK ndustry
enters the next phase of development. We have
accepted Ofwat’s proposed licence modifications
and ore aligned to the agenda for reguiatory reform
and the Water Bil, both of which we continue to
help shape,

Qur preparations for PR14 are progressing well
Customers are at the heart of our planning, through
the widespread engogement we've already
conducted and through our customer challenge
panel, the Water Forum. Further details are provided
on pages 18 and 20

Reguiatory and poliical support for water troding s
growing and carnpanses are likely to be incentivised
to trade in the future Sevem Trent has an ongoing
diglogue with nesghbounng companies and we are
well placed to benefit from more effective use of the
country’s water resources.

Lookng further aheod, companes will have to
ensure they'na sustanably financed. The utilibes
sactor in the UK will need to find billions of pounds
for mvestrment and it sn't certain that all of ths can
be done through debt. Equity 15 therefore required to
play a part, which means companies will hove to be
able to earn an appropnate retun to attroct that
funding We publshed im portant discussion papers
on this subject during the year

In surnmary, Severn Trent s operoting from a great
base. We have the nght people doing the nght things
and delivering the nght cutcomes. Our markets
around the world need dean water and waste water
services, and we hove the nght focus to prosper.

Signatune removed

Tory Wray
Cheef Executive




Today...
We're getting it right
first time for customers

We've niroduced new ways. of workng so we fix 80% of
bursts on customers’ propertes, that are eligible under our
free repar scherne, after one call to us and with one visit
We put ourselves in our customers’ shoes to understond ther
expenence We mapped out our processes from when our
custormer first contacts us to resalving the job and we
revewed how we kept our custorners Informed. We also
stood 1 our ernployees’ shoes and looked ot the tranng
we provided and the systerns they used.
Theresuitlsoredalgnedmnlrgpmgmmmfomur
teamns, improved collaboration between field and cofl centre
oolieogues and a better qustomer experience of dealing with
Severn Trent.

tmage rermoverd

Tomorrow...

We continue to
invest in excellent
customer service

We wark hord to provide our customers with ¢ serice
expenence that 1s consistently reassunng and reliable,
whilst doing whatever we can to personolise the way
mwhmwedeulmmeuchnd'mdualcustnrmrqu

Image removed
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Reguloted

Severn Trent Water

Severn Trent Water aims to be the best water and waste
water company in the UK, by providing the highest standards
and lowest possible charges, through great people.

Seeaxﬁlrn'lt’swhutwedu’atwww.saerntmntmnvwrntwedo

Our long term objectives..

Over the last yeor, we have consulted widety with
our stakeholders and custorners about mvestrment
priorities for the medium and longer term.

Based on that consultatian, we have set out ten
Iong term otyechves

1. Wewill pro\nde water that ss goad to dnnk

2. Wewill ensure water 1s always sthere
when you need it

. We wll safely take your waste water away

3

4. Wewil pr(;\nde excellent custorner service
5. ‘Wewill have the lowest possxble charges
6 Wewilll help you lf you struggle

7. Wewil protect our woter envmonment

8. Wewil pratect the wider environmentt

9. Wewill make posrtlve difference in
the communlty

10. We w1l ﬁnunce our business sustmnably

We measure our pen‘bnnunce against 16 key
performance indicators (KP1s} Details of our KPIs
can be found on page 139.

Where we operate

Our region stretches agoss the heart of the UK
We serve mare than 4.2 million households

and businesses, from the Bnstol Channel to the
Humber, and from mid-Wales to the East Midlands.

Image removed

~delivered through four focus areas

We implerment our strategy and plans by focusing
on four key areas our customers, people, process
and fimance, We am to delwver the highest starxdards
and lowest charges to our customers, througha
hughty skalled and commutted workforce

Customers

Our household customers have the lowest overage
combmed water and sewerage bills in England and
Wales. Delivenng customer satisfoction also requires
us to provide water that's good to dnink and always
avatable, and 1o take away waste water, to reflect
customers’ pnorities in our plans, to communicate
deorly, and to keep our promises and put things
nght ifthey go wrong.

More on aistomers on poge 17

People

Our people are the comerstone of our success.
We strive to recrurt, develop and retain the best
people, provide them with great workplaces and
maintain a strong culture of safety, personal
respom‘bﬁlty and oontmuous |mprovement.

Moreonpeopleonpogezo

Process

Our drve to work safer, better and faster s the
foundation of our approach to continuous
improvemnent. Making sure we have the right
processes and systems is fundamental to achieving
opemtloncl emellence.

More on pmcesonpageZl

Finance

The higher our standards, the more effectively and
efficiently we work Thes helps us to keep our costs
low and generate progressive, sustainoble retums
which eam the trust of and reword for our investors.
We look to finance the company in an efficent,
sustainable way and maintan an mvestment grade
Credit rating.

More on finance on page 23

Image
removed

Wiste water
gollected per day

wlfbn

tmage
removed

5631

TUMCNE

£1,5110m

(20‘12. £1,457.5m)
Profit*

£500.9m

(2012 £5000m)
* Before mbesest, b ond
exosphonal Eerms.




Regulated Sevem Trent Water

Today...
We've developed

innovative and
sustainable solutions
We've invested in new innovative resulting in

technology
ncreased operatonal efficences ond significantly reduding
our carbon impacts.
At our Ashboume Sewoge Treatrnent Works wetve installed
the UK's first full scote HYBACS plant. The HYBACS units conbe
added onto actvated studge plants to cope with wareased
iads into our works. The HYBACS offers aperationa cost
savings of around 80% and operctional carbon sevings of
around 60%.

With Mictands besed firm Lantra, we have developed ¢ version
of the Blade Compressor™ specifically optirised for woste
water aeration The world's first full scele tnal of the
technology has been in opetation at our Worcester Sewoge
Treatrnent Works for the last six months. We spend around
£9 mithon a year on power for aerction In our activated sludge
plants and the design of the Blode Compressor™ con reduce
this electnoity consumption by around 20%.

Alongside Lontra we recentty wor Most Innovatve New
Technology of the Year’ ot the Water Industry Achievernent
Awards for this groundbrealang development.

Tomorrow...
Our research is leading
to new efficiencies

As we replace our old metal pipes with plastic ones, detecting
lecks becornes harder

We have worked with Loughborough Unversity to develop o
prototype leak detection systermn that will reduce the rme

takes to detect a leok on piostic ppes. Now under commeraal

developrment with Echologees it could sigrificantly improve
efficency, resuttng n o positve impoct for custormers end
the ermonment.
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Regulated Sevem Trent Water
Our business model

Water is essential to llfe Gnd to the The rol_e of Severn Trer!t !‘“{‘E‘?‘:_ L o
communities in which we live and work. Tttt —--

Severn Trent Water is intrinsically linked

to the life cycle of water. The customer

is at the heart of our continuous drive to removed npee

improve our operations and services 1 2

across collection, delivery and cleaning — Y >

of water. Wateris collected Water is cleaned

Sevem Trent Water 1s o regulated business. ction Our 126 water treatment

We work within five year planning cydes, with (\g bs“t;?e Erwongm t works clean raw water to the

custorner prices set by our economic regulator, Ageepﬂy for tha water we highest standards matang it

Ofwat, to allow us to fund our investment collencctyfrom reservos, rivers safe to dnnk.

programme and cover an efficient level of operoting and underground aquifers

costs. We are also SUbjECt to rEgU[thon by two QCross our region.

quality requlators - the Dnnking Water Inspectorate

and the Environment Agency {details of these

regulators are provided below).

Our prices and asset base are adjusted by RPE

nflation each year In certain circumstances we can Regulatory framework

ask for prices to be reviewed within the five year Naturalemvironment Drnkan - -
. . , . . g Water Inspectorate

period due to costs assoaated with ‘notified tems' - Environment Agency - Hedlth and Safety Executive

or ‘relevant changes of croumstance’. Customer bad . Safety ;
debt and the adoption of pnvate drams ond sewers Health and Brecutive
are nduded in these categones for the current

five year pened.

The company eams a retum on 1ts asset base. Risks
We can generate addonat returms if we outperform y
Ofwat’s assumptions by becoming mare efficent in {iwhere these are currently considered Pandipal Risks,

the delvery of our capital programme, managing further detals creprowded onpages 3°42) e e

our operational costs more effectvely, and by + Foilure of key assets may result - Fallure of key assets or processes

financing our business ot o lower cost. in darnage to property, injury to may result n a dedine n water

O cperatngeformonce s ond pegenimangorons il deptcinarasy
ncnmarked agal e sector by Ofwat. Risk Ref 6 and 8) reguiatory trmgets. {(Panapal Risk

At the next price review there is scope to eam el Ref 7)

addrhonal incame, or incur penatties, based on . Hmm procemesbzc‘:fgmms

may n people inpaed,

our performance. i

Regulstory famework . . . -

Consumer Councl for Water tmage

Consurner Council for Water s an ndependent body desgned 7 removed

1o protect the nghts of consumer s, www.cewater.org.uk

The Drinking Water T makes sure coMpanes N

supply water that is safe to drnk and complies with il Networks invested

nabonol and Europecn standards. www.dw.defra.gov.uk d intained

Environment Agency (EA) ana mdamtaine

The Emdranment Agency is @ public body set up to pratect and
mprove the envionment. www.emannment-0gency.gov uk
Heatth and Safety Executive

The Hedlth and Safety Executive s the enforang authonty on
heatth and safety law www.hse.gov uk

Natuml ervimnment

The econormic regulator for the weter ond sewercge industry.
Tt makes sure that water compares use customers’ money
efficently and effectvely and sets our poce Lrnuts.
www.ofwot.govak
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3 removed resnoved m removed

4 4 4
Clean water Customers Waste water Waste water
is distributed enjoy our services  is collected is treated
A 47,000 kmnetworkof pipes We bill 4 3 mitlion businesses Qur ¢ 92,000 km of sewers Waoste water is aarefully
and endosed starage ond households a year collect waste water from screened, filtered and treated
reservoirs bnng a continuous In retum, we provide a safe, homes and businesses, and inour 1,023 sewage treatment
supply of cleon water nght to reliable supply of water and surface water from outside works to rmeet stringent
our customers’ taps. the collection of waste water properbes and drains environmental stondards
24 hours a day, 365 days We pay the Ermronment
Q yeor. an annual consent
fee to return the now treated
water to the water systemn

-Ofwat  «Ofwat T L ofwat T 7 77 .Noturolenvionment |
« Drinking Water Inspectorate - Consumer Counal for Water - Environment Agency = Environment Agency
* Hedlth and Sofety Executve - Drinking Water Inspectorgte - Health and Safety Executive  + Health and Safety Executive
« The performance of our * Wemay be unable to sufficiently + Falture to ded with a.stomer = We may suffer operotional

distribshon network may fall Innprove our performance 0 waste effectively may leod failure n our waste water

below the standards expectad by relation to custorner senace o sewer which results in

DWI or Ofwat, sesultang i poor norder to delverwhat our {Pancipol Rk Ref 7) to the locdl ervironment.

servce to our customners and astomers tell us they want. (Pnnapal Risk Ref 7)

increased leakage from our {(Prncipdl Risk Ref 1)

network. (Prinapal Risk Ref 7) ~ We may be uncble o respond
- Falure of one of our key assets effectively to the apering up of

could resutt in disrupbon to the business netal market to

sypply to austomer s, competihon. (Pincaipal Risk Ref 2)

{Prnapol Risk Ref 8)

We are an mvestrment led indusiry, and our copital prograrmme this year
wus £555 million, or £129 per connected property reflecting increcsed

investrnent year on year in our water and

networks, ncludmg

finding and fixing rmore leaks and reducing the nurmber of supply

intermuptons, mprovernents to our water and

treatrnent plants

and upgrades to our sewer network to reduce madents of sewer

flooding. We fund this mvestrnent

from the profits we

prograrnme
generata, but also by borrowing money from the coprtol markets.

Risks

\hbopemtewimnamplexlegdmdregukm;rye_'mmmeﬁasam
ond seweroge service provider in England ond Wales. As a result we foce @
nurmber of risks nduding those assooated with possible nor-complionce

with our legal and requiatory framework, follure to obtain support

from

Ofwat for cur business plan for 2015~2020 ond failure to meet

Capttal nvestrent is odded on to our asset base, colled the RCV Our
asset base also nses in ine with mflghon eoch yeor The retumns that we
generate for shareholders on that asset bose are set by our economic
regulator, Ofwat, over five year planfing cycles. We can ncrease these

refumns by outpe:

the terns of our reguiatory contract as set out in our agreed business plan
for 2010-2015 We aisc face nsks assodiated with possible future changes
tn legrsiation which may result in our business plans beaorning
unsustainable. {Pancpol Risk Ref 3,4 and 5 on pages 35-42)
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Regutated Severn Trent Water

Qverview

Industry and market

The water industry in England and Woles mvests
more than £3.0 billon each year ond employs over
27,000 people. There are cumently 10 water ond
sewerage companies m Englond and Wates, as well
as a number of smaller water only comparnes,

The privatisation of the industry in 1989 hasled to
improvements in customer service, better diinkeng
water and higher environmental standards.
However, our sector still faces significant long term
challenges These nclude further improvernents to
operationd and ermronmerttal performance,
enhanang secunty of supply, dealing with extrermes
of dry and wet weather, managing the country’s
water resources more efficently and m the

long termn, sustainably financing the mdustry’s
infrastructure investmment. Our proposals for changes
n our industry are informing the debate about
meeting these challenges.

How we're requlated

Sevem Trent Water 1s a regulated business We work
wathun five year planning cydes, with the prices

we charge our customers set at the beginning of
each cycdle by our econormic regulator, Ofwat.
These five year cydes ore known as Asset
Manogement Plan (AMF) penods. We hove just
reached the end of the third year of AMPS.

As well s being requtated by Ofwat, o

performance s monttored by:

« the Drnking Woter Inspectorate, which makes
sure we comply with dnnking water quality
reguigtons; and

« the Emaronment Agency, which cortrols water
abstroction, nver pallution and fAlooding

We also work with the UK Government (nduding

the Deportment for Ervironment, Food and Rural

Affairs and the Welsh Assembly Government} and

other ogenaes such as the Consumer Counal for

Water, Notural England and Natural Resources

Wales, to make sure we meet the highest custormer

service and ervironmental standards, whilst offenng

our customers the lowest prices.

Key strengths
Sevem Trent Water has a number of key strengths
and we work hord to maintain them In particular

= our average bills for woter and sewerage
combined are the lowest in England and Wales;

= we continually work to improve our perfornance
and de'ver cost ond operahional efficiencies
against KPLs, which are aligned to our
long temm strategy;

» we are committed to long term sustainability,
keeping in balance the needs of our customers,
the ermvironment and our nvestors;

= our hugh stardards and efficencies keep our costs
low, whuch in tum helps keep charges low for
customers and generates progressive, sustainable

returms for our shareholders, and
» we hove a dear strateqy ond business plan and a
strong management team
Progress against our long term objectives
Long term otsectve Progress in the year
1 We will prowide woter +  Ourdrinking woter quaity remained high ond we mantaned our with the Dnnkang Water Irspecionate’s stondands.
_that s good to drink . mmmwgwmmﬂmm@mmmwm )
2. We will ensirre water 15 « We montmued Lo manoge our water resounces effectivaly and once ogan ovaded arty hoseppe bars.
ahways there when youneed @+ We reduced leakoge to its lowest ever level and cut the undertyng number of nterruptions to supply N
3. We will safely take your * We increased woste water treairments works compbonce and reduced properies on the ‘at-nsk of sewer flooding
waste water qway regster to s lowest level.
o = Wemade substantial investment to improve sewer systerns. o
4. We will provde excellent * We infroduced a range of Inrotves. to improve customer senice, resultng m increased customers satsfacon scores.
__ customer service + We achieved the best improvernent n customer expenenci GC10SSs our peer group as measured by Ofwat.
5. We will heve the lowest * Our average combined woter and seweroge bills remaned the lowest in England and Wales.
possibie charges + Our bills will ;rernain the bowest n 2013/14
& We will help + Wehelped 44,821 customerss who to pay bils wa o range of flexible toriffs and schermes.
¥ you struge = Wedonated £3.0 milion to the Severn Trent Trust Rand. _
7 We will protect our + Wereducad poliution naderts yecor on year
woterervronment + Wecontnued to trke an industry leading role in shopng the reguikinny regrme and new legrsiabon.
8. Wewll ptect the = Around one quarter of the electnaty needed by our UK requiated business was provided by ow renewoble
wider ervironment energy operations.
i . Mmﬁxﬁwmtgeenhg&gsmdgwgﬂnymmﬁmemmwmbmmhmdeﬁWME
9 We will make a positive + Weinvested nto our petwork ond treatment plants, mokmng o substantial contribuben toe jobs and
difference m the corrrrunity the local
- We tlked to schools, other orgomsations and socrol housing about water effisency, contributng to one of the lowest
e peg_gggtgmnmonsn&ecmntry IR
10. We will finance our + Weoortinued to ensure we were financed, with a strong balance sheet and mvestment grade credit rotmg-

bustness sustanably -immﬁfo;g?;?n;mdemmmmmmem,ﬂmgmm




Regulated Severn Trent Water

L N

Custorner written
complants per
1,000 properbes

2013

419

(2012 - 4.88)

a
Pont of contoct
resolution

2013

90.0%

(2012 - 89.4%)

=

Averoge woter
201213

£326

(2011112 - £311)

89p

(2011112 - 85p)

How we measure success

Severn Trent has published its own set of KPIs since
2007 In2011/12 Ofwot adopted a set of KPIs that it
required all water companies to publish. Severn Trent
has adopted its own KPIs to meet this new
requirernent. These KPIs provide Ofwat with an
overoll picture of performance agamst the
comparny’s commitments made as part of the AMPS
price review Our KPIs are set out on page 139

For the 2015-202C penod we have defined 10
long terrn objectives to meet customer and
stokeholder needs. In April 2013 we published a
consultation on our proposdls for bills and services
for the penod (Your water Your choices)

This nduded consuttation on a proposed new set
of measures by which our customers, stakeholders,
and regulgtors can see how much progress we
are makirk) towards achieving these ob,

Following the consuttation, we will be finalising the
meosures and mcuding them in our business plon
which we will submit to Ofwat in December 2013.

Further detatls of our performance are provided
i our Annual Regulatory Performance Report,
which s availoble at www stwater co uk

Performance

At Severn Trent Water we focus on four key areas -
austorners, people, process and finance (as we
explan on page 12} Howvng the nght people with
the nght skills and using the nght processes, enables
us to offer high quality, low cost sennices to cur
custormers. This in tum drves our finandal results.

The following pages describe what we achieved in
each of these areas during the year

Customers

For the fourth year unning, our average combined
water and sewerage bills were the lowest m England
and Wales, at £326. Our bills will remain the lowest
in2013/14

We am to supply water that's good to dnnk and
abwoys avaiiable. Despite the drought at the stort of
thes year, we managed our woter resources carefutly
and once agamn avoded any hoseprpe bans or ather
lrruts on our customers’ water use. The subsequent
heavy rain hetped restore our reservors and aquifers
and our water resources are now in good shape.
Our water quolity remained high and we maintained
our compliance with the Dnnking Water

17

Inspectorate’s standards at 99.98%. We delivered
water at the nght pressure and further improved our
overdll performangce on supply mterruptions.
However our company KPI (performance on
intemuptions) was not as good as last year owing to
a single burst trunk main which affected numerous
custormers. We rermain focused on cutting supply
internuptions, with further investment planning to
improve our performance.

We continue to invest to ensure we prowide the best
waoter quality and resibence To ochieve this we have
numerous projects, ncluding renewing nearty

300 km of water mains, improving resilience m
South Gloucestershre, and refurbishing 5 km of

the Derwent Valley oqueduct. We're dlso renewing
sections of high nsk trunk mains, to mirumise the nsk
of interuptions to supply Other significant projects
indude new trectment plants in Shropshire,
Warwickshire, Notinghamshire and Derbystre,

to address catchment quality issues.

We made further progress with our catchment
management progromme during the year

This iInvolves encounaging farmers and other lorge
land users to reduce their mpoct on water
resources. The drought and wet weather made it

a dhfficult year for farmers, but their interest in
catchment management remans hugh. Dunng the
year, we completed around 150 water quality
investigations arising from Drinking Water Safety
Plans, and hit our target for catchment
management investigations under the EA’s
Nationol Erwvironment Programme, receiving a
positive response from the EA.

One 1ssue assoaated with wet weather is an
ncreasing problemwith metaldehyde, a pesticde
used to controk slugs and snails. We took addiional
achon from {ate summer, but could not prevent a
number of higher pesticide results in the autumn.
We contmue to toke o leading role nationally n
seeking an industry solubon to metaldehyde,

The intense rain in 2012 led to an marease n the
number of mtermal sewer flooding repeat madents.
Lost year was the second wettest year on record
and parts of our regon suffered severe flooding.
Some of aur customers experienced flooding during
the year and we did everything we could to help the
focal authorties and the EA respond, for example
by prowding large purnps to protect roads and
properties adjacent to nvers.

We are mvesting significart amounts m ouy

wuaste water services to mmprove the service to

our custormers. Further details of the mvestment
can be found on poges 22 and 23.

Custormner expenence

We work hard to prowde our customerswith a
service expenance that is consistently reassunng
and refioble, whilst doing whatever we can to
persoralse the way n which we deal with each
indvidual customer query.

We aspire to be an organisation that is deskned
around its customers, not Just its network We
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‘We're pleased to have
demonstrated the best
improvement in SIM
performance across our
peer group.’

know that customer expectabions contmue to be
fluenced by the vast number of brands, products
and technologies that they interact with. It's
therefare essential for us to look at our processes,
palicies and general ways of working througha
custarmer lens and not an operational lens. We
started this cutturat journey two years ago when
we launched cur Customer Experience Programme,
By engaging every Sevem Trent colleague in the
proctical pursuit of the best possible expenence for
our customers, we've succeeded m achieving a very
reql improvernent across our key indicators of
customer sotisfaction.

We're proud of what we've achieved - but we won't
stop until our customers consxler us to be one of the
very best custormer service providers m the industry.
We are able to benchmark our performance aganst
that of our peer group via Ofwat’s independent SIM.

Ofwat's SIM measures our custorners’ expenence
of dealing with us. The SIM score has two elements.
quontitatrve, based on the number of customers
that have to contact us, and qualitative, which
assesses our service quoality when they do.

We hove consistently recened good quantitative
scores, but in the past, our quality of service has
fallen short. In the last 12 months, we have focused
on improving the areas our customers say are
important to thern, namely-
« resolving thesr issues or quenes at first pomt

of contact;
» beng available to them when they want us; and
* keeping them mnformed every step of the way.
To do this, we created o cross company group to
look at how we could drive improverment in our
processes, response times and simplify the language
we use to communicate with our customers.
Ths helped us improve both elements of our SIM
score in 2012413,

We're pleased to have demonstrated the best
improvernent in SIM performance across aur peer
group, but we're not yet where we want to be from
a benchmark perspective. And so the joumey
towards the best possible customer experience
cortinues with a relentless focus on putting our
customers at the heart of how we operate

Our ‘voice of the customer’ tool gives us direct
feedbock from austomets at the end of acalt or
when we've finished doing something for them.
We get around 12,000 responses a morth.

This valuable feedback helps us innprove our

processes and how we deal with customers

when they feel they need us most.

We have maintained first point of contact resolution
at around 90%. Our Custorner Advisors are
consistently receiving satrsfaction scores in the 90s
and, as o result, our complaints volume continues
to decline ot @ very heaithy rate We also further
reduced written complaints, which were down 14%

One of the important points of contact with
customers is when they receive a bill from us.
We've continued to mprove our bill design to
make them easier to understand, and to pass on
useful information, such os the different ways
customers can get in touch with us. We will also be
introducing e-billing for custorners who prefer it

Managing debt

Some customers choose not to pay and some
customers gerunely struggle to pay. In line with
our commitment to far and affordable bills for all,
we operate robust processes toinfluence the
behawours of those who choose not to pay,
which in turn controls our heatthy debt levels

For our customers who truly struggle to pay,

we offer a range of flexible tariffs and schemes.
These can involve matching the customer’s
payments, capping bills for people with low incomes
who have to use large announts of water for medicat
or family reasons, or dllowing customers to make
payments directly from their benefits. In 2012113,
we helped a total of 44,821 customers this way

The Severn Trent Trust Fund offers an aitermative
avenue of support and has helped many
customers aver the years to fund their water

bills. Durnng the year we donated £3.0 million to

the Severn Trerit Trust Fund to enable the chanty to
support our customers who have difficLity in paying
their water bills. However, a customer who struggles
with their water bill s bkely to struggle with other
household bills, We wish to provide these customers
with rmore mecningful support and hove therefore
entered into a partmership with the Gitzens Adwice
Bureau which has the skills to help austomers
address their finanool issues at a deeper level

We hope in this way to help our most finandially
wulnerable customers to manoge and avoid
household debts more effectively n the future.

Engaging with our customers

One of the significant differences between the
process for PR14 and the previous pnce review 15 the
ncreased role for customers and other stakeholders
in hedpng us to formulate and challenge our plan
The Water Forurm s our custormer chatlenge group
for PR14 It mdudes representatives from customers,
our environmental regulaters and local authonbes,
and has an independent charr, Darme Yve Buckland,
who fs also national chair of the Consumer Coundl
for Water.

Seeourr\tememw;ihnumeY\leBtlddnrﬂ.dnu'ofme
COW ot www.sevemtrent comibwaterforum
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Today...

We’re improving our
flood defences in
Gloucestershire

Since 2007, we've rvested over £38.0 milion acoss
Gloucestershire to ensure we are better dbie to cope with
extreme weather

To ensure our sewers n Gloucester can cope with heavy
ranfoll we have loid over 1 ken of new sewers, We've

Our sewage pumping stabon at Longlevens with underground
storoge tanks and storm water pumping and ot our

Mythe Water Tregtment Works we've nstatled flood
protecbon barmers. To ensure we always have a bock-up
supply we've built ppelines from our other water

treatrnent works.

Image removed

Tomorrow...

We’re continuing to
invest across our region

Reploang our largest covered reservor at Ambergate,
Derbyshure and replacing over 7 knn of sewers in Newark,
Nottinghamshire are just two of our maor imvestment
schernes over the next five years, We will invest over

£58 0 milion on these two projects to ensure we continue
to provide quality woter and prevent sewer flooding.
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The role of the Water Forum s to ensure that
customer ond other stakeholders’ views are
understood and represented by Severn Trent
Wiater when we submit our plans to Ofwatin
December 2013,

Ofwat will assess our plan ogainst four crteria
outcormnes, costs, rsk ond reward, and affordobility
and financeabilty Our planwill then be categonsed
as ‘enhanced’, ‘standard’ or ‘resubmission’.

Thus will determine the level of scrutiny and
challenge of our plan and the finanaa! Incentives
available. The Water Forum reports on the qualty
of our customer engagernent, and how well our
bugimess plan reflects austormer views and prionties.
Itwill form a key input to Ofwat’s assessment ogomnst
the outcomes attena.

We also have a broader engagement programme
and have nun workshops on topics including
managing dimate change, woter and waste water
tssues, and custormer service A wide range of
stakeholders attended these sessions. We also
carried out 0 major customer survey, to understand
therr willngness to pay for improvements we could
deliver as part of our plan

In Aprit 201 3, we ssued another consultation paper,
“Your water. Your choices', which set out our thinking
an what might happen to customaer blls, investment
and investor retums over the next five years, This will
gnve us further clarity on our stakeholders’ views.

People

We arm to have people with the nght skills and
appreach to work, personal development and
customer focus. To dnve the behaviours we think are
important, we have a Code of Conduct (Doing the
right thing - The Severn Trent way) that applies
aawoss the group ard explams our approach to
1ssues ranging from health and safety, to ethics and
honesty, and to delivenng excellent custormer service.

Our Code of Conduct explains who we are, what we
stand for and how we work; it also tells our
customers and business partners thot they con rely
on us. Further detoils are provided in the Governance
report on poge 50.

A safe and healthy workforce

Protecting the heatth and safety of our customers,
pecple and contractors 5 our number one prionty.
We were delighted to reduce lost trme nciderts
once again, reaking 2012/13 our safest year yet.

Our MindSafety™ troimng programme contributed
to thus improvernent. It teaches our people about
different states of awareness, so they understand
how they shoutd work and can take responsibitity
for therr own safety. We have coaches around the
business to remfonce the MindSafety™ opproach
and will be nunning refresher programmes.

Other inibatives to enhance safety dunng the
year induded rmproving our rsk assessments and
making sure that our people understand therr roles
and responsibilibes.

‘We were delighted to
reduce lost time incidents
once again, making 2012/13
our safest year yet.

One area that has concemed us 5 an increase In
rood traffic accddents. Whilst our staff didn't cause
these ocadents, we ore looking at ways to reduce
the sk by minimising the rmles they travel and
providing training on safe and effectve dmang and
preventative actions.

As well as rarsing safety standords, we am to be
more proactive with our people’s heatth and
well-being In 2012413, we oppointed a new
occupationat heatth provider We're legally required
to monttor the hectth of some employees, for
example f they're exposed to noise or vibration,

or work in confined spaces. Our new occupational
health provider has o mobile unit, which wisits sites
tomonitor our people This saves time and provides
a friendlier ervironment than an off-site facility

We're glso working with a new provider to help
employees with musculoskeletal problems.

Our partrer looks ot job design and how we

can make changes to help people back to work.
We are increasingly focking to take action before
problems arnse.

Engaging our people

Our annual employee survey once again showed
that our people are positive about worlang for us.
Our overall Engagement Index rose to 79%, ahead
of our target of 75% and the industry benchmark of
74%. The response rote olso incrensed, a sign
that our pecple know that it's mportant to us that
they give therr feedbock and that we listen.

The most improved area was in people believing we
are cormrritied to custormer setvice, Our score for
commitment to custorners rose from 71% to 83%.

A number of factors were behind the improved
survey results. Developing our managers has

made them more willing to engoge with their
tearns and we hove also put effort mto making sure
manogers understand our business goals and con
communicate thern to their teams. Our continuous
mprovernent mme also contnbuted,

by gnving our peaple the tools and techruques to
solve problems they face ot work

Previous employee surveys showed that our people
wanted to see more of our executive team and

to find out how they were leading the business.
This year, we ran a rolling programme where
Executive Committee mernbers went out to meet
people across the business, More than 1,000 of our
people gttended these meetings, enabling thern to
ask any question they wanted. The feedbock has
been positive and our executives have also learmed
where we need to communicate better.
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Developng our people

Every year, we invest sigruficant amounts m people
development (£3 9 million in 2012/13) Thus year,
we piloted a ‘Leoding for Performance’ development
progromme In our waste water business. The aim 1s
to have leaders who can inspire and engage our
people and lead them through change - an areq
where we know we can do better. The programme
helps our leaders to understand themselves and to
leam how to coach others as well as build tigh
performing tearns. After positive results, we're now
rollng out the programime across all of our
operational leadership.

We have many other leadership programmes, which
together form our ‘Line Manager Joumey’ They
make sure that os people move into monagemnent,
they have the skills to lead effectively For example,
to drive our performance cutture, we want all our
ernployees to have a performance dsaussion with
therr manager We run programmes for managers
at all levels, so they understand the process ond can
have those sometimes difficult conversations.

We'll soon be launching an inhative for nearty 1,400
people in Customner Relations, called the Great People
Prograrmime Managers will leam about creating a
customnar oriertated cutture and coaching people in
custorner service skills. Frontine advisors will become
better at gving customers a positve and memonable
experience when they get in touch with us.

As part of our talent review process, we piloted new
development centres this year. These took people
identified as promotable and ossessed their
strengths and development needs. Each person
carne out with an n depth development plan,

In a chonging world, we need leaders with a breadth
of experience who can nse to different challenges.
We therefore reintroduced our groaduate
progromme, toking oh nine high calibre people

In 2013/14, we plon to increase this to 20 and we're
clso considering introducing o techmcal groduate
scheme, with progression to chartered engineering
Finding people with the right skills is a challenge
across the industry, so we further expanded our
apprenticeship scheme, We now hove 82
apprentices at different stoges of development,
induding 22 we recuited in Septernber 2012

for technicat traring, induding two for a new
ervironmental conservation apprenticeship

Almost all our apprentices move on to permanent
Jobswith us,

mage removed
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Through a pilot programme called ‘Employee
Ownership of Skills', the UK Governrment has asked
ermployers to set aut how we might use public funds
alongside our own mvestment to improve the skilts
we cumrently hove m the industry, identify the chdls
we'll need in the future and where we should invest.
We're also continuing to support projects in the
Midlands to encourage young people to study
stence, technelogy, engineering and maths (STEM)
subjects in order to be able to toke up engneenng
and techrscol careers in the future,

Attracting a diverse workforce

Our goal is to attract ¢ diverse range of tolent, with
o balance of gender and ethnicrty that reflects

the market we gpergte m At the moment, our
waorkforce s slightly more diverse than the sector
average, with riore femate emplayees and people
from block, Asian and ethric rmunonty groups.

We have a diversty workryg group, with members
from across the business. Its curent focus is on
gender diversity inleadership roles, We are also
starting to get more insight into ethnic diversity

It's important that we attract the broodest ange
of candidates whenwe recrurt, 5o we tradk our
attrachon rates across different genders und
ethnic backgrounds. We have also refreshed our
careers website, to make it appeal to 9 wider range
of people

Helping our people to manage their finances

In Apri 2013, we auto envolled more than 1,000
people into our pension scheme. We believe thot
pensions are important and we're commnutted to
providing a competitive scheme

As many of our people told us that they didn't
undarstand pensions, we set up ¢ financiad
education programme which is now part of our
ongoing trainng. 5o far, 1,200 employees have
attended a session to leam about pensions, debt,
morigages, savings and othet finandal matters.

Process

To deliver great service to our customers, we look to
continuously improve our processes and technology
Our approach to contmuous improvernent is called
“Safer Better Foster’. It helps our people to find ways
to do thirygs better, so we can improve our service
We continue to invest, incdluding buildng and training
our team of expert proctiioners, who work with
colleaques to help them use ‘Safer Better Foster’
techniques on a daily basis.
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Burmg the year, we explotted our previous
mvestment N SAP and desktop technologes, and
used our ‘Safer Better Foster’ approach to improve
our business processes For example, we Introduced
better processes in sotving bursts on private
properties, fixing stop tap problems and gaving our
customers a better service We implemented
software to allow work crews to access maps and
asset data on their laptops, so they can pinpeint
leaks and blockages more efficently. We're also
increasing the use of remote monitoning to improve
performance ocross our networks. This helps us to
detect leaks and prevent supply interuptions,
aflowing us to respond to prablems before
customers are dffected.

One of pur biggest challenges was improving how
we engage with our customers at our call centres,
Dunng the year we made a strategic investment in
telephory systems, to improve our customers’
expenence when they colf us. The new system inks
to our other bock office systems, gving our people
better information to resolve custormer issues during
the call,

By investing 1n our people and technology, we've
reduced to almost zero the number of custorners
who recenve on engaged tone More custormers can
spedk to someone quickly, so fewer are hanging up
because we've kept them waiting.

Using text messages, our new website and other
technologies has helped us keep our customers
informed about what we're doing. Live update maps
on our webstte tell customers what's going onin
their area and we're also malang maore use of
Twitter. We want customers to contact us in the
way that’s best for them, and around one quarter
of all contacts are now through our website, where
customers can pay bills and updote therr details

We increased the resilience of our technology,

by investing in new data centres, We atso mode
sigruficant investment in business medelling
software, which will allow us to model different
planring scenanos for the next five years refleching
the mput we have recenved from our PR14 custorner
focus group.

We are improwng the efficiency of our procurement.
We're working with our supply chain to get better
volue for money, induding using our SAP system to
gve us more visibility of what we buy and where.

Punng the year, we and our One Supply Chain
frarnewaork partners continued to deliver greater
effidencies m our capital prograrmme. Our strategic
relationships with our One Supply Chan partners
help us to becorme more innovative as we work
together, for example by consobdating buying
throughout the supply chain.

We want to work with responsible suppliers, so
we've developed guidelines and standards that we

expect supplers to meet to ensure they are dligned
to our philosophy of doing the right thuing and our
underlying policies. These cover key areas of
corporate responsibility, such as our suppliers’
approach to health and safety, antibribery and

onti coruption, and emaronmental performance

For more details on ‘Doing the nght thing -

The Sevem Trent way' see poge 50

A nurnber of new technologres went live inour
waste water operations this year. In crder to drive
efficiency we are exploting technology innovation at
places such as Ashboume where we have installed
the UK’s first full scale HYBACS plant. HYBACS 50
treatrnent technology thot allows us to process
higher volumes, while using tess energy. In
Birringharn we hove nstalled the UK’s first
Annamox plant to treot high concentrations of
ammoria Anaerobic ommonium oxidation
intensifies the sewage treatment process, o we can
use fewer and smoller assets. In Nottngham we are
installing one of the UK's first struvite recovery plants
to reciaim phosphate so that we can sell ton.

We have dlso been worleng with a partner which
provides orr cormpressors that can reduce electnaty
consurmpbion by around 20% These playan
important part in sewoge treatment. More broadly,
we work extensively with other organisations to
develop new processes and have more than 30
academic or ndustricl research partrers.

Erwironment

Delivenng our environmental obligatrons has a real
irmpact on our customers and the communities in
which they ve and worke

Managing waste water

We adheved good improvernents in our
enviranmentd performance in woste water.

The number of reported pcllution incidents fell
from 458 n the previous year to 376, a reduction
of 18%. While we are one of the industry leaders
at preventing the most senous poliution inadents,
we can still improve in other less senous categones.
We are investing in training, working on faster
response tmes and using technology to try to
predict where pollutions might occur.

Severn Trent has around 1,000 sewage tregtment
works. Of these, only 0.85% failed to reach ther
compliance limits (2012 2.54%), our best ever
performance. This was down t0 our Improvernent
group, which has anclysed the root causes of failure
and enabled us to systematically elimincte those
problems, as well as the ongoing benefits of our

nvestment programime and more remote
moratonng of our sewoge tregtment process.

tmage removed
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This year has seen us reach halfway on our

£200 million major projects prograrmme of work.
Upgrodes are under way to our key sewage
treatment works serving Notiingham, Lescester,
Worksop, Stoke, Coventry, Burton-upon-Trent ond
Tefford. Elsewhere this year we have rwested clmost
£204 milion to maintan service to our austomers
and undertaken key ervironrnental mprovernents
to our nvers, Looking forward, we'ne investing
significantly in improving nver water quality and
hove camed out a pilot study with the EA on how to
actveve zero pollubons and breaches of consent.

Sewer systemsare pnranly designed to handle
waste woter and on occastons can be overwhelmed
dunng heavy rain events,

Sewer flooding is one of the worst service failures
that can happen to a customer, Dunng the year we
have made improvements to protect 158 properties
from internal flooding and 70 external areas
induding substanbal investment to mprove sewer
systems in Leamington Spa and Gloucester

The number of homes on the risk of sewer flooding
register 15 now at 1ts lowest ever level. We expect
to be ahead of our target ot the end of this
requigtory penod.

We have a proactive programme to dean and
repair our sewer network which helps to prevent
blockages, pollutions, flooding and coltapses of
our sewerage system.

This was our first fudl year of maneging the

37,000 km of private drains and sewers that
transferred to us on 1 October 2011, While this
increased the number of blockages we had to
deal with, overall we saw a lower level of reactve
work than we expected. We are canying out more
inspections and condition/CCTV surveys of these
assets, so we con fearn more about them and
hove better informed plans for the future
Deploying water resources wisely

Sevem Trent 1s the onty company to target o
sigrficant reduchion in leakage during AMPS,

We made further good progress, cutiing leckage
to its lowest ever level at 441 MI/d. This compares
with 464 Mi/d last year and our intemnal target of
465 MYd Our performance benefited from our
ongoing mvestment programme and the relotively
mild weather.

Managing water resources effectively also rmeans
helping our customers to reduce the amount they
use We have a sizeable outreach progromme with
schools and other organisations, to teach people
cbout usmg less water We also distribute water
efficent devices and have iIndustry leading iniatives
with social housing All of these contnbute to one of
the lowest per capita corsurmptionsin the country.
The overull water saving this year as a resutt of these
measures Is 3 26 Ml/d, which has contributed to the
continued reductien in our per capito consumption
Lost year our customers used an average of

121 btres per persen per day
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“We remain at the forefront
of the industry’s debate
about its future.’

Protecting biodversity

Sevemn Trent has a role In protecting and enhanang
biodwersity at our sites or sites affected by our
activiies, We manoge 12 public acoess sites where
we work atongside volunteers and in partnership
with organkations to ensure the long term
biodiversity walue of the sites, whilst engaging with
our custorners. AQoss our region we also own of
partly manage 37 sites of speadl saentific interest,
where we work with our regulators, tenonts ond
others to safeguard thern.

Finance

We aim to finance the company m an efficent and
sustainable way, which helps to keep customer bills
low by keeping our financing costs low. Our funding
comes from payment of customer bils, issuing debt
on the capital markets and by shoseholders retaining
equity in the business We have aninvestment grade
credit rating, with o stable outlook We also look to
the long term sustainability of our financing and
during the year we published some further thoughts
in ‘Changing course through sustainable financing’,
part of our continung Changing course senes of
thought papers on the future of our industry.

More information about our finanoal performance

and our debt issuance during the year can be found
in the Finandial review on pages 35 to 38

Qutlook
We remain focused on achieving sustainable
growth, by concentrating on our customers, people,
process and finance We aim to deliver the benefits
of our investment programmes and to continuously
improve the way we work, to raise standards and
drive efficiency, Giving our custorners an even better
service is an innportant part of this.
Our openating environment will change os the
UK Government passes the Water Bl and Ofwat
cormpletes its preparations for PR14 We remain at
the forefront of the industry’s debate about its future
and wil continue 1o help shope the legislation and
requiation as it progresses.
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Non- reguloted

Severn Trent Services

Sevem Trent Services is one of the world’s leading suppliers of water and
waste water treatment solutions. We are known for innovation, reliability,
quality services and leadership in our chosen markets

Key strateglc intentions...

Severn Trent Services has six key strategic intentions,
which define our strategy and sef out how we
mtencl to achieve our object;ves

1 Engaged employees with the nght skills
to deliver

2. Continuous"lgf wﬁprovg health, safety,
employee well-being and environmental
performance

3. Determine and deliver what
customers vulue

4. Develop new markets ond products
through geographic expansion, end user

focus, technology innovation and strategic
partnerships

5. Continue to bulld strong and
tespected brcnnds

6. Contlnuously |mpr0ve .and opt:rnlse our
products, processes and organisational
capabilities to enhance customer value and
improve netums to our lnvestors

Where we operate .

Sevem Trent Services is our main non-regulated
busmess. It has two business strearms -

Woter Punfication and Operating Senaces.
Water Punfication ts organised arourd three
regiors — the Americos; Asia Poafic and Ching;
Europe, the Middle East and Africa. Cperating
Services works for customers in the US, UK,
Ireland and Italy

~deltvered through our areos of focus
Severn Trent Services 5 one of the world’s leoding

water and waste water businesses. To achieve our
strateqy we focus on

Water Punﬁcatron (Products}

Municpal, commerml, industnat and manne
applcations require water treatment technologies to
meet ther disinfection, filtraton and process needs.
The Water Punfication group's portfolio of water
products are used around the world in support of

these upphcotlons
MOre on Water Rrrﬁcﬂbonon page 29

Operating Services

Operating Services delvers safe dnnking woter ond
waste water treatment senices. It s responsible for
operating more than 500 treatment fadlities across
its rarkets.

More on Dperatlng Servr.es on poge 30

Keyfocks

Image
rermoved

Orderbook

£496m

os at 31 March 2013

=

Employees

2339

os ot 31 March 2013

Tumnover

£3285m

(2012 £332 3m}

Profit’. .

£12.7m

{2012, £18.0m)}
“Before ritevest, tox ond
exnepbonal berms.




Non-regudated

Today...

We completed the
first retail switch

Severn Trent Costan prowvides woter ond waste water
management servces 1n the UK ta commeroal and mdustnal
users, delivenng water stroteges to improve effidences,
reduce costs, mrgate nsk and manage compliance.

In October 2012, we announced First Milk as the first business
customes to switch water supplier We supply, manoge and
rnonitor over 600 millon lrtres of water per year across s
First Milk stes, and are now warking with First Mk to help
them achieve ther objectives for water management,

“Beng able to get o deser handle on our water usage s not
Just benefical to our busness, but 1o any business. We bebeve
that this contract wath Severn Trent Costom wil help us mour
quest to meet some of the sustainabity targets, and help
prepare us for some of the short and long temm challenges
foang ourmdustry ™

Paut Rowe, First Mik Group Projects Dinector

Image rermoved

Tomorrow...

We're well placed to
take a leading role

As the LK water supply market undergoes significant change,
we are talaing aleading role. With water senaces licences
for Scotiond, England and Wales, we con offer multr-sited
busnesses the benefits and synergres of o smgle

suppher approach.

We will continue to work m partnership with high velume
busness users to manoge the increasing chollenges
presented by ckmate change and extrarne weather such
s flooding, scurcity, nsing costs and maeasing regulation.
We will develop innovative water strategras wiich defiver
sustancbifity, reduce costs and fulfil corporate socal
responsibiity agendas to meet the increasing demeands
frorm consumers and stakeholders to preserve and probect
0 valuable resource.
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Non-requlated
Our business model

Severn Trent Services

Our business is evolving from a traditional
base of municipal water and waste water
to one where we operate in a variety

of munidpal, industrial and commercial
sectors for the delivery of both products
and services

The market for water and waste water products
and services 15 significant, with good prospects

for long term sales and profit growth due to
fundamental drivers: water scarcity, population
growth, dimate change and more stringent
regulatory requirements.

Our strategy & to introduce new technologies into
extsting markets, adapting exssting technology (for
example our BALPURE® ballast water technology) to
fit new market opportunities, as well as growing cur
Openating Senaces business in the US and Europe
where we operate more than 300 fadlities and have
over £190 milllon revenue.

We targst a retum on capitol in excess of the
regulated water business, commonty above 10%.

Key to our sepaces

® Fitration
Areas where STS offers fitration, separahon and
adsorpton products/senaces for ol or part of
the process cyde

@ Disinfection
Areas where STS offers disinfection and related
nstrumentation products/senaces for all or part
of the process cyde

Operating Services
Areas of the process cyde where STS offers
CONLIOCT Operations

Other non-regulated businesses
Renewable energy in the UK

As a group, we face an increasing need for energy due to
ever tightening standards. We have three rain reasons
for developing our own energy, tor

+ reduce our refiance on electncy from the nationd gnd,
* reduce our corbon emissions; and

« Tifitoyr nwuctmﬂemwmnment
Arecsoffoms
Semgeguscombmedheutundpower(G-IPJ -Wehave
55 &rigines on 35 stes procucing 40 MW of power
Trade waste~ We have four Sewage Treatment Works
providing perrriapent trade waste storage ond dosing
fodlbes creqting methone gas.

Energy from crops ~0ur ‘energy crop’ anaesobic
digesbonphrtnextwmeStoheBardolphSemge
".’reatmemWorlsmNanmghurmME.

Hydro - We hiave six hydro turbines instatied ot four sites
prodiicng arolind 17 MW

Large wind turbines - We aim to generate 22 GWh

of electncity fromn four large wand turbines n 2015

Where we invest and where we make our returns
We tre iInvesting ocross the above five areas of focus
with £8 75 fillion invested in 2072/13 We make direct
returrsqx our renmubleenerggocmua,mﬂbeneﬂt
from gt saving acrss the grokp.

Providing Operating Services
and Water Purification Products to:

Municipal Water
Treatment

Severn Trent Services provides filtration, disinfection
and process solut:on technologies for vanous
rmunicipal water treatment applicotions.

Tn addition, we provide contract operations and
maintenance for murscipal water treatment
facilizes in the US, UK, Trelond and Ttaly

Disinfection ®©

Product:
Advance™, AQUAWARD®, Copitol Controls®, Chior-o-voc®,
(horornatic™, CorTec®, M.annymmcs' umuoy:mm‘

F'ltru’uon ee

auymade@ £33, Omn-SORE™, SORB 07™/09™/33®,
TETRA® DecpBed™, TE!'RApIﬂx. UAT™, TETRADeNite®,
Higgins Laop™, TEYRA AumeRow®, TETRA® LP Blodks™

Services:
Waste Woter Faclity Operations & Markenance (05M),

Risks
(Whese these are tumently considered Prinapat Risks,
ﬁrﬂudemhmprundedmpagsas-&m

Wennybeurdietncokctundslnreaﬁnemmto
meet asstormer dernand.

» Hazardous processes may resutt n our peopie besg nured.
(Principot Risk Ref 6)

. or polincal change may lead to deceosed
dernand for our senaces.




Non-requlated
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Mummpul Wuste

Water Treatment

Severn Trent Services provides filtration, disinfection
and process solution technologres for vanous
municipal waste water trectment apphications.

In addition, we provide contract operations and
mantenance for municipal waste water treatment
facilibies in the US, UK, Ireland and Ttaly

Primary Treatment @

Secondurlelologlcal Treatment @ @

Product:
TETRA® SAF, Amphidrome, TETRA® ColOX

TertlurylAdvunced Treatment @ ®

Product:
TETRA® DeepBed™, TETRA® Dente®, TETRA® NSAF, TETRA®
Shorteut-NAT™, TETRA® SNAR-T®

Capital cmnsO. ClorTec®, Microbynamics®, MicoCherr®

Services:

Worsta Water Foclity Operations & Maintenance (O&M), Wiste Water
Systemn Treatment & Collection, Asset & Cupinluurmt.
Design & Build, Industnol Pre-treatrnent, Network Repalr,
Maintenonce & Renewal, Project Finance

Studge Treatment & Dispasal

Risks

- Fallure of products or treatment processes may resctt
envirorrmentol dorage and regulatory non-complionce
(Prncopal Risk Ref 5)

or political change may lead to degeased
dernand Tor our services.

* Hozardous processes miay nesuit n our people beng njured.
{Poncipal Risk Ref 6)

Sammmt ot e e s sees ssemaem s e = w—— — dwr—— o A
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Industnul

Severn Trent Services offers arange
of disinfactron, filtration and
process solubons for a sute of
industrid water and waste water
applications In addition, we
provide design, buitd and contract
apenotions for water and waste
water treatment facilities for a
vanety of industnial segments in
the US, UK, Ireland and Italy, and
supply retail water to businesses
throughout the UK.

"I;ro-céss Water@®

Coolmg Water @ @ @

Cnp‘tdtatmls’ﬂntTec'ES‘F“'
! SANILEC®, SEACLOR®,

TEI'RADeepGed’" s
’o’ TETRA ngghs ™
UAT'“I.I'lb'uDyrmiu." T

- Folreof products or betment.
processes mday result n Inury to people,
envionmental and

darnoge and reguiatory
m—grwﬁum(nmpdﬁsknefs
» Desruption in the global supply chan
may mnpoct our abiity to meet
Qstomer needs,
* We may be unatie to toke advantoge

of the apening of the UK market to
competinon (Prmapa Risk Ref 2)

Manne

Severn Trent Services offers a
range of disinfection, filtrotion
and process solutions for manne
and offshore woter and waste
water opplications.

Electrochlonnatlon @
msc',szmon’

Desdlination @ ©
Product
SANTLEC®, SEACLOR®, LIAT™, LitraDynamics®

Marine Sewerage @o

Product:

MARTNER OMNIPURE® Sexfes M55,
OMNIPURE™ & OMNIPURE™ Serles 55,
SANTLECS, SEACL O, LAT™,

Ballost Water Treatment @@ -
Product:
BALPURE®

« New products may be mtraduced to the
market leading to maeased competibon

Our websites

WWW.severmbentsenioes.com
www sevemntrentoostencom
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Non-regulated
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Overview

Industry and market

The rmarket for water and waste wuter products and
services i large with substantiol long term prospects
for growth in the areas we serve Thot s because the
dnvers of the water and waste water business:
water scaraty; population growth; dimate change;
and more stingent regulatory requirements

remain strong.

Our business

Severn Trent Services provides water and waste
water treatrment products and operating senaces to
utilties, municipalities and commercial customers in
selected miarkets oround the world We focus onthe
growth markets and geographies where our
products and services meet the significant needs of
our custorners.

We have two princpal business streams, Water
Punfication {Preducts) and Operating Services, which
are desanbed under our areas of focus on page 24
Operating Services indudes Severn Trent Costain,
which provides complete business water and waste
water managermient, from source to disposal, for
high volume commencial and industnal water users
in England, Wales and Scotiand.

Progress against our key strategic intentions
Key stratege ntention Progress i the yeor

We also have a sector leading renewoble energy
operation, which provdes electnaty to our UK
reqgulated business, Severn Trent Water, with excess
power supplied to the national gnd.

Key strengths

Our non-reguilated operations have the following

key strengths.

= our business has a dear strategy for growth, which
focuses on the growing global demand for clean
water and safe, efficient waste water treatment;

= we provide operating services to an increasing
number of utilties, municipalibes and commercial
customers in targeted courtries, and

s we are a leader in the design, production and sole
of water punfication products in growth markets
such as dsinfection, filtrotion, odsorption and
manne/offshore woste water treatrnents.

How we measure success

Seven Trent Services establishes an annual suite
of performonce targets (KPIs) which are used to
measure and guide the business throughout the
year KPIs are measwred and reported monthly to
all employees and are aligned with the delivery of
our long term strategic plan which is set out i our
Key Strategic Intentions (KSIs) below.

1. Engoged employees with the
2 Commuously hedith,

safety, employee wel-bemgand = 'We won awards that recogresed our commitment to protectng the ernvironsment.

3 Determine and defiver what

= Our quarterly surveys show emplayee engagement ohead of target and benchmarks for simflar busnesses.

. Weddneedsbongrmlmmsafetypeﬁwmrmmmummmmmlwtmm

T Wemdertooka'ﬁtforpurpose ramofallwrproductsundsemcesuaossSwemTrentServmund

customers volue disposed of our analytical and metenng services operations so we could focus on our key actvbes.
+ Weimplementad a new comprahensive voice of astomer process acoss off parts of Severn Trent Services.
« Wa developed new communication tools with masting customers which have contnibuted to enproved
e . .. _ compoctretentonrgtes. e
4 Develop new markets and . WeshengﬂenedwrSeuememneNmubumﬁsbyocmngdecuudmmnmmum
products through geographec establishing ar opportunity for future growth m Japan.
expansion, end user focus, = We formed a new subsidiary, Sevem Trent Costain, to compete for commeraot and business customers
technology mnovation and nthe UK,
strotegic partnerships « We recently ogreed to aequire serice controcts with 10 muredpatities and three private entrbes in

Calforrua providng us with o stronger base for growth in the Westemn US.

5 Comtnuetobulldstrongand |~ - We contimued to mvest in developing BALPURE® and o number of ather water purfication products.

e . SR

respected bronds = Severn Trent Senvces has a senes of electrochlonnation products for ballast water, waste water and
drinking water applications, out of which our established ClorTec® fine has a strong reputttion
as the teading glabal technology with o proven track record of over 3,000 global installations since 1995.
+ Severn Trent De Nora hos established an excellent reputation and brand name across the gliobe and
speafically m the Middle East by occupyming o strong leadership position in this region

= We launched new foresgn

language websites in Sparsh, Itahan and Chinese within

www.severntrentservices.com to provide native language product and service informabon for
key imemnatenal markets,

6 Contlmnously lmprm and

= Woter Punfication reagannsedonareglom!basts.togetdnsertontsmsmmers

ophimuse our products, processes  + We introduced the Severn Trert group’s ‘Sarfer Better Faster’ approach to continuous improvernent.

and ormyonsabanal capabilities to
enhance asstorner value and
... IMprove retums to our mvestors.




Non-regulated

Performance

Sevemn Trent Services delivered an encouragimg
performance, despite continuing challenging
condibions in some of its markets. In 2012113,
revenue was £328 5 million, while profit before
interest tox and exceptional tems {PBIT) was

£12.7 million.

During the year, we conducted a thorough review of
Sevem Trent Services’ products and service portfolio,
including a *fit for purpose” analysss of the structure
of each business and our shared services. In
addition, we took action to strengthen our foous on
the core water and waste water markets through
the divestrture of our anatybioal services and
metering services operations in the UK, The disposal
of analytical senices also satisfied anundertalang
made to Gfwat who hove now closed the Section 26
Investigation into this market, Excluding the impoct
of aoquisibons, exchange movernents and these
disposals, revienue grew by 5.3% but undetiying PBIT
decreased by 3.5%, after increcsed investment In
business development, which was £1 6 milkion
higher at £3 6 million. Reported reverue felt by 1.1%,
while reported PBIT fell by 29 4%, manly due to the
loss of earmings on disposal from the metenng and
analytical services business.

29

Water Purification (Products)
Water Punfication grew in emerging markets such
as Asia Pacrfic and the Middle East & North Afnca,
while perforrmance in North Amenca and Europe
was impacted due to difficult economic conditions
and imited customer investment in water and
waste water projects.

Disinfection and filtrabon product demaond
ncreased due to stingent effluent standards in
China and dermand for electrochtorination products
in offshore cpplicabons was high in Latin Amenca
{Brazil) and Asia Poafic {(Malaysa) due to increased
oil and gas explorabon

To support and expand on this demand, a small
acqurstion was mode in the Japanese market —
Chlonne Engineers’ CECHLO seawater and brine
electrochlorination systems.

In the marine market, the Intemational Mantime
Organisation (IMO) has yet to rotify ballost water
treatment standards. However, our BALPURE®
batlast water treatment line still delivered growth
and we have a pipelne of new projects We continue
to invest in BALPURE®, so it has a broader reach
acoss the marketploce Ths includes modifying
the product to make it rore cost competitive for
smaller ships, and toking costs out of the ariginal
design to improve its competitiveness across the
product range.

To take advantoge of growth n emerging markets,
we reorgonised the Water Purification business on o
regional basis. This new operating model s divided
into the Americas; Europe, Middle Bast and Africa;
Asia Pacific and Ching; and Sevemn Trent De Norg,
which has global management with operations in
the US, Ching, Italy, Japan and Singapore.
Reorgansing the business in these regions will atlow
us to offer custorners o full suite of products and
services, while operating with similar capabilities to
those we already have in North America and Europe.
It 1s also expected to reduce our costs by leveraging
global procurernent.

‘Severn Trent Services
delivered an encouraging
performance, despite
continuing challenging
conditions in some of
its markets.’
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Operating Services

Despite a flat market, revenue grew i the US.
Increased efficdiencies made our existing contracts
in the UK and Ireland more profitable. In Italy
performance was ogain offected by economic
conditons and continued polibcal uncertanty.

In the US, fewer existing controcts came up for
renewal across the market. We therefore focused on
increasing the praportion of our own contracts that
we retaned on renewal. Overall, we secured 31 new
projects and renewed 46 contracts, iImproving our
renewal rate for contracts of more than $100,000

g year to 85%.

In Italy our performance was negatively impacted
by the political and economic ermronment. We saw
a lower level of actmity and we restructured the
business to reduce our ongoing cost base

Our 25 year, £1 0 bithon operobon and mamtenance
contract with the UK Ministry of Defence (MoD) cut
leakage to an oll tme low, exceeding the MoD’s
targets. Envronmental performance remains strong.
Our Severn Trent Response business in Ireland
operated well n a difficult econornic ermronment,
while the Severn Trent Retoll Utility Services

business wos generally flat due 1o the stagnont

UK housing market.

Severn Trent - serving the emerging

UK business market

Sevemn Trent and Costain formed a business in
June 2012 to offer lorge multi-site water users a
single water and waste water supplier. Severn Trent
Costain operates across Englond, Woles and
Scotlend, focusing on high volurne commeraiol and
industnal users for whom water 1s a cribeal process
element. Tt helps custormers to improve efficiency,
save costs, manage legal complionce and nsk, and
solve their water efficiency challenges. It builds on
the success of our existing business with Costan,
which began in 2005 and delvers operations and
maintenance for a portion of the UK MoDYs water
and waste water gssets.

In October 241 2, Severmn Trent Costain signed

First Milk, @ major UK dairy, as a custorer. First Milk is
the first business custormer to switch since the UK
Government amended the regulations to allow
more busmesses to choose their water supplier.
Sevvemn Trent Costain now supplies, manoges and
monitors First Milk's water aqross six major sites In
England, Wales and Scotiond, swotving more than
600 rilhon fitres of water a yedar.

Continuous improvement

Environment

We must manage and measure our impact-on

the global water emaronment. Dunng the year, the
Delaware (US) Department of Natural Resources and
£nvironmenta! Control recogrused our commrmernt
to the erwironment, when it gove its Clean Water
Partnership Award to the Lewes, Delaware woste
water tregtment plant, for achueving 100%
comphance over the last five years

The focilities we operote i Lititz, Pennsytvario (US)
receved the US Emionmental Protection Agency's
{EPA) 2012 Source Water Protection Award.

Thus recogruses organsations and communities that
take extraordinary steps to protect drinking water
sources n the EPA’s mid-Atlantic region. Lititz wos
recognised for protecting groundwater sources
from contarmination through its joint wettheod
protechon programme with the netghbounng
Warwick Township Municipal Authority Noather
commurities in Pennsylvania hove receved this
award since 2009

People, health and safety

Protecting hedlth and safety is one of our core
values. We advocate safety in dll we do, bath
professionaily and personally. Our performance in
the year was solid, continuing the emproving trend
nrecent years

This continuous improvernent was evident mn our
Operating Services business in Italy, where our
employees worked 27 months without alost time
incident {LTH (ended n February 2013). In the US,
our dinton, Oldahorma Operating Services praject
recerved the Waoter Enaronment Federatiords 2012
Burke Safety Award for having the best safety record
of dll waste water treatment fadlibes in the state
Other successes in US Operating Services induded
Bnstol, Tennessee celebrating 13 years without an
LTL, and the Guif region murucipal utility distnet
maintenonce depatment working for three years
without an LTL while performing some of the miast
hazardous work across Sevem Trent Senvces. For the
fourth consecutive year, Operating Services in the
UK and Ireland receved an award from the Royal
Socety for the Prevenhion of Acadents forits
exceptional track record m heatth and safety

Image removed




To develop our people we have introduced o
learming and developmenit progromme that has
identified top talent throughout the orgarusation.
We're working to develop and ermnpower all
employees to think creatively and to drive change
ocross Severn Trent Senaces,

We carry out engagerment surveys with around 25%
of our employees each quarter. The most recent
survey showed engagernent at 1%, ahead of our
72% target. This reflects a more positive atttude to
the business os we've stepped up our communcohions
to employees and beqgin to see the benefits of
rearganssing and refoausing the business.

Nearty 1,000 of our people took part in the

Gobal Corporate Chollenge this year Thisisa 16
week prograrnme m which teams of people record
therr physical octivity each day. Our employees
walked a combined 11 bithon steps, the equivalent
of 18 tmes round the world, More than 26,000
teams took part globally and we had two teams

in the top 100 and seven n the top 1,000. We dlso
came first in the global gos, electne and water
supply category. Our partiopants reported benefits
indudmg weight loss, increased energy and
productwvity, better stress management and
improved overall health.

Process

We laok to contmuatly improve the way we work
and have started to roll out the Severn Trent group’s
*Safer Better Faster approach to continuous
improvernent. Water Purificabion was the first to
implement ‘Safer Better Fuster’ and we are now
rolling it out acress the business.

We're also mvesting m our systerns. This ndudes
implementing a new enterprise resource planmng
systemn oaoss mudh of the business. Ths sa
significant upgrade to our previous system and wall
help us, In conjunction with the ‘Safer Better Faster’
programme, to improve custarmer serice and

our operations. Over the next 18 to 24 months,
we'll be moving ahead with a nurmber of other IT
improvernents, nduding a human resources system
to consolidate all our global HR actmties, a global
custormer relationship management system and
new cloud based office management systerns.

We also enhanced our gavernance during the year
As the business grows internationally, we wanted
assurance that we have controls fully m place to
protect our mvestments and ensure we're

ethicatly This work induded due diligence across our
supplier base and our channel partners

Product technology

We recognise the importance of maintaining a
pipeline of new products and enhancements to
existing products. We do this intemally and through
relationships with technology partners, with whom
we can jointly develop products for new and exssting
markets We have several new products at different
stages, including the ongoing developrment of
BALPURE®, as discussed earlier.
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Outlook

To compete in theglobal market, Sevemn Trent
Services must be leon and effectve, and provide
quality products and services that deliver value.
The regonalisation of our Water Punficotion
structure, new product developrment and
enhancements to exsting products undertaken
inthe last 12 moniths are crtical elemnents of
our long term strategy.

Emergng markets continue to provide opportunities
for Water Purficaton, offsetting conbnuing
challenges n tradional markets.

Existing political and economic factors continue
to hamper mmediate prospects in our US and
Tialy Operating Senices businesses. However,
opportunites to acquire existng projects are
surfocng in the US as competitors exit the market
and seek altemative strategies The potential for
future growth in [taly is present given proposed
trvestment of €65 0billion in the water sector over
the next 30 years, though timing 1s uncertain.

In both countres we will continue to reduce costs
and increase efficences of exsting projects.

Renewables and green energy

For the second successive year, our renewable
energy operation generated almost one quarter

of the electricity used by our regulated busness,
Severn Trent Water Maintaring this performance
was particulory challenging because of the unusually
hugh rainfall, which increases the requirement for
purnping and leads to higher energy consumpbion

We extended our cop digestion plant in
Nottingharmshire and began constructing our

first three large wind turbne installations.

These investments will prowde another big step
towards our target of generating 30% of Sevem
Trent Water's electnaty from renewables in 2015.
The rermnaining output growth will come from further
imvestment in sewage digestion effiaency, new
hydro generation at several raw water reservorrs,
and injecting part of the gas produced from sewage
digestion at our largest generating station into the
UK gaos networlc Bio-methane injection is an
emerging technology in the UK but commeonploce in
Northern Erope It involves removing contaminants
from the gas, increasing the methane concentration,
adding an odourant and pressuring to inject the gas
into the nearby tronsimissicn network. Cur plant,
whichwill go live in 2014, will be one of only a
handful in the UK and is likely to be the lorgest.

We lead the UK inthe anaerobic digestion of sewage
and produce most of our renewable energy this way
We're now developing plans to expand into the
emerging UK opportuntty for food waste digestion
We'll be able to offer a competitive service and see
the potentiol for ths to extend our renewables
production beyond 30% as we approach 2020.
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Non-regulated

Today...

We generate renewable
electricity and heat
from sewage

Our largest waste water treatment works at Mnworth recerves
the sewoge from over two milkion custorners n and around
Birmenghom. The treatrnent processes ensure that the:
deaned effluent can be retumed to the river The remcining
organk matter ts first used to generate renewcble energy
using the anaercbic digestion process and then recydled to
ognculture where it octs os a valuable bio-fertiliser

Anaerobic digestion uses bactena smilar to those mthe
human stomach to convert the sewage into a methane nich
brogas. The gas 15 then used as a fuel for engines wiach drive
generators to produce electncty Heat ts recavered fromithe
engine exhoust and cooling systems to maintain the digesters’
ternperature ot 38°C. This part of the process < known as
combined heat ard power ((HP) Renewable energy has been
produced in this way ot Minworth for aver S0 years but cutput
has sigruficontly increased during the last few years fallowing
majer investment in the processes. The generating stabon
satisfies all of the electncity needs of the site and alse exports
a significant armount nto the nabonal gnd.

See our fim utwwwsaﬂntrentcorﬁlenewat;wle;

Tomorrow...

We will be injecting
renewable gas into the
national grid

We are planning to invest a further £12.7 milbon on renewable
energy at the site over the year to replace [ife expired CHP units
and to ntroduce 0 new process that will increase efficency by
njecting around a thard of the gas iInto the nattonat gas gnd.

The process of bio-methane mection 15 detaied on poge 31
Our plont which goes Ive in 2016 will be one of a handful in
the UK and it is likely to be the langest. Thes plant will make
more efficient use of the energy within the gos and os such
quaifies for the finanoal support of the Renewcble Heat
Incentive that the UK Government has recently introduced.




Looking forward

Since we published the first of our Changing course
docurments back in 2010, Sevem Trent hos played
a'eading role in shaping the future of the UX water
industry We've conbinued this ent n the
last 12 months, with o series of new publicobons.
We issued a paper on designing bolanced incertives
that drive the nght behaviour by woter companies.
KPMG wrote a report for us on finonang water
infrastructure beyond 2015 Alongside National
Gnd, we produced a paper on encouraging equity
finanang n the water and energy sectors.

We're pleased that our efforts have been productive
The changes from the UK Govemment, in the form
of the Water Bill, and frarn Ofiwat in its recently
publshed consultation on the framework for PR14,
are aligned with our own proposals. Tegether, thesse
prormise the maost significant changes to water
industry regulation since privatisation in 1989

The challenges for the industry

Water industry regulation needs to change because
the sector has to deal with significant challenges in
the coming years.

Affordability 15 a key therne for the next five years.
Households are foang dedining real incornes and
welfare reform, ntensifying the need to keep water
bills as low as possible Pressure is also coming from
business customers, who want to better manage
their costs and have greater choice of water supplier,

We need to respond te cimate change ond water
scardty Recent expenerce shows that the UK's
weather pattems are changing, with droughts
followed by floods. Water companies need to
effectively manage customer demand, make better
use of exishing water resounces on a nabonal rather
than regional basts, and increose the network’s
resilience, This would olso create mare copacty

to move water, making water trading betweery
regions easier.

The water industry must also be more sustainoble,
This means rebalancing abstrocton and taking less
water frorn areas where it's already offecting the
erwvirenment. It olso requires the indusiry to reduce
its bias towards copital expenditure and promote
operationat solutions, such as improving
catchment management rather than bullding

new treatment works.

‘Water industry regulation
needs to change because
the sector has to deal with
significant challenges in
the coming years.’

The Water Bill

The UK Government is responding to these
challenges through the Water Bill, which munisters
hope to enact in 2013/14. This builds on 1its 2011
Water White Paper, which set aut a vision for

“‘a restent, affordoble and sustainable water
supply network’

The Bill covers four main areas. First, it increases the
scope for non-household retall competition. This is
atready possible to o imited extent but the Bill will
make it easier for business customers to switch
supplier This reates an opportunity for us and we
have set up Sevem Trent Costain in response.
However, while retcll competrtion is positive becouse
it encourages effinency and promotes choice,

it won't transform the sector's econormics.

Secondly, the Bill also dllows more upstream
competition and in particulor water trading This will
enable better use of national water resources, a
sigruficant rnprovernent on the current situation
where companies have to look within their region for
solutions to water shortages. This will lecd to better
resiience ond lower costs for customers. However,
the nght economicmodel needs to be developed to
enable water trading to happen.

Thirdly, it s designed to enhance the physiood
resilence of the industry by, for example,
encouraging fanmers and other land owners to
store water and to danfy the dubies of Ofwat to
promote resdience

Finally, the Bl will reform the mergers and
acquisitons regime While major rmergers will still be
untikely, the changes create the potenbal for a more
efficient industry structure, reducing costs which can
be shared with customers.

Overall, the Water Bill includes measures which are
broadly in line with those we set out in Changing
course, and we’ll continuie to support it as it posses
through Parhlament.
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Business review Looking forward

The PR14 framework

In Jonuary 2013, Ofwat published a consultation on
its frornework and approach for PR14. The proposed
framework has four key elements.

First, it introduces separate price controls for the
retall and wholesale parts of the business. This gives
companies a greater Incentive to provide the best
custorner service at lowest cost, ond will create
more choice for non-household custormers, The ROV
will stay with wholesale, which currently generates
around 90% of Sevem Trent Water’s revenue This
rmeans that the vast majority of our reveriues wilk
still be based on the RCV and will be adjusted for the
movement in the RPI each year.

Ofwat 1s aming to be less prescripbive about what
campanies deliver dunng the next regulatory cydle,
s0 It's asking them to set the high level cutcomes
they will airn to achieve. These outcomes will be
focused on benefits for custorners and will give
companies more leeway to iInnovate in the way
they deliver ther plans.

Companies will also face fewer but greater
incentives, which will focus requlation where it's
needed most. Companies con choose larger
incentives for outperformance but would also face
mare signficant penalties for underperformance.
The new regime will also, in theory, address the
industry’s bias towards capital expenditure, as the
model will move more to a total expenditure

(or totex) basis, Companies will be able to choose
whether to recover this expenditure on o ‘pay as you
go’ basis, which will be beneficial for cash flow, or by

adding it to their RCV and earming a retum, which will

be better for their fong term retums.

Finally, the framework has a much greater emphasis
on customer and stakeholder engogernent.
Customer challenge groups (such os our Water
Forum, which i discussed on poges 18 and 20} will
influence cornparies as they develop ther plans,
which should lead to plans that are better informed.
Companves will still own their plans but they must
show that they have listened to their challenge
group and expigin their approach where their view

differs The customer challenge group will also report

on the quadlity of the company’s engagement and
whether it supports tts business plan This will n part
determine the depth of Ofiwat’s review of the plon

Ciwat's proposals are still at the consultation stoge

‘Companies will also face
fewer but greater incentives,
which will focus regulation
where it's needed most.’

and there are important details that need to be
finalised. For example, it's important to get the level
of details nght when setting outcomes. Outcomes
that are too detalled wil lose the benefits of nsk
based Conversely, if there’s not enough
detail it will be hard to define meaningful measures
of success. We also need to know more about

key elements such as the basis for the averoge
retail cost catculations and how the totex baseline
expenditure will be set. Overall, though, the draft
PR14 framework contains no surprises for us and
we're supportive of its aims.

Severn Trent Water's April 2013 consultation, Your
water, Your choices’ sets out outline proposals for
what the company could achieve during 2015-2020,
with customer bills forecast to nse by no more than
inflation dunng the penod. There are a nurmber of
importort areas where there is scope for choice,
however customers’ and stakeholders’ views will
directly influence the finol business plan to be
submitted to Ofwat in December 2013,

Sustainable finandng

In the longer teym, the wiater ndustry will need
more capital It has mvested £100 billion since
privatisation but the challenges outimed earlier will
require further significant investment. We believe
that investors will cortinuee to fund ths if they
remain confident in the industry

Inour view, it's unlikely that debt can provde all this
funding. High geanng transfers nsks to customers
and the failure of one company will affect all the
others, by damaoging their chances of rasing further
debt. The 2008/09 finoncial ansis also showed that
comparees cannot guarantee access to debt finance
whenthey need . Our condusion is that there’s a
need for long temn equity i a balonced finanang
structure, which rmeans. that equity holders will
have to be upproprictely rewarded for providing
those funds.

In the short term, we also need to look at the way
the weighted averoge cost of caprtal (WACQ) s
calculated for PR14. In current market conditions,
the coprtal asset pnang model, which 1s used to
calculate the WACC, could prodixe an unsustainable
answer, Other models should be used to aross check
and Justify the cost of equity and debt. We also
believe that it's possible to differentiate the cost of
capitol bosed on cormpany nsk. We have made all
these poinits In a senes of publications over the yeor
and are engaged with stakeholders to discuss the

future implications.

Summeary

In summary, we support the general direction of
the Water Bill and the PR14 framework. While the
changes they propose are evolutionary rather
than revoluticnary, they are still signficant and
will help the industry to address its challenges,
We're pleased to have played an important part
in shaping these proposals and wil continue to
do so os they progress.




Financial review

Group financicl performance

The group has delivered o good financial performance.

At the regulated business, Sevem Trent Wter, reverues were
negatively mpacted by lower consumnption, with bad weather
in the early part of the year also dmang higher operational
activities and thus costs, to meet the opergting performance
standards our customers and requiators expect. We delvered
a good performance on those costs that we directly control.
For those costs where we have less influgnce — power, quas!
taxes and bad debts - we saw iIncreases in the first two,

while we rmamntaned performance on bad debts at 2.2% of
nsing revenues (UK GAAP) To complete the picture at Sevemn
Trent Water we maintained our long term plons for investment
m year three of this five year regulatory plan and invested

£19 0 milkon more thon the previous year in mfrastructure
which 1s expensed under IFRS accounting rules.

In our non-regulated business, Severn Trent Services, we
refocused its business actvities and conftinued to invest in
business development where we see future growth potentiol.
Ifwe exclude these factors the business achieved modest
revenue and profit grawth in these markets which is
encouraging for the future.

The group continued to look to its long term firanang,
successfully issuing its first bond into the noscent UK retar
bond market and issuing a new 13 year band into the stedding
wholesale market raising £500 million at 3.625%, the lowest
cost Sevemn Trent hos issued in its recent history

PBIT 15 profit before interest and tax; underlying PBIT 1 PBIT
exduding exceptional ttemns os set out in note 8.

Group turnover was £1,831 6 milhon (£1,770 6 million),
an increase of 3.4% over last year

Underying group PBIT decreased by 1 2% to £498 O million
{£504.2 million). The pnmary factors affecting undedying PBIT
are desaibed in the commentary on Sevemn Trent Water and
Sevem Trent Services below.

There were net exceptional tems before tax of £5.8 milion
{£50.9 millon), Group PBIT increased 4.8% to £492.2 milion
{£469.8 millon).

Regulated - Severn Trent Water

Tumover in Severn Trent Water increased by 3.7% n 2012/13,
to £1,511. 0 million Prices increased by mftation from 1 April
2012 which gove nse to an marease in tumover of £76 2 rmilion.
The wet summer weather reduced consumpbon from metered
custormers and overoll lower metered consurnption year on
year reduced tumover by £19.3 million. New growth, net of the
impact of meter optants, increased tumover by £1.1 milion
which was offset by other decreases amounting to £4.5 millon

Underlying PBIT was stable year on year at £500 9 million.
Drrect operating costs increased by £18 4 milion (see below),
there was an ncrease in nfrostructure renewals expenditure of
£18 8 millon and depreaation, profit on disposal of fixed assets
and release of deferred income, mcreased by £14 4 millon,

In the following analysis costs related to prvate drains and
sewers of £104 million {£4 7 million incurred in the prior year)
have been exdluded to give a conaistent view of operating costs
year on year. In total, controllable costs were up £1.2 million, or
0.3%. Employment costs mcreased by 12.1% to £225.0 milbon
partly due to delvery of senace mprovemnents and the growth
in our capital programme which led to lobour and related
overheads capttalised £9 9 milion higher than n 2012 at
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£86.8 mullon. Hired ond contracted costs decreased by

£13.6 milkon to £139 1 milkon Overall net tabour costs,
induding hired and contracted, were 0.3% higher year on year,
Raw matenats and consumables at £43.4 million were 7 3%
lower than the same period inthe pnor yeay. Other operating
costs increased by £3 8 million to £46.7 million.

Intotal, non-contrallable costs were up £12.5 million or 6 6%.
Bad debts were 5.0% higher at £31.8 million, representing

2 2% of tumover (UK GAAP), stable year on year. An increase
of £6 1 million in net power costs to £57.9 millkan arose due
toincreased consumption as a result of the wet weather

ond higher stnke prices on our energy swaps Quasi taxes,
which compnse rates, service chorges and the Carbon
Reduction Commitrment, mcreased by £4.9 miliion to

£112.5 million, mainly due to an ncrease N rates,

Dunng the financial year, Severn Trent Water invested

£555 4 mrillion (UK GAAP after deducting gronts and
contnbubions) (2012 £474 2 miflion) in fixed assets and
mantaining and improving its nfrastructure network.

Included in this totat was net infrastructure renewals
expenditure of £147 7 miftlion (2012 £128.9 million), charged to
the income staterment under IFRS

Non-regulated — Severn Trent Services

Increase/
2013 2012 (decrease)
£m fm %
Jumover . O
Servicesosreported - 3285 3323 (Li%)
Sructurdlchanges 21D @0.H
Impact of exchange
rate fluctuations - 03
Like for like 307.4 2919 53%
Increase/
2013 2012  (decreose)
£m £m %
UndeyingPBIT e v s e
Servicesosreported 127 180 (29.4%)
Stucturddchanges 12 G
Impact of exchange
rate fluctuabons - (0.1)
Like for ke 139 144 (3.5%)

In Sever Trent Services, the sole of our Analytical Senvices and
Meterng Services bustnesses further focused this segment on
the water and waste water markets we senvse, There was like
for ke growth in sdles year on year in both our core Operating
Services and Water Punfication businesses. However both
businesses were impacted by exceptional costs totollmg

£14.6 milion, the detail of which 1s in the exceptiond items
saction below

Reported turhover was £328.5 million in 2012413, a decrease of
1.1% vs. the prior year, and reported underlying PBIT decreased
by 29 4% to £12.7 miltion.
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After adjusting for changes in the group and the smpact of
exchange rate fluctuations tumaver on a like for ke corstant
currency basis was up 5.3% and underlying PBIT measured on
the some basis was down 3.5%.

Operating Services
Tumover for the year on o like for like basis was £194 1 rrillion,
an incregse of 0.2% compored with the pnor year.

Water Purification
Tumover for the year on o like for like basis was £113 4 mition,
on inaease of 15.7% compared with the prior year.

Corporate and cther
Corporate overheads amounted to £14 1 million {2012

£15 6 milion). Our other businesses generated an underlying
toss of £3.2 million (2012 profit of £0 1 million) This nduded
an underyng toss on our captive nsurance activity of

£1 8 mithon and an underlying loss of £0.2 mulkon in our
renewables business ansing rnanly from feasibility and

other ssmitar costs written off. There were exchange goins

i Corporate of £0 3 million (2012 £0.1 million).

Exceptional items

There were net excephional tems before tox in the year to

31 March 2013 of £5 8 million 2012 £50 9 million) incduding

exceptional operating costs of £43 million (2012: £34 4 miltion)

which are described in further detafl below and a net

exceptional loss on disposal of businesses of £1 5 milion,

Exceptional operoting costs included.

- InSevern Trent Water, a profit of £13.3 million ansing from
the disposal of a rumber of properties, and

* in Severn Trent Services excepbonal costs of £14 6§ million
cormprising:

- impamnent charges totallmg £9.1 mittion; including writing
off the remainng goodwill irvested m Spain (£4 6 milion)
as economic conditions in this country show no signs of
improverment and the balance (£4 5 million} impanng oll
hustoncal iInvestment in the development of a purification
product which ts showing poor performance in testing,

- provisions {otalling £5.5 milliory, induding provisions for
a commeraal legat dispute and for serior personnel
restructuring charges at Operating Services in Italy; and

+ in Corporate there were exceptional costs of £3.0 million

related to professional fees for a transaction that did

not proceed.

Net finance costs

The group’s net finance costs before excephonal items were
£231 9 rnillion, compared with £229.0 milion m the prior year.
There were exceptiond finance costs n the pnor year of

£16.5 rmullion ansing from the early redernption of debt.

Total finance costs were £231.9 million (2012 £245 5 million)
The effective interest rate, Induding index lnked debt, for the
yearwos 5 9% (2012 6 4%) The cash interest rate was 4.9%
{2012. 5.0%) RPI was lower year on year resulting in a reduction
n the non-cash nterest charge. This was offset by an inareased
cash interest charge on a higher level of net debt.

Losses on financial instruments

The groupuses finoncial dervatives solely to hedge nsks

ossocated with ts normat business activiies mduding

» exchange rate exposure on bormowings denorminated in
foreign cumencdies;

» interest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings, and

+ exposures to increases n electncity prices.

Accounting rules require that these dervatives cre revalued ot

each balance sheet date and, unless the stnct aiteria for cash

flow hedge accounting are met, the changes in value ore taken

to the income statement. IFthe nsk that s being hedged does

nat impact the income statement in the same penod thenan

accounting mismatch anses from the hedging octivities and

there is a net charge or credit to the income staterment.

Where the derivatives are held to their full term, these
mismatches are expected to net out. Furthermore, the chonges
m value that are recorded dunng the Ives of the derivatives,
unless crystallsed, do not represent cash flows. Therefore the
group presents adjusted earmings figures that excdude these
non-cashtemns An analys:s of the amounts charged to

the ncorme staternent in the penod is presented in note 12

to the finanaial staterments.

Profit before tax

Underlying group profit before tax decreased by 3 3% to
£266 3 milion {2012 £275.3 million). Group profit before
tax wos £215 2 milhion (2012: £156.7 rmilion}

Taxation

The current year tax charge before exceptional tems was

£57 1 millon (2032 chorge of £69 2 milbon). A prior year
current tox credit of £29.2 millon (2012 credit of £8.7 million)
has ansen due to adjustments to prior year tax computations.
These prmanty related to an industry ogreement over the
treatment of nfrastructure income. The deferred tax credit
before exceptional tax was £4 7 milion (2012, credit of

£9 1 milion)

The group's UK subsidiary companies have odopted the new
accourtting standard FRS 101 inthe cumrent year This has
changed the stahutory accourts that form the basts for those
comparses’ corporation tax cormputations, The most significant
impact of thes change is that certan amounts that had been
taxed in previous years will now be recogrused as profits and
taxed in future penods. Therefore, to prevent such tterns being
taxed twice, the tax dlready pond on such tems is repayable
The tmpact of this change wos an exceptional aredit of

£40.5 redlion to cument tax and an exceplional charge of
£38.8 millon to defered tax

There wos an exceptionol credt of £36.7 milllon (2012
£69 1 milkon) arising from the reduction in corperation
tax rate from 24% to 23% with effect from 1 Apiil 2013,

The total tox credit for the year was £15.2 million (2012 credit
of £17.7 million)

The underying effectve rate of curment tax, exciuding prior year
credits and exceptional tax aedtts, catulated on profit before
tax, exceptonal itemns before tax and gains/(lasses) on financial
mstruments was 25 4% (2012: 25 7%).

We expect the effectve rate of current tax, as defined above,
for 2013/14 ta be in the range of 23% to 25%.
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Profit for the period and eamings per share

Profit for the penod was £230 4 milion (2012: £174.4 millon).
Adusted basic eamings per share (before exceptional tems,
gans/{losses) on finanoo! mstruments and deferred tax)
were 98.9 pence (2012 889 pence) {see note 15) Basic
earnings per share were 95.7 pence (2012 72 5 perxe)

Cash flow

2013 2012

£m £m

Cosh generated flomoperations 7312 7259
Net coptalexperditure ~ (6018)  (351.2)
Netnterestpoid .. L2334 (2104
Tox (pod/receved (723 (720
Cther cash flows {0.5) 10
Feecashfow _ 230 _913
Acguisitions and dispasals 111 i -
Dwdends (32200 _(1590)
Net ssue of shares 53 24
Chongeinnetdebt fromcashlows __ (2826) _(653)
Non-cash movemnents {46.9) (33.7)
Changeinnetdebt i (329.5) (99.0)
‘Net debt 1 April T (39678) (38688
Net debt at 31 March (4,2973) (3,5678)
Netdebtcomprises: =
Coshend coshequnvolents 4036 2951
Bank overdrafts U L. S ]
Crossoumency swaps hedgngdebt 1007 1359
Bankloans e e .. (38D (8523)
Otherloans _ __ __(B8405) (33269)
Finonce leases (201.6) {219.0)
4,2973) (3967.8)

Cash generated from operations was £731.2 million
(2012 £7259 milhon). Coprtal expenditure net of grants
and proceeds of sales of fixed assets was £401 8 million
{2012 £351 2 milien). Net interest paid mcreased to
£233 4 rrillion (2012, £210.4 million),

Net debt at 31 March 2013 was £4,297.3 million

{2012 £3,967.8 milon) Balance sheet gearing (ret debt/net
debt plus equity} ot the year end was 83.6% (2012. 80.2%)
Net debt, expressed as o percentoge of Regulatory Capital Volue
at 31 March 2013 of £7,364 million was 58 4% (2012, $6.0%).
The group’s net interest charge, exduding gans/{losses) on
finanaal instruments and net finance costs from pensions,
was covered 3.4 trmes (2012: 3 4 times} by profit before
interest, tax, depreaation and excephional iterms, and
2.1times (2012 2.2 times) by undertying PEIT.

The fair volue of the group’s net debt ot 31 March 2013 1s
estimated to be £5,071 1 million (2012: £4,579.3 million)
compared to the book value of £4,297 3 millon (2012

£3,967 8 million). Discounted future cash flows are used

{0 determmne far values for debt. Discount rates are denved
from yield curves based on quoted interest rates and are
adjusted for the group’s credit nsk.

Treasury management and liquidity

The group’s pincipal treasury manogement objectves are*

+ to access a brood range of sources of finance to obtain both
the quonturn required ond lowest cost compatible with the
need for corinued auoilabity,

+ to maittam an investment grade credit rehng, and

» to maintain a flexble and sustainable balance sheet structure

The group cortinues to carefully monitor iquidity. At 31 March
2013 the group had £403.6 milicn in cash and cash equvatents
and committed undrawn facilmes omounting to £500 million.
The group s funded for ts investrment and cosh flow needs up
to January 2015,

In July 2012 the group ssued a £75 milen sterling
dencminated RPI inked bond in the retail bond market.
A coupon of 1.3% is payable on the notes which are due
to mature m fuly 2022

In Jonuary 2013 the group issued £500 million 3 625%
Guaranteed Notes under its Furo Medium Term Note
programme The notes have a 13 year term.

Cash s wwested in deposits with highly rated banks and bguidity
funds and the list of counterparties s regularly reviewed and
reported to the boord.

Treasury policy and operations

Our treasury affairs are managed centrolly and in occordance
with our Treasury Procedunes Manuel and Policy Statement.

The treasury operation's role is to manage iquidity, fundng,
rwvestrment and our finanaial nsk, including risk from volatilty n
interest and {to o lesser extent) currency rates and counterparty
credt risk. The board determines matters of trecsury policy and
its approval is required for certan treasury transactions.

Our strategy 1s to access o broad range of sources of finance to
obtan both the guantum requred and lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued awillability. Our princpal operarting
subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, s a long term business
charactensed by multi year investment programmes.

Our strategic funding cbjectves reflect this and the lgquidity
position and the avaiobility of committed funding are essentil
to meeting our objectives and cbligations. We therefore aim for
a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds aocross
a range of funding sources at the best possible economic cost.

The group’s curment pelicy for the managernent of mterest rate
nsk requiires that not bess than 45% of the group’s borrowings
should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of
miterest rote swaps or forward rate agreements. At 31 March
2013, interest rates for 76 8% of the group’s net debt of
£4,297.3 milion were fixed.

We use finonaal denvatives solely to monage nsks assonated
with our normal business actrbes, We do not hold or tssue
denvative fmandial instruments for finandal trading

Except for debt raised m foreign currency, which is fully hedged,
our business does not mvolve sigruficant exposure to foreign
exchange transactions We have investments i vanous assets
denominated m foreign currences, pnncipally the US dollar

and the euro Our current policy 1s to hedge an element of the
currency tronslation risk associated with certam foreign currency
denomninated assets.
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The group 1ssues netes in foreign currency under i Euro
Medium Term Notes (EMTN} programme and uses cross
currerwy swaps to convert the proceeds to sterting. The effect of
these swaps 15 that mterest and prnapal payments onthe
borowings are denominated in sterling and hence the aurrency
risk 1s eliminated. The forelgn currency notes and the cross
currency swaps are recorded in the balonce sheet at therr fair
values and the changes in for volues are taken to gons/fiosses)
on financial mstruments in the incorme statement. Since the
terms of the swaps closely match those of the underlying
notes, such changes tend to be broodly equal and opposite.

The group holds mterest rate swaps with a net nohional principal
of £364.9 million and cross curency swaps with a net notonal
prnapdl of £610 2 million which economically act to hedge the
interest rate risk on floatng rate debt or the exchange rate risk
on certain foreign aurrency bormowings, However, the swaps do
not meet the hedge accounting rules of [AS 39 ond therefore
the changes n fair value are taken to gains/(losses) on finanaal
mstruments in the income statement. Dunng the year there
was a charge of £26 0 milkon in relation to these instruments.

Some of these swaps, which were entered into in 2000-2005,
include aptions for the counterparty to terminate the contracts
at specified points in their lives. During the year the group
terminated three of these contracts at a cash outiay of

£44 3 millen. These swaps had a notional principal amount

of £1000 million As ¢ result of the termination the
corresponding armount of our net debt will now be subject to
current market interest rates, which are presently lower than
the arounts that were payable under the swaps.

The far value at 31 March 2013 of remaining swaps with
terminction options wos a bability of £110.0 midlton and ther
aggregate notional prinaipat amount was £275 0 million,

The next termination options for the remaining swaps occur
between November 2014 and Moy 2016 ond the group will
actively manage its exposure to these controcts over that penod
The group has entered into a series of forward starbing interest
rate swaps with a national principal amount of £450,0 milion
that hedge the interest rate risk on the anticipated borrowing
requiremernts of Severn Trent Water for AMPS. These swaps are
treated s cash flow hedges and the changes in far value are
taken to other comprehensive mcome.

The group manages its electricity costs through @ combination
of forward price contracts and financial dervatives. All of our
pawer requirernents for the first four years of AMP5 ond some
of the remaining year have been hedged in this way, ot prices
below those allowed in the Final Determination.

The group’s long term credit ratings are:

Long terrn retngs Severn Trent Plc Sevem Trent Water
Moodys = _ . __Boa M
Standard and Poor’s BBB- BBE+
Pensions

The group operates two definad benefit pension schemes,

of whach the Severn Trent Pension Scherne (STPS) is by for the
lorgest. Formal tnenniol actuanal valuations and funding
agreernents for the STPS were renewed os at 31 March 2010.
The next trienral valuaton as at 31 March 2013 is curently
underway. Defictt reduction contributions indude a payrment of
£10 0 million per annum n cash and a further £8 2 million per
anhum through an asset badked funding amangerent.

The final solary sections of the persion schemes were cosed
to new entronts in 2006 and the age profile of scheme
partcipants s expected to nse and hence service costs are also
expected to nse until the schemes are closed to future accrual.

The defined benefit pension schemes will dlose to future acaugal
on 31 March 2015 A new defined contnbution pension scherme
has been established and members of the defined benefit
penston schemes will then become members of the new
defined contributon pension scheme The exsting defined
contribution pension scheme wall also be replaced by the

new pension arrangements with effect from 1 Apnt 2015

From 1 Apnl 2012 new employees hove been outomaticolly
enrolled into this scheme and those employees who were not
members of a Severn Trent scherne were Gutomatically
enrolled into this scheme from 1 Aprd 2013

The key octuanal assumptions for the defined benefit schemes
have beenupdated for these accounts. Onan JAS 15 bass,

the estmated net position of the schemes was a defiat of
£383 7 mithan ot 31 March 2013 This compares to a defict of
£345 8 million at 31 March 2012 The movermnents nthe

net defict are summarised in note 27 The funding level has
remaned constant at 81.8%

The mayor assurmptions used in the voluation of the defined
benefit pension schermes were as follows

2013 2012
% %
Prceinflbon .. .32 31
Soarynceases 30 36
Pensonmoreasesnpoyment 32 31
Pensionincreases ndeferment 32 31
Dscountrate .48 49
Long term rate of retum on equities 6.6 658
Rernaining Lfe expectancy for T T
members currently aged 65 years) .
cmen . . a5 o A2
—wormen 246 25.1
Remaining Ife expectoncy at oge 65
for members curently aged 45 (years) . _
cmen — e 22 N8
—women 262 259
The followng table summarises the estimated impact on
scheme labilibes resutting from changes to key actuarial
assumgtions whist holding all otiher assumptiens constont,
Impoact on
Assumphion Change in assumphbion scheme bobilites
Discount rate Increcsef/decense Decrease/inarease
e e YO1% by £38Omilion
Pnce inflabion Ingegse/decrease Increase!
e e - .. yOX% | by £35.0 million
Mortality Increase in life Increase
expectancy by 1 year by £55.0 milion

Accounting polices and presentation of the
finandol statements

Our consolsdated finandial stotements are prepared in
accordance with Intemational Finanacl Reporbing Standards
that hove been endorsed by the Eurcpean Union.
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Risk management

Our approach to risk

Across the group our approach to nsk
balonces the need to effectvely manage
inherent nsks and also the opportunity
to mprove aur performance through
selected rsks.

Within the largest part of our group,

Severn Trent Water, our approach reftects

our status as a requlated utilty providing
essential services and operating as part
of the Critical Natronal Infrastructure for
the UK. The nature of our Severn Trent
Water business is such that there are
some ssigrificant mheverit nsks as
Hlustreted i the section headed Prncipal
nsks’ We am to have a strong control
framework in place to enoble us to
understand our nsks and monage

them effectively

Although the Severn Trent Services
busmesses are not generally regulated,
we provide products and services for
cients who operate m regulated
envronmments and, as a result, we take
asimilar approach to nsk.

Adoss the group the managerment of
risks tokes place within the overall
governance framework which indudes
dear accountabilties and delegated
outhortty limits.

Qur Enterprise Risk

Management process

We continue to use our established
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
process aaoss the group to assess and
manage our most significant rsks,

We analyse bath the possible couses
of a nsk ond what the impact would be
if the nsk occumred. Using this process,
we are able to consider the controls
needed to mirimise the likelhood of
nsks ocourring and thase which can
help to maamise our restience to risks.
Our assessment of risks ndudes explict
considerabion of the possible impact of
the rsk on the reputation of the group
awhole, The understanding wiich
we are able to gain from our ERM process
aliows us to put n place effective

mitigation strategies.

Key nsks are reported to the Audrit
Committee and to the boord every
six months in the form of nsk maps.

In addition, individudal nsks or speafic
nsk topics are also discussed by the
board dunng the year We also have
regutar nsk ‘deep dives’ at our executive
team meetings. These take the form

of updates fromindividual business
tearns within Sevem Trent Water on
ther progress with improving controls
and providing effectve mitigation for
ther most significant nisks.

We have also contintied with our work
to make sure that the annual business
planning process within Severn Trent
Water 1s dosely aligned to the ERM
process so that we can be confident that
our business plans adequately address
key nsk oreas

Principal risks

There are a number of significant risks
which are inherent to companies

operating water and sewage treatrnent

works, distnbution networks and related

actwities. These are shown on our
business models on pages 14 to 15 and
2610 27 ard nclude:

« we, or our dients, operate in heavly

reguloted emaronments and are
subject to many vaned, complex and
changing obligations. As result, we face
nsks associated with non-compliance;

* Severn Trent Water has an extensive
network of assets and the faiture of key
mdiadual or collections of these assets
could resutt in a significant iImpoct on
our core business actwities;

- we face nsks to the health, safety and
well-being of our people, customers
and contractors as a result of the
nature of our operatiors;

= our business operabons depend on the
effective peformance of key supply
chan partners;

« we share a concem with many other
businesses over our ability to fund
long term pension promises; and

+ we share concemns with other
husinesses over access to funding and
over the secunty of funds placed with
counterpartes, parbauary in the
current unsettied economic dmate.

Where appropnate, these are discussed

in the table of pnncpal nsks overleaf,

Risk manogement in practice

Our assets nght across our region work

24 hours o day seven days aweek to
pravide water to our customners or to toke
awary anc treat our qustomers' waste water
With somany assets working so many

hours, thlngsbreukdowncnd
we nead to know about this os soon as
possible so that senaces 1o our custormers
are not affected.

We have systerns in place to monitor the
performance of assets and processes so
that we can be alerted as soon as passible
to potental problerms. A few examples
include devices to monstor water levels in
our sewerage netwarks, chlorine levels

in pur water distnbutian network and levels
of water stored in our reservors.

The monttaring of our processes s critical to
us gned the ERM process has helped us to
h?hhgmmensksussoaahedwﬂaﬂ'\efalue
this monitonng systernand has allowed
us to put controls in place. For example,
we have reviewed our stock of oniticdl spares
to ensure contnuous monitoring can be
achieved, established an quditable process
to track changes to the monterng software
combmed with a planned back-up of the
programme; ank have set up Framework
Agreements (contracts) with cur business
partners to support us with mantoining
the system.
Effectve nsk control within these systerns
helps to reduce interruphons to custormer
suppbes, and mrwrise the nsk of sewer
flooding and pollubion events.
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Business review Risk management

Ref Whatisthensk? ~  Which partof
Severn Trent

15 gffected?

What does rt mean for us?

What are we domg to m_anage the risk?

Seven Trent
Water

1 Wen’suybemubleto
improve and mamtam
our levels of custormer
sesvice sufficently
to deliver what our
customers tell us
they want.

2 We rmy 'be unable to Group wide
respord effectively to
the opening up of the
business retail market to
competibon.

Legol and Regulutory En\nronment

3 we may be unable to
effectnvely anbapate Water
and/or nfluence
future developments in
the UK water ndustry
resutting n owr busmess
plans becoming
unsustainable.

4 Oﬁuutmqynotsupport SevemTrent
our business plan
subrrission for the next

review penod
(AMP6) for 2015-2020,
orwe may fall to meet
some of the targets
agreed with Ofwat inour
current busmness plan

Fumxretodelrverﬂusemcemstums
expect will lead to customer

Wetwveco—&d’notedprogmmafmk
underway across all parts of Severn Trent Woter

dissctisfaction and as a result wemay not - to smiprove our processes and our technology

gain custormers' support for our busmess
plon for the next pnce review penod
(AMPE) between 2015-2020

1f we are unable to provide the level of
service we want 1o our customers we
rmay also suffer finanaial penaltes under
Ofwat's SIM

Wemuy!osemcomeasuresultof
busness retall customers movng to
competitors or we may fail to successfully
grow our business by offenng a more
attroctive service winch results n
customers moving to us.

" The rnqor part of or busmess, Sevem
Trent Water, operates in o lughly
regulated ervironment. Whilst we are
broadly content with the direction of
changes proposed for our industry,
there remains a risk thet future
changes could have asignificont
impoct on Sevem Trent.

West.rmeubusmespluntoOﬁmt
every five years. When we submi our
plans, there 1s.a risk that they will not
ochieve the required Ofwat assessment
level. This may result 1n more changes
bemg required to the plan.

There 1s a nsk that we wilt be unable to
deliver all of our agreed objectves m our
curent plan, Folure to adheve the targets
could resutt in Ofiwat bemg tess wiling to
support our business plan subission for
the pext pnce review penod and could
result in addtional funding requirements
in the curent penod.

to enable us to defiver cutstanding
austormer service

We are pleased thot we are the most improved
water and sewerage company in the UK in termrs
of custorner satisfaction as measured by Ofwat’s
SIMmedasures. Whilst our performnance in the
league tables has significanty improved, it is still
not as goad as we would tke

We will continue wath our organisation wide
improvernent programmies which indude leokang
for woys ta make our processes as austomer-
frendly os possible

We have worked to :mprwe our levels of service
for all customers and we continue to focus on
offenng the lowest dharges.

Within Severn Trent Water, we are developing a
strateqy for improving our offenng to large
business custormers and we are mplementng
the necessary organsational and system changes
needed to better serve these customers.

Our joint publication with Nahonal Gnd,
‘Changing course through sustainable
financing’ which was published during the
yeor set out our proposals for secunng the
long termn future of the UK water mdustry

We will continue to engoge with our peers,
Ofwat and other requiators, UK Govemment
departments and other stokeholders to influence

“Indeveloping ourfive year phnforthenen price
review penod, we have worked dosely with our
custormers and with owr independent customer
challenge group, the Water Forumn, to ersue our
plans reflect customers’ prionties.

We operate an estoblished and robust intermal
busness plonning process. We review and update
our business plan on on annuat bass. Progress
aganst the targets ogreed m our-annudt busmess
plans s monitored each quarter This enables

us to make adjustments to plonned octvities
ifwe identify any concerrs about our obility to
achteve cur annual plans ar the five year plan
ogreed with Ofwat.

We will continue to monitor achievement of

our currert plan and to engage: with the Wter
Forurn to validate our proposals for the next price
review penod.




Business review Risk management

Ref Whatistherisk?
Severn Trent
is affected?

‘Which part of

" What doesit mean for us?

What are we doing to manage the nsk?

5  Theregulatory
londsoape ts complex
ond subject to ongong
change There s a risk
that processes may foil
or that our processes
may not effectively keep
pace with changes in
legrslation leading to the
nsk of non-complance

Group wade

Operutions, assets and people. .
6  Ourassetsorprocesses  Group wide
rriary fail resulting in
mjury to an employee,
contractor or member
of the public.

7  Wemayfoitomeetdl Sevemn Trent
of our requiatory targets  Water
induding targets from
Ofwat n relabon to
ongong opergtional
performance of our
assets resuting in
reguigtory penalties.

Our policies and processes must reflect
the curmentt legal and regulotory
emnronment and all relevant emplovees
rrust be kept aware of new requiements.
Due to the spread of our operations, and
changes n octivity and orgarusabionat
structure this 1s not always struightforward,
The group as a whole may face censure
for non-compliance m an ndwvidual group
company or a specific region nwhich

we operate,

The nature of our work requires our
employees and contractors to undertoke
activities or to use equipment which have
potential to couse senous harm. Whilst

We have a group wide code of conduct ‘Doing the
nght thing - The Sevem Trent way’ together with
policies, standards, procedures and relevant
tramung for ermployees to mibtigate thes risk.
Durmng the year, we hove continued with our
extensive prograrnme to rase awareness of
updated pabcies. Ths has included e-learming
for relevant employees in relation to Cornpetition
Low and Artti-Bribery and Corruption legestation.
We will continue our programme of traning and
raisng awareness. We are glso camying out o
review of the mecharisms by which we gain
assuranice that polioes are fully complied with
across the group to ensure these mechanisms

standards and processes for controlling health,
safety and well-being nsks. Our strategy, which
seeks to ensure that no one gets hurt or made

we take every precaution to prevent injury,  unwell by what we dg, indudes improvernent

asset failure or failure to follow agreed
processes may result in sormeone being
hurt. Speafic examples ndude wjury to
our emplayees using chemnicals m our
processes. Addtonally, fallure of one of
our key assets such as a reservoir could
result in injury to customers or memnbers
of the public.

If we are unuble to meet operotional
performance targets, we may be
subjected to signfficant regulatory
penathes either withun the current prce
review penod, or apphed to the next
prce review

Regulatory targets apply to all of

our water treatrment, distribution,
sewerage and sewoge treatment
assets. Measures are in place n relatson
to water quality, continuous supplies,
sewer flooding, sewer collopses and
potluton events.

actraty on the management system, behavioural
safety atture and octupational heolth with a
focus on preventing incidents. At a tocol level,
safety enprovernent tearns wdentfy ond address
hazards. We monitor safety performance and
have deliverad year on year reductions m
inadents and increases in prevention actvity
Our assets are subject to regular and ngorous
monitorng including mdependent inspection of
our reservorrs to ensure that they reenain safe
and that mantenance work 1s undertaken
where needed.

We will continue with our programme of safety
education and improvernents and with our
ngorous montoring and mantencnce regimes
for ontical ossets.

We continue to monitor and invest in our assets
and to Imnprove ouwr processes N order to
mamntain our senaces to our customers, We hove
contmnued our majoer programimes of work to
review all aspacts of our operations, induding the
necessary mprovernents to malntaln continuous
supphes, ensure water quality, reduce sewer
collopses and sewer flooding and improve
emronimental performance.

Our business plan subrmission for the price review
penod from 2015-2020 will include the necassory
funding forupgrades and improvements to our
gssets to aliow us to continue to provde good
quality water and to effectively treat waste woter
for aur customers.
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Business review Risk management

Ref Whatistherisk? ~  Whichpartof ~ What does it mean forus? " What are we doing to manage the risk?

Severn Trent
is affected?

8  Falture of certoin key Sevem Trent Some of our assets are abeal to the We have asset management plans n place
assetsmay resultt man Water provision of water to lorge populotions for - which dnve investment in mantenance and
nabity to provde o which there ore limited ditemiotve means— improvernent of our assets m order to mamtan
continuous supply of of supply. These assets are regriarly OUr SEMVICe: to CUStomers.
quelity water tolarge inspected and mantained ond our We also have secLrity measures to protect our
populations within our assessment of the overall condibon 6 good. asetscndounbng:(r{cyplwto rmantan
areg, or indamage to If q fallure were to ocour the ca;;q.uenoe supples in the event of foture
thrd party property woutld result in termporary mability to .

continuie th serve o CLEtonmers We will continue ta develop and implernent
© o asset ronagenment plans to ensure the long term
e e e . e e e e o o Soncbltyoforsences

FinanciolRisks o o o B . )

9 Theasrrenteconomc  Group wide As 0 result of current market conditions  We ensure we mamtain access to funds through
dimate may inaease and econornic canditions across the cash held on short term deposit and through our
the difficuties associated eurozone, there may be ncreased commtted borrowing faciiies, We constantly
with obtaining funding difficulty for olf businesses to obtam funds.  monttor the possible impacts of economic
for the group (ot srmar We may therefore be unable tomeetall  condibons on the funding requirements for the
rates to those assumed of our funding requirernents ot group We have diversified sources of funding ond
in aur business plan) commerdiolly attractive rates. hove o timetable for replocement of committed

lerding faciltes which allows us more than one
opportunity to go to market m order to mitigate
aganst short term problers in the rarketplace
We wil contimue to monitar our finandiol postion
and future requiremnents and to mantan access
to a diversified source of funds, We will also
conbinue our strotegy of earty refinancing where
e e e e e = .. thsisbeneficaltothegoup

10 (hanging demographics  Group wide We already provide significant funding. We regulary revalue our schemes and monitor
and fluctuations in the We may be called upon to provde our iInvestment performance.
investrment market rmay more money to reduce deficits in our We have introduced new persion crangernents
affect our bty to fund persion schemes. which we believe wil be farrer for all our
pension promeses employees os well os reduang the buid up
sustainably of deficit in future years, thus allowing us 1o

continue to fund pensions sustomably nto
the future

We will continue to manttor the performance of
our pertsion nvestrents and to work dosely with
our third party odvisors to ensure that the

o sthemes are manoged effectvaly
11 Counterparties with Group wide From time to trme we may have We hove stnct policies which restnet the
whom we have invested corsiderable sums ovailable which we counterparties we can ewest with and lirnit the
money may fal, puttng hogve not yet Invested in agreed copital amount whch can be invested wath mdmvdual
our investment at nsk. prograrmmes, and we need to monage counterparties. We continuously monitor the
this n the most odvantageous way for aedit status of alt our counterpartes to ensure
our customers and shareholders. we only deposit with those who have good credit
However, with any rvestment thereisa status. Complianes with our policies 1s montored
resk of default whach could result in continuously to ritigate this nsk.
finanadl loss. We will continue to monitor the external market

environment and maintain our polkies to
mibgate this nsk.
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Board of dlrectors

Dr Tony Batlance
BSc (Hors) MA (Econ) PhD (48)
Director, Stroteqy and Requiation
Appointed tothe board on 2 October 2007
Tory's extersive expenence n ublty policy ond
regulation leoves tum dedlly placed to lead
the con'puryssumegcund reguictory work,
’4 o Severn Trerit he held the posts
of Cheef Economisst for Ofwat, econormic
consuttont, director of London Economecs and
wus a director of Stone and Webster Corsuttants.

External appointments
Member of Water UK Coundl

Committes rnembersh!p
Executrve Committee

Imnage removed

Martin Lamb

Apponted to the board on 29 February 2008
Martn has extensve expenence of managng ond
developing lorge businesses inoll parts of
the warld Martn has worked for IMI for over 25 years
where he has hetd a number of serwor rmanogement
rotes, His strong cormmertal acurnen, expenence of
manogng comptex progcts, and famiionty with
curent market pressures as a serving Chief Executive
legve him well ploced to add vatize to the Sevemn Trent
Previousty Mortn was o non-executive
directey of Specins pic.
m«mm
Chuef Executve and meznber of the Nomnations
Commitiee of IM1 plc
MmdﬂﬂAdvmmedcfAEA
Irvestors (UK) Lirmded

Cummitt.aemembu'shb
Nomnobons Commetiee
Revruneraton Commitiee

Dr Bernard Bulkin

BS PhD FRSC FRSA FIE{71)

Independent non-executive director
Appomted to the board on 1 January 2006
Bemard's successful and wide ranging coreer in
aoodermin ord business hos prowded hirnwithin
depth expenence n saentific, technology and
engneenng indysines, He held the prominent posibion
of Cheef Soentist of 8P Pl His wvolvernent in both
mnovobon and pebicy on dimate chonge end
renewable energy, and tes sigrificant slalls and
expenence in delsverng performaonce improvement
on safety ond ervironmental operabonal ssues,
maoke hss contribution 1o the boord involucble.

Norr-exeautive director of Ze-gen Corporation [US)
Non-executive Chawrnan of Pursutt Dynomies pic
Char of the Office of Renewoble Energy Deployment
at the UK DepmmentofEnagymd Crmote(:honge
Commmemunbeshlp" i

Audit Comyrattee

Corporate Responsibéity Committee {Charmon}
Norminations Commrtiee

Rernuneration Comrmittee

Michael McK
MA CA (56)

Finance Director

Apponted tothe board.on 13 December 2005
Michael brngs signdficont finonoal and cormmerncial
expertisa to the board and hes ower seven yoors'
expenence of the Severn Trent group. Prior 1o jomung
Severn Trent he was Finance Director of Novar Plc and
before that, held vanous seruor roles with Rolls-Royce
Pic, tndudng finance Deector of Aerospoce Group.
He has extensive internthana busness epenence
having worked overseas for CamoudMetothax,

Ef Atocherm and Pnce Waterhouse, Michoel Is @
Chartered Accountant and g Member of the Institute
of Chortered Accountants of Scotiond

Non-executive director and Charrsan of the
Audit Comimittee of The Merchants Trust flc

Committee membership
Exequbve Committee

Image removed

Richard Bavey

BA (64)

Serwor independent norrexecutve director
Apponted to the board on 1 Jenuary 2006

Richard spent the rgyonty of his exerutive coreer in
investment banking ot NM Rothschild and Sons,
inroles nctuding Heod of Ivestrnent Bonkmyg.
Richard bnngs mvaluable specalist finonoo! expertse
to the board, the Audit Commitiee ond as chor of
the Rermunerotion Cornmidtee, hovng run Rothschild's
Fnenoal Seraces Group ond worked with o number
of hegh street banks and msurers, Previously he held
non-exequtve rgles ot Yorkshire Bullding Socrety,
where he was Vice Chormon, Freeserve Pic and
Scottish Widows Fund and Life Assuronce Socisty
Elttemulappoi“nf;'l:euts ! T
Non-exeastre Choirman, member of the Audit and
Normenobon Comsmittees of Amlin Pic

Normnotions Cormmittee
Rermunerahon Cormmittea {Charrnan)

Image removed

Baroness Noakes

DBE LLB FCA (63}

Indtependent non-exectiive director

Appointad ta the board on 29 February 2008
Sheila bangs valuable expertise to the board as an
experianced director and Audit Commttee Chalrman
of UK listed componies and with extensive and vaned
professional, political and public sector expenence,

A quolified chortered ocrountemt, she previously
heoded KPMG's European and Internotional
Government proctices and has been President of the
Instituts of Chartered Accourttonts ¢ Engiand ond
Woles, Shella was appomted to the House of Lords n
2000 and has served on the Conserwative front bendh
N vonaus mies nchiding s shadow treastry rrrester
between 2003 and May 2010, Prewously she held
non-exautrve roles on the Court of the Bank of
England, Hanson fie, IC1 Pie, dohn Lang ond SThree
Bmemnlupmm

Narrexecutive directar, memnber of the Group Aucit,
Glu.pNummtnucndBoudR‘skCnmnﬁeaof
The Royal Bank of Scottand Group Pic

Carpetnig
Tnﬂned’d'emmmdassrmm

Committee membership
Audit Committes {Charman)
Narmnations (ormrities
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Andrew Duff
BScFE] (54)
Non-executive Chasman

Appomrtted to the board on 10 May 2010 and
harmanon 20 iy 2010
Andrew’s extensive experience of internationd and
reguilated business, strategic ranogement ond
customer service n high dynamk ervronments
have equipped fam well for the role of Chairmnan of
the group Andrew spent 16 years ot BP in marketing,

and oll radng. He pned Naboral Power m
1958 ond the boord of its daughter Innogy
plc upon its dememger from Natanal Power in 2000,
He led the restructunng and subsequent sole of
[nnogy to RWE I 2003 He become CEC of the
sucoessor company, npower, ond o member of
the RWE Group Executve Commmittee He was
non-executive Chairmon of RWE npower unitll hs
retrernent m Decernber 2010
Bdu'mlnppommnts
Serior independent director, Chawmaen of the
fermnunengtion Commattee, mermber of the Audit
Committae and Norminations Commiitea of Wolseley Ao
Merrber of the CBI Presdent’s Committee
Trustee of Moamilon Concer Suppart and Earth Trust
Fellow of the Energy Instriute

mernbership
Responsihiity Cornmittee:

Normunobions Comenittee (Charman)
Rermuneration Commidtee

Image removed

Andy Smith

Blech (Hons) {52}

Derector of Woter Sernces
Apponted to the board on 2 October 2007

Arvly bxings a brood range of executive and
operatonal expertse from diverse sectorsto
the board. Andy has

experience havirg
worked i the UK and oversecs with globol businesses
such a5 BP, Mars ond Peps, and
mmlmmmmrmom
Group HR Director and a msrder of the boord ot
Bools Group Plc.

Execubve Committee

Gordon Fryett
59)
Independerit non-executive director
Appointed to the board on 1 July 2009
Gorclon’s extensive expenence working in ond with
interngbional busnesses, managmg sigedcent copital
experdﬂmemdmdepﬂnetuiapemgatbum

ond opercbonal level in o customer foang,
hlgHycompeu'trve environmeent, enables fim to bang
substonhal expenence and expertise to the board
He 15 currently Group Praperty Duector ot Tesco Pic,
hanang previousty held o number of servor roles
wthen the Tesoo Group, nduding Opetations
Director, Intematicnal Support Director ond CEQ
Republic of Iretand.

Tony Wray

BSc (Hons) (51}

Choef Executive

Apponted to the board on 7 March 2005

Tony becomne Cheef Executive on 2 October 2007,

His extensne expenence i a wide range of operational
and strategic lendership roles In the energy, telecoms,
water and waste industnes anabies han to bng o
rmuta disaplned epproach to hes contribirbon to the
board. Tosw brngs to hes poshion ansn depth
operohonal knowiedge of Severn Trent ond strategic
veston fox the group. Prevousty he wess director of
Networks at Ercom, the Republic of Ireland's
teleptueopaubmu‘ldhusheidduemus
withmn Tronsco and Natonal Gnd Transco.

Extermnai appolntments
Non-exeautive director, Chornan of the Boord Risk

Maﬂbudmmamdior‘lmmgmm
Erndronmentn! Change’
Mernber of Water LUK Board

Cummtlnn membership
Corpaorate Responsiblity
Executive Cornmittee (Chavmnan)
Norrinations Committee
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Martin Kane

85c CEng CErv MICE MIWEM FIW (60)

Chief Executve Officer, Severn Trent Senvces

Appaomnted to the board on 2 October 2007

Martn joned Severn Trent Wiater in 1975 and has

held wonous serior roles giing him an extensive and

unique understonding of the design, construcbon and
of water and wasta water treatrent plonts,

water distibution networks and seweroge systerns.

Motin was Drector of Customer Relabions, Severn

Trent Wirtar, from May 2006 until Jonuary 2012,

when he wos apponted Cheef Exacutve Officer of

Severn Trent Sennces.

oppointimernts
Member of the boords of Utilibes and Sernce
Industnes Trarung Limited ond Notional Assocabon
of Woter Comparves (US)
Trustee of Intemabonal Socety for Trenchtess
Technology
Cnmmituemn-ba'shrp
Executve ommittee
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Executive Commlttee

The Chuef Executrve is supported in bis role by the executive
management team and together they compnse the Executive
Comimuttee. During the year, the Executive Committee
comprsed the executive directors and senior executive
managers responsible for key operational and central functions.
Photogrophs of the members of the commitiee, together with
their biographies are set out betow

The Executive Comrmittee oversees the development and

Dunng the year, the Executive Committee met to consider
strategy, business management, policy and planning,

and operagonal performance

Members of the Executive Committee are delegated
responshility to sit on steenng groups that oversee the
delivery af our strateqy and business ranogernent.

During the yaar, steenng groups were set up to oversee
areas such as the integrated delivery of our year end results

execution of the Severn Trent strategy It olso hos accountabiity  and Ofwat Annual Regulatory Returms.
for adhweving business results, The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee are avallable on the company’s website
{www.severntrent.com) or from the Company Secretary
Image reimoved mage removed Image removed Image removed
1 2 3 4
Image removed image removed Image removed Image removed
5 6 7 8
Image removed Image removed Image removed
9 10 11
1. Dr Tony Ballance 3. Evelyn Dickey 5. Angela Hunter-Dobson 8. Michael McKeon
B5c (Hons} MA {Fcon) PhD (43) BS¢ (Hons) (50 MA (Hons) (41) MACA (56)
Director, Strutegy ond Reguiotion Dwector of Human Resouroes Custornes Relabons Diector Fnance Drector
Please see full bograptyyonpoge 44 Joned Sevemn Trent n Novermber 2006, Joned Sevem Trent in May 2012, Mease see full blography on poge 44
i Evelyn has extensve HR Angela cormmenced her career with
2. Simon Cocks L desgnand delveryof major ~ TBM dunng its transformation from 9. Alec Richmond
BA (Hons) (47} change programmes, business manufactunng to serices business. BSc (Eoon) FCA FIIA (S5)
Woste Woter Services Director festructunng, employee relations, She hos since held senior operational Dwector of Infernal Audit
Jomed Severn Trent in July 2009 T e o ik ey Joined Severn Trent n June 2007.
Simon s an elecincal engineer by organisotonal copoblity o Hiscox and Vodafone, delive Pror to that, he worked for Cadbury
traming. He previocssty worked for performunce management msmmersemcesoaussBZB, B2C, Schweppes the
London Blectnaty in vonous infbatves, BefmepnlngSevemTrem mtermationd, indinect and < globat intemal oudt
operabonal and monagement roles Eviynma HRconsultancyand  regulated markets. In addition to serve 20D0-2005. Before
ond, mare recently, forNabonalGnd < HR Director (HR Operotions) teading award winning customer Joning Sevem Trent, be worked for
where hewas Heod of UK Operctions. 5001 the Chemsts. she has consuited RSM Fobson Rhodes as a director
Performance and Planning, then 4 nH wndwdgm thearea of asstomer and ¢ member of the management
Commenigl Drector for the gas and - Myron Hrycoyk service n muttiple sectars. board responsible for Risk Assuronce
electnaty business m the UK and MBA (56) 6. Martin Kane Services. Alec s o fellow of the
Europe and held the posthon of Chvef Information Officer Institurte of Chartered Accountants m
Chvef Procurerment Officer before Joned Sever Trent in Apdl 2008, BS5c Cng CEnv MICEMIWEM FIW (60)  Engiand and Wales and the Institute
Severn Trent Smonsa Myron hes held semor IT posts Chef Executve Officer, of internal Auditors.
member of UK Woter for major organsabions oaoss o Severn Trent Services
Industry Research. fonge of business sectors, Finanaal Pleose see full iography onpage 45 10. Andy Smith
Ser\uaes,Publmmg,ALmn'nuve BTach (Hors) (52}
and Logstics/Supply Chain, He has 7. Bronagh Kennedy Duector of Water Senvices
delvered strategue IT and business (BA) (Hons) (49) Fleasa see full bography on poge 45
transformation b General Counsel and
restructured corporate IT unts Company Secretary 11. Tory Wray
and deployed hgh performance IT - g cevern Trent in une 2011 B5c
(Hons) (31}
procboes. Myrondisohos executve  pronaah i gsolicitor and was o Exeouitne
responsibiity for Supply Chom & previoussty Group Comparny Secretary Qo]
Procurement. and General Courssel ot Mitchells & Please sea full biography on page 45

Butlers, where she worked for 15
years. Pror o that, she wos a Senr
Assoate ot Allen & Overy




Chairman’s letter

Andrew Duff
Chairman

Governance in Seven Trent
The way we are structured
- Our omanisabon s structured to allow for

effective and efficient decision making
with dear accountabilibes,

The way we choose to behave

» Qur Code of Conduct: ‘Doing the nght
thung - The Sevem Trent way’ sets
aut our approach to responsible
business behavours.

- The Code of Conduct is supported by 15
group polxies and our behaviours model.
Further details of these can be found on
our websita (www.severntrent.com)

The way we ensure our effectiveness

= We always look to ensure our people
have the nght skills in order to drve
performance improvemernt.

+ Management assurance is prowded by
a combination of effectve maonogement
processes and nsk and comphance
octivibes,

+ Independent assurance ts provided
pnrrniybylrtta'mlAudit. by our external
auditors and other external bodses.

7 N

Themyweme The way we
choose to behave

The way we wo
Thewuywe

Dear Shareholder

At Severn Trent, we are commutted to defvenng value to our stakeholders and building

a sustainable business, which 1s underpinned by good governance. As o board we are

accountable to shareholders for ensunng that effective governance processes are in

place and complied with.

Theboard's roles to

+ understend and meet its cbligations to the company's stakeholders;

+ govem the group within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enable
sk to be assessed and managed,

= approve the group’s strategic objectives; and

= ensure that sufficent resources are available to endbie it to meet those objectives,

Good governance provides a framework that allows the right dectsions to be token by

the nght people ot the nght tima

Dunng the year Ited the review of our board's effectiveness and looked at how we

have made progress with the areas identified as requinng further improvement at the

last review. We have overseen the continued embedding of our Code of Conduct

across our businesses and reviewed our supporting polcies

The following sections of this report set out how good govemance supports our
actwvities at Sevemn Trent and descnibe how the board applies the principles of the

UK Corporate Govemnance Code - In the way we are structured, the way we chogse

to behove and the way we ensure our effectrveness.

I believe that assessing our govermance arrangemernts in terms of these headings
enables us to establish the nght long tenm behaviours, which will help us to defiver the
group’s strategic ebjectives in a sustainable monner.

I firmly believe that we will continue to deliver value and achieve sustamnable growth
for our company through the successful mix of good governance, a dear strategy with
a supporting business plan and a strong management tearn to execute it.

Andrew Duff
Charman

Compliance with the UK Corporate Govemance Code

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2010 {the ‘Govemance Code’) was revised by
the publication of the UK Corporote Governance Code 2012 in September 2012
The new code applies to financial years beginning on or after 1 October 2012,
atthough we intend to comply early with the new code where appropriate and
raasonably procticable Our formal obligation for 2013 5 to report how we hove
appted the pnnciples of the curmrent Governarice Code.

The Govermnance Code s gvailable on the Fnanciol Reporting Coundl's website
{wwwiifrc.org uk} For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2013,

Severn Trent was compliant with the Govermance Code, with the exception that the
adequacy of arungements in relabion to the company’s whistleblowing procedures
falls withmn the remit of the Corporote Responsibllity ((R) Committee, rather than
the Audit Committee The CR Committee’s remit is to dedl with any allegations
from employees relating to any breaches under Sevem Trent's Code of Conduct.
The Audit Com©mittee reviews reports of matters ansing in respect of financial or
intermal control matters from the company’s whistieblowang procedures and the
company’s procedures for preventing and detecting froud and bribery, and

receves reports on nen-complionce. The board consders that these arrangements
are appropriate
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Governance report

Group Authonsation Arrangements

The Group Authonsation Arrangements
{GAA) are the framework through which the
Severn Trert Flc board authonses the right
peopie, at the nght level, to take mportant
deasions as we manuage legal, finandal and
admnsstrative sssues throughout the group
The GAA are designed to fadltate good
control, efficient decsion making and
demonstrable comphance,

The flow of authonty 15 from the Sevem
Trent Pic board to the Chief Executive and
the Severn Trent Executive Committee.
Inrespect of certan issues, the delegated
authorty ts subject to on obligation to wark
with specwalist business senaces areas
(such as Tax, Treasury, Group Finonce

and Company Secretanat) that provide
addibono] expertise and a group wide
perspective

Govemance of—;ubs[&ﬁries-

The membership of the board of the
listed comnparty, Severn Trent Pic, s the
same as that of its requlated subsichary,
Severn Trent Woater Lirnited, This structuune
was implernented in 2007 when it was
decxded to integrate the manogerment

of the cormpanies to gain greater
fransparency and msight of Severn

Trent Water by the Plc board.

Followang hts as (EO of

Severn Trent Services in January 2012,
Martin Kane becarne g non-executve
director of Severn Trent Woter Limited.

The two companies aperate as distnct
legat entraes. The boards comply with

the Sevemn Trent Plc Board Governance
document and the Severn Trent Water
Limited Matters Reserved to the board.
They are assisted through the manogement
of sepanate agendos, meetmgs and
rminutes by Company Secretanat and
advised in therr meetings by the Company
Secretury where appropnate.

Subsidiary company boards are required to
be managed sauputously with respect to
legal, fiscol ond scdmimistrative matters,

In particudar, the relotonships between
Severn Trent Water Limrted and our cther
businesses such as Severn Trent Serwces
are montored and controlled to ersure that
we comply with our cbligabons on am's
length transoctions between them,

The way we are structured
Board membership

Buning the year under review the board has compnsed your non-executive Chairrnar,
five executive directors and fiveindependent non-executive directors, Photographs of
the members of the board, together with ther brographies ond a descnption of the
complermentary skills and wealth of experence that they bnng to bear, can be found
on poges 44 and 45.

We beleve this unitary board bnngs an appropnate balance of innovation, expenence,
independence and chollenge to ensure effective deasion making

In accordance with the Governance Code, all the directors will retire at this year's AGM
and submit themselves for reappointment by the shareholders.

Detalls of our policy on diversity in the beardroem are provided in the Nominations
Committee report on pages 52 and 53.

Role of the Chairman

The rote of Andrew Duff, your Chairman, s to leod a unitary board, foditating the
contnbution of ts members at its meetings, and to be responsible for ensunng that the
principles and processes of the board are mantained n ine with the board governance
frarmework, which can be found on our webstte {(www severntrent.com).

Agendas for board meetings are agreed by the Charman in consuttation with the
Chief Executive and Cormpony Secretary, although any director may request that an
itemn be added to the ogenda. The (hairman has outhority to act and speak for the
board between its meetings, nduding engaging with the Chief Executive He reports
to the board and committee charmen as appropnate on deasions and actions taken
between meetngs of the board He also meets with the non-executive directors
without the executive directors present, to consider the performance of the

executve directors and tp provide feedback.

Senior ndependent non-executve director

Richard Davey is your senior independent non-executive director He chaus

the Rernuneration Commttee ond s @ member of the Audit and Normingtions
Commuttees. The board has agreed that Richard will act as Charman of the board
in the event that the Chairman s unable to do so for any reason.

Non-execubve directors

Your non-executive directors are appointed to the board to contnbute their
mdnidual external expertise and expenience in areas of importance to the group
Their competences indude corportte: finance, general finance, corporate strategqy,
customer care, property, environmental and technology rmatters, general
management and supply chain management. They also provde ndependent
challenge and rigour in the boord’s deliberations and are encouroged to make
independent assessments of the group’s competencies, The non-executve
directors, led by the senior Independent non-exeautve director, meet without the
Chairman at least once a year for them to appraise the Chairmon’s performance.
The non-executive directors and the Charman also meet without the executive
directors present ct least once ayear.

Your board has reviewed the status of the non-executive directors and considers them
all to be ndependent m character and judgement as defined by the Governance Code

Chief Executve

Respansibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive, Torny Wray, to achieve
the company’s strateqy He ts empowered to take gll decsions and actions that
further the company's strategy and which m his judgennent are reasoncble,
having regard to the Chef Executive limits set out in the company’s GAA.The
non-exeautive directors, led by the Chairman, appraise his performance annually
Executive directors

The executive directors suppart the Chief Executive in driving the implermentation of
strategy forward in Severn Trent They are committed to doing this in @ responsible
way which takes occount of ourcommitrnent to long term sustainable and
responsible stewardship of the business, the ervironment, our customners and the
comnmunities 1n which we live and work.




Reporting abligations

Asa public listed company, the company 1s
required to comply with a range of reporizng
abligations set out by law and regulaton.
ﬂnmmpc!}hcomnittedmme
prornotion of mvestor confidence by taleng
steps within s power to ensure that trade
In its secunbies takes place in on efficent
and mformed market.

The company recogmses the importance of
effective commuricabon as a key port of
buildmg shareholder value and that, to
prosper and achieve grawth, it st eam
the trust of security holders, employees,
customners, suppliers and communibes,

by being open in ts communicabons and
aonsistently delvening on its commitments.
The company announces its results on a
half yearly basis and cornplies with the
requirernent to make intenmm manogement
stoterments.

The Chief Exeautive has established a
Disclosure Committee, chared by the
Finance Director, with specific responsibilities
for the delivery of the intenmm and year end
reportng processes. The Disclosure
Committee oversees the delivery of an
integrated plan incorporatang all elements of
the year end reporting process, narnely the
group’s preliminary results announcement
and report and acoounts, the company's
AGM, the statutory and regutatory accounts
of Severn Trent Water Limited, the Annual
Regutatory Complicance Statement and the
Annuol Requictory Performonce Report.

Graph removed

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and senvices of the Comparny Secretary,
Bronagh Kennedy, and the Company Searetanat team. Bronagh is responsible for
ensuring that the board operates in acoordance with the governance framework it hos
odopted and that there are effective information flows to the boord and its
committees and between senior anagement and the non-executive directors.

The appointment and resignation of the Company Seaetary s a matter for
consideration by the boord as a whole

Terms and cenditions of appointment

We have made the terms and conditions of appeintrment of the directors availlable for
inspection by ary person ot the company’s registered office dunng normol business
haurs, They will also be available ot the AGM. The letters of appeintment of the
directors con dlso be seen on our website (www.sevemtrent.com)

Board processes
We have processes in place regarding:

« the board's tasks and activibes;

= the matters specfically reserved for the board’s decsion moking, the authonty
delegated to the Chief Executive, the accountability of the Chief Exeautive for that
outhonty, and guidance on managing the relationship between the board and
the Chief Executive; and

» the boundanes on Chief Executive action {Chief Executive imits)

The board has reserved the foltowing for ts own considerabion:

= the appointrment of the Chief Executive, directars, the Company Secretary and the
Director of Intemnal Audit;

« the strotegy and budgets of the company;

+ the GAA which set out the group's delegated approval imits;

- dedisions regarding the compony and its subsicianes required to be made by the
company’s GAA, constitutional docurments, statute or external regulation, and

= the approval or adoption of documents (including the publication of reports and
statements to shareholders), required to be made by the board by the company’s
GAA, constitutional docurments, statute or externat regulabion.

Board meehings

We have regular scheduled meetings of the board and of its permanent committees
throughout the year and any addibonal meetings and ed hoc committee meetings
are convened when required.

Papers, induding manutes of board committees held since the previous boord meeting
and performance reports, are arculated in advance of each meeting

There is an agreed procedure in place which allows directors to take independent
professional advice In the course of therr dubes and all directors have access to the
advice and senices of the Comparnty Seaetary If o drector has a concern over any
unrescived moatter they may require the Company Secretary to munute that concem.

In oddition to formal board meetings, the boord attended a full day strateqy session
this year, where the board and executive management team together considered the
value proposition for Severn Trent and the potential aregs of futtre volue aeation
across the business. During the financidl year, six ad hot commuttee meetings of the
board were convened to consider such matters as Severn Trent PICs prelimmary and
interim results and intenm manogernent staterments.

Board attendance in 20312113 o
AncrewDuff "7 Matnlmb TN
ToyBolance 77 MihoelMckeon 7
DrBemodBuln "7 BaronesNookes N
RchodDavey 7 AndySmth 77
GordonFyett T 7 ToryWmy e n
Murt:n—Kane T - H"777 T
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Institubonal shareholders and analysts
The boord recognises the importance of
representing and promoting the interests of
1ts shareholders ond that it s occountoble to

Presentations are mode to shareholders and
analysts following the release of the intenm
and year end results. The Chief Executive
and Anance Drector regutarty meet
sharehclders dunng the year The Chairman
and the senior independent non-exeastve
director have also met sharehdlders
separately from executive directors and are
avaiioble to meet shareholders if requared.
The board recelves written feedback
following meetings with mstitutional
sharehalders and monitors shareholder
activity on a quarterly basis at s meetings.

Dunng the year we hove undertaken an
imvestor audit whach sets out to ascertain
B?th bondholders’ and shareholders’ views

Us as a company, our ,
performance, ggdnayeffectl\m'esswof our
communications. It olso aims to determine
our standing refative to our peers and to
the equity and debt markets as o whole
The results will be avattable early in the
2013/14 finanad year.

Board committees

We have established committees of the board to deal with spedfic Issues or approvals,
os and when necessary

The four permanent committees of the board assist in the execution of its
responsibilties and the board hos delegoted some of its responsibilities to those
hoord commiittees. The committees assist the board by fulfiling therr roles and
responsibilties, focusing on their specific activities, reporting to the board on decisions
and actions taken, and meking any necessary recornmendations.

The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominatons Committees
cornply with the provisionss of the Governance Code, except as reported on page 47,
and are avallable for nspection, together with the terms of reference of the
Corporate Responsibility Commitiee, on our website (www.severntrent.com) or

moy be obtained on request from the Compary Secretary.

The eifectveness of each of the commiiitees has been reviewed dunng the year as
part of the nterna! board review and the committees have also considered their termss
of reference dunng the year.

Reports from the Chairnen of these committees are set out on pages 52 to 70 of
this report.

The way we choose to behave

Code of Conduct: ‘Doing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way’

Every day Severn Trent employees have to make chowes about what they do and how
they do it. Most of the tme 1t 1s dear what the nght thing to doirs, whether it is about
domng what 5 safe, doing the right thing for customers, doing what 1s nght ethically -
and indeed what is nght legally

However, sometimes it 15 not sodear ‘Doing the nght thing ~ The Severn Trent way’
details the panciples we work by This is our Code of Conduct and explons who we are,
what we stand for and how we work, it also tells our customers and business partrers
that they can rely on us. These pinciples apply to everyone in Severn Trent’s
businesses, no matter where m the world they are based. They provide @ common
and consistent framework for responsible business practices and set out the standards
we need to follow in our day to day activities.

During the year we have continued to roll cut the Code of Conduct aaross the group to
moke sure that everyone in the business understands what it & all about and upholds
our ethical standards. All employees are provided with a copy in ther local language as
part of ther nduction. Training sessions are dso availoble and ail teams have been
encouraged to discuss it.

Policies

The Code of Conduct 1s supported by 15 group policies and our behaviours model,
Further details of these can be found on our website (www.severntrent.com).

Dunng the year we have completed the annual review of the poliaes to ensure they
are fit for purpose In particular the Whistleblowing Policy has been refreshed and new
guidance on the process has been ssued to assist those who may need to deal with
whistieblowing concems. New posters advertising the whistieblowing procedures
have also been distnbuted throughout the business.

Conflcts of nterests

The board has a full process in place to authorise stuatienal conflicts in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

At every board meeting there is a standing agenda tiem ot the beginning of the
meeting to consider ard discuss whether any potential conflicts exst. If it does then
the relevant director does not paricipate in the discussion on that tem.
Anannual review of conflicts is carried out and is ncorporated mio the yeor end
process of verifying directors’ interests. Half yearly reports are olso made to the
board of oll directors’ conflicts ond directors are reminded from tme to time of
their obligations.

Interests

No director had a materiol miterest ot any time dunng the yvear n any contract of
significance with the compary or any of tts subsidiary undertakings.




Retal shareholder engagement strategy

The board has an active shareholder
engogernent strategy, the mam elernents
of which are set out below

The annual repu;fard ooonunts s the
pmapal means of communscateg with
shareholders. The group has adopted
e-communicabions as an altematve
method of sending company information.
In Manth 2012 shareholders were
re-consulted as to ther preferred method
of recenving company COMMUNKAtoNS,
Following the consultcbon, 54,856
shareholders (829%) recewe confirnation
that the annual report s avoilable to view
onbine, whilst 11,829 shareholders {18%)
contnue to recerve a hard copy

Our website (www.severmntrent. com)
contains an archive of annual reports

with other information refevant
toinvestors. Ths indludes comprehensive
share price nformation, financiol results,
cormpany news and finoncial colendars.
The company offers a Dhadend
Resrvestment Plan {DRIP) Detoils of the
DRIP are availabte on our website and
the webste of Equintty, our registror

Shareholder networlang prograrmme

The aim of the programme & to offer retod
shareholders the to ieam more
abaut the company, through site visits and
tofking to stoff.

As part of our Shareholder Networlang
parbapants i Cctober 2012 hod
o chowce to wsit etther awoste water or dean
water she, These were hosted by Sirmnon Cocks,
WWaste Witter Servicess Director and Andy
Srith, Director of Witer Senaces. Nineteen
portidipants were taken to our Mirwarth

Carmnpion Hills Witer Treatment Works {Roya

Spa) for atour then on to Sevem
Trent Water (Finham) for a demanstzanon of
king a connection to o e water rmanand
a dsplay of matenals used n the distribution
network. This was followed by both groups
wisitng our operiting centre n Coventry
Positve feedback was gven onthe
organsohon and content with strong support
for the company continuing the
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Shareholder engagement
Annugl General Meeting

The AGM of the compaony will be held at the International Convention Centre,
Broad Street, Brmingham B1 2EA at 11am on Wednesday 17 July 2013,

Presentabions are mode on the group's actvities, performance dunng the year ond
an operationatly focused presentation prior to the formol business of the meetmg,
The Chatrmen of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility, Remuneration and Narminations
Committees, together with dll other directors, attend the AGM

The AGM gives shareholders an opportunity to feedback to the company on
performance, management and the way we work in g very direct fashion, through
the way they vote Sharehotders may also meet informally with directors and

seror managemerit before and after the meeting and ask forrmal questions

during the meetng.

The board encournoges shareholders to ottend the company’s AGM and to exerase
therr nght to vote The notice of meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders
at least 20 working days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed on
eoch substontally separate ssue The poll results from the 2013 AGM will be made
ovailable on our website after the meetmg.

The way we ensure our effectiveness
Induction

On joring the board, a director’s induchion needs are evaluated and then they are
provded with a comprehensive and personalised induction pack which mcludes
information on the group structure, the regulatory framework of the operating
businesses within the group, strategic plons, financl reports and business plans
and information on our governance framework.

Meetings are arranged with members of the executive mancgement team and with
extemal advisers who provide support to the relevant board committees on which
the directors may serve Visits to operctonal ond office sites across the group and
managemnent presentations are also armanged for directors joining the board and
subsequently throughout the year.

Contmumg professional development

The directors receved updates throughout the year onmatters such os changes to
best proctice governance guidelines. The directors also have access to professional
development provided by extemal bodies and our advisers.

Continuing professional development requirements were considered as part of

the board effectiveness rewiew refermed to below No oddibondl requirernents

were dentified

Perforrnance and effectiveness reviews

An independent external review of the effectiveness of the board is conducted

every three years. The last extemnal review wos camed out n November 2011.

In Novernber 2012, the board commenced an intemda review of its effectveness and
the effectiveness of its key committees. The review was led by the Chairrnan, assisted
by the Campany Secretary and was in the form of a series of confidentid ntervews
between each director, the Company Secretary and the Chairman.

The board's strengths include a high quality of debote, relevant and complementary
collectve skills and talerts and an effective use of trme The Audit, Corporate
Responsibility and Remuneration Committees were strong, effectve and coninued

to improve dunng the year

The review also corsidered progress made in the ares derttified as requinng further
development in the independent extema review, camed out in the previous finanoal
year It conduded that good progress had been made with respect to the pontsation
of straieqic ratters on board agendes

To become even more effective, the most recent board review identified the need to
continue to allocate ime for consideratton of strategic matters, improve comparative
peer performance analysis and, with regard to leadership and succession planning,
mnuemfousmdmbpmmofmgmgemmlmﬂeaem@mmneelwd.
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Nominations Committee

Andrew Duff
Charnan of the Nominations Committee

The main purpase of the Committee s to
assist the board by keeping the composition
of the boed under review and conducting o
ngorckss and transparent process when
making o renewing appomtments of
directors to the board. It also adwvises the
board on sues of directors’ conflicts of
interest and mdependence The full terms of
reference for the Commuttee can be found an
our websle (www.sevemntrent. com) and ame
dlso available from the Company Secretary

This report provides details of the rle of the Nominabions Committee and the work it
has undertaken dunng the year

The Committee keeps under review the bolance of skalls on the board and the
knowledge, expenence, iength of service and performance of the directors. it also
reviews therr extemal interests with a view to identifying any actual, perceived or
potentict conflicts of interests, induding the tme avalable to commit to their duties to
the company. The resutts of these reviews are important when the board considers
succession planning and the election and reappointment of directors. Members of the
Committee take No part i any discussions canceming their own circurmstonces

The mermnbers of the Committee m 2012/13 were the non-executive directors of the
board ond the Chief Executrve, Tory Wray.

Curing the year the Committee wnsidered the composition of the board, the board’s
diversity policy, the board's effeciveness review and the succession plan for the Chief
Executive, It also reviewed the strength and depth of talent and succession planning

below Executive Comimittee level

In accordance with the requirernents of the Governance Code, all members of the
board will seek re-election at the AGM in July 2013 In March 2013 the Commuttee
formally reviewed the performance, contribution and commitrment of each of the
directors retiring at this year's AGM and seeking reappaintment, and supported and
recommended therr reappontment to the board The Committee has confirmed that
each director continues to perform well both on an indnadual and collectve basts,
making a valuable contribution to the board’s deliberations end demonstrating
commitrment to the long term interests of the company

Nominations Committee attendance in 2012/13

DrgemordBden 2 Matnlgb 20
Rchord Davey _ 22 BaonessNookes =~ 272
Andrew Duff 2 TonyWy . m
GomonFryew 222 N

Each Commuttee meeting complied with the terms of reference m that a minimum
of five members were in attendance, with the majonty being ndependent,
non-executive directors.




Governance Nominations Committes

Successton planning

‘When considenng new appointments to the

board, the Committee oversees the

preparation of a role specrfication thot s

provded to an independent requrtment

organesation retaned to conduct a global

search. In addibon to the speafic skills,

knowledge ond expenence deemed

necessary, the specification contans cnteno

such o

= a proven trock record of creating
shareholder value;

= unquestioned mtegnty and o dversity of
psychotogical mindset;

+ o comimutrnent to the hwghest standards of
governarnce;

« having the requred tirme avalable to
devate to the job;

- strateqgic mindset, an gwareness of morket
teadershp, outstonding monitonng skilis,

= a preparedness to question, challenge and
openly assess, and

- anindependent point of iew
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Diversity

Further to the publication of the Davies Report, “Women on Boards', in February 2011,
boards of FTSE 350 comporias have been encouraged to promote greater female
representation on corporate boards. Gukdance from the Ainancial Reporting Council has
atso highlighted the mportance of greater dversity of psychological profile around the
board table.

Sevemn Trent believes that a diverse and indusive cutture s a key factor nbeng a
successful busmness. Sevem Trent Plc shares the ospiration of the Davies Report to
promote greater female representation on listed compoany boards

As and when board appointment opportunities anse, we will make full use of the
procedures recommended by the Davies Report and by the Governance Code to
support this aspiration. Alt board appointments will be based on merit and must be
in theinterests of dll stakeholders.

As at 31 March 2013 and at the dote of this report, we had one female member
on our boatd of 11 {representing 9%} and three female members out of 11 onthe
Executive Commuttee {representing 27%). The total workforce gender splt 1s 30%
fernale and 70% male.

As we reported last year, we have conducted gender dwersity research with women
employees in Severn Trert Wter to understand what is importont to them in
developing careers at Severn Trent. The research was designed so that the nsights
provided would help us to improve policies and practices in developing women in
our organisation.

We plan to use the sume miethodology to explore ethnic diversity in the future, so we

can gain mere insights nto this aspect of our workforce composition and the findings
will be exarruned by our Diversity Working Group.

Andrew Duff
Chairman of the Nomanations Gommuttee

UCHDULOIN /YY) SIUEALRICS PouoUl AUDGIDD  SIURLLIACIS IDOUDU ONOI)  S0UCKLGADS)  MBVBISSIUSTIY  MAWBN0)

£[0Z SIUNOIDY PUD UodRI [ONULY ] WL Wnes



>
Audit Committee

Baroness Nockes DBE
Chomman of the Audit Committee

The Committee assists the board In
discharging ts responsibiliies for the
mtegnty of the company’s finoncidl
statements, the assessment of the
effectiveness of the systerms of intemal
controls and mantonng the effectiveness
and objectraty of the mternal and external
audttars, The role and the responsibilities of
the Committee are et out in wrtten tenms
of reference, These can be found on our
website (www.severntrent.com) and are
also available from the Company Secretary

This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee and the work i has
undertaken during the year.

The members of the Committee are Baroness Noakes DBE {Chainrnan), Dr Bernard
Bullun and Richard Davey whose experience and background are set out on page 44.
The board s satisfied that Baroness Noakes and Richard Davey have recent and
relevart finandal expenence and that all members of the Committee remam
independent.

The members of the Commuttee recene updates in finanaal reporting and the
group's regulatory framework i various forms throughout the year. The Charrman,
Chief Exeastve, Finance Drector, Director of Intetnal Audit, Group Finanaiol Controller
and the extemnal auditors normally attend, by invitation, all meetings of the
Committee. Other members of senior management are also invited to attend

as appropriate. The Committee regulary holds private discussions with both the
internal and external cudrtors.

In performing rts duties, the Committee has access to the services of the Directer of
Internal Audit, the Company Secretary and, if required, extemeal professional adwisers,

The Committee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board on the Committee’s
work. It met five tmes in 2012/13 and its work focused on four key areos:

+ financial stoternents arxd accounting poliass,

+ nsk manogement and internal controls;

= oversight of internat and extemal audit; and

« the requlatory reporting obligations of our subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited

The Comrittee’s perforrmance was induded in the review of the board referred to on
page 51. No matters requiring oction by the Committee arose from that review

Financial statements and accounting policies

The Committee looked carefully ot those aspects of the financial stotements
which required significant accounting judgements or where there wos estimation
uncertainty These areas are explaned i note 4 of the finanaal staterments on
pages 88 and 89. The Committee pard particular attention to,

+ whether further impairrents of the goodwdll and intangible ossets related to
businesses in Severn Trent Services were properly estrnated,

« whether the assumptions used to calculate the amount of the defiat in the group’s
defined benefit pension schemes were reasonable and i ine with those used by
similar companies,

+ the way in which derivatve mstruments were accolinted for and in parbicular the
impact of termmnation options which resutted in the terrmination of three interest
rate swaps during the yeor; and

« the omount of provisions held for tax baobilities which were still the subject of
discussion with the tax authonties.

The Committee dlso exarmined the disdosure of terns whach are descrbed as

excepbional in the cansobdated ncome stotement.

The Committee reviewed the endence and assurnptions underpinning the use of the

going concern assumption in preparing the accounts and in mcking the statement

made in the Directors’ report that the company 15 a gang concem

In reviewing the financidl statements, the Commttee recefves input from the

Disclosure Committee, which i chasred by the Finance Director. The work of the

Disclosure Committee s described further on page 49

Delottte LLP (Delorte) reported to the Committee on their review of the half year
ntenm results and on their audt of the year end financiod statements.

Internal controls

The Committee receives regular reports from Intermnal Audit in respect of their work on
intemal controls and reviews manogement letters received from the extemal auditors,

The Committee reviewed the processes for and cutpots from our Enterpnse Risk
Management process, through which the panapal risks and related controls are
identfied. The Cormmittee discussed the approach to doaurmenting nsk appetrte and
providing guidance to risk owners on the board's tolerance for different types of nsk.
In addition, it monitored the ongoing development of our compliance and assurance
processes in respect of the key nsks.




Governance Audit Committee

Policyonthe provisionof
non-audit services

The compary has approved a formal
pokcy on the provision of non-cudit serices
amed at safequarding and supporting the
nd and objectvity of the

external audtors.

The policy sets out the opproach to be taken
by the group when using the services of the
external auditors, induding requinng that
certam services provided by the externct
ourditors are pre-opproved by the Committee
or 15 Chairmarn,

It defines the non-cudit services thot may
be provided by the extesnal auditors and
separately sets out those non-audit sernces
which are prohibrted, since the independence
of the external cudtors coutd be threatened.
Non-oudst services where the external
cuditors may be used nclude: cudit related
senvices required by stotute or regulabion,

tax complance and tax planning advice,

due dilgence on aogqusitions and

disposals, services related to froud,

corporate responsibility report reviews

and requiatory support.

The approval of the Committee or its
Chaiman is always required if o non-gudrt
senace provided by the atditors s expected
ta cost more than £100,000 or f non-audit
fees for the year would exceed the amount
of the oudit fes,

FRurthermore, the procurement of non-audit
servces will need to comply with the

Litiity Contracts Regulations and dll services
requirements over the curent EC threshold
will have to be subject to tender
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The Commuttee reviews the procedures, systems and controls designed to prevent and
detect froud and bribery and recevas a regular log of inadents of fraud or bribery
which includes the actions taken to mvestigate and respond to the incidents.

There were no matenal nodents dunng the year

The Committee also reviewed the group’s approach to [T continuity. Gven the
inaeasing dependency of the busmess on technology, thes is an area of crucal
importance and further reviews will be carried cut inthe next year

Further details of our internal controt framework can be found in the Directors’ report
on page 71

Internal Audit

The Director of Internal Audit and his team report on a day to day basis to management
on the effectiveness of the group's systems of internal controls and the adequacy of
these systems to manoge business nsk and to safequard the group’s assets and
resources. This work s summansed and reported to the Commuttee on a regular basis
and is a key element of the assuronce that the Commuttee receves on the risks and
controls in the group

The effectiveness of the Intermnal Audit functon, its plans, level of resources and budget
are reviewed at least-annually by the Committee The Director of Intemal Audit is free
to muse any issues with the Commiitee or its Charman at any tirme dunng the year.

External auditors

Deloitte were appainted auditors of the company in 2005, pursuant to a compebitive
tender process. Deloitte audit all significont subsidiones of the group Annually, the
Committee reviews the external auditors’ oudit plan and reviews and assesses inforrnation
provided by thern confirming therr independence and objectivity within the context of
applicable regulatory requirements and professional stondards. The Committee also
reviews the ouditors’ effectiveness, which irwolves. assessment of the auditors by the
Commuttee and key executives, and confirmabon that the auditors meet miimum
standards of qualfication, independence, expertise, effectiveness and commumcation
These assessmenits are camed out pnor to the Committee recommending to the
board that the external auditors be proposed for reappointrent at the AGM.

The company does not currently have a policy of tendering the extemal audit ot specific
intervals but would intiate a tender process if there were any concemns about the
qualtty of the audit or the independence and objectivty of the auditors. In addition the
company will comply with the tendering requirernents of the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2012 which will require an audit tender no loter than 2020. There are no
contractual obligations that act to restnct the Committee's chowce of external auditors.

Details of the amounts paid to Deloitte for oudit and non-audit senaces are provided
innote 7 to the accounts on page 93.

Sevemn Trent Water Limited

The regutated activibies camed out by Sevem Trent Woter Limited require two main
reporting requirernents to Ofwat which are reviewed by the Committee: an annual
submission on Severn Trent Water Limited’s regulatory obligations, known gs the
Annudl Reguiatory Performance Report together with the Annual Regulatory
Compliance Statement; and a statement that underping the customer charges mode
by Sevem Trent Water Umited, known as the Pnnapal Statement.

In March 2013 the Committee reviewed the assurance framework in place for the
Annugl Reguictory Compliance Staterment process. In Novermber 2012 the Committee
reviewed the assurance framework for the Prindpal Stoternent and the PR14 process.
Delotte make reports to Ofwat in respect of Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory
accounts. The Annual Regulatory Performance Report, which an overall
picture of company performance, covers many aspects which are not financal and
Sevem Trent Water Limited appoints engineenng consultants, Athirs, to report on
those aspects, The Committee receves reports fromDelortte and Atkins on therr work
as part of its review of the Annuai Regulatory Returms,

Audit Committee attandance n 2012/13
. o _5/ 5
Dr Bernard Bulkin &/5
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Dr Bernard Buian

Chairman of the Carporate

Responsibility Comrriitee
The Cormmittee provides guidance and
direction to the group’s Corporate
Responsibilty {CR} programme, reviews
the group’s key non-fimancad nsks and
opportunites ond monrtors progress.
The terrms of reference for the Committee
can be found on our website
{www.sevemtrent.com) and are olso
avuilable from the Comparty Seaetary

The Committee reviews annually the
adequacy of the group’s formal
whistieblowing and procedures
which deal with dllegations frorm errployees
retating to breaches of the Code of Conduct
and reviews at each of its meetings the
whistieblowing nadent tog.

This report provides details of the role of the Corporate Responsibility (CR} Committee
and the work it has undertaken dunng the year

The members of the Committee are Dr Bernard Bulkin (Chairman), Andrew Duff,
Gordon Fryett and Tory Wray

The purpose of the Comrnittee Is to provide boord oversight of the management

of all non-finanoal risks to the group This year we abgned the structure for our

(R framework to ‘Doing the right thing - The Sevemn Trent way’, our Code of Conduct.
This comprises nine key principles that we work to and provides a common framework
for both our businesses - regulated and nor-regulated,

1 Keeping everyone hedithy and sufe

Supporting employees’ nghis and diversity
Maintaining ethical and honest behaviour

Staying free from bnbery and cormuption

Keeping our communications open and responsible
Delvenng excellent custormner service

Working within the community

Protecting our environment

. Standing up for what’s nght

Within the nine pnnaples of our (R framework, we have identified focus oreas that
are critical to our management of nsk and reputation These areas were deterrmined
through stakeholder diologue, nsk assessment and benchmarking within the

water industry and the FTSE 100 and are reviewed annually.

The nine prinaples of our Code of Conduct prowide the basis for the forward agenda of
the Committee During the year the Commuittee has recerved papers on key business
programmies and strategies finked to the terms of reference of the Committee

These included water effiaency, supply chain management, environmental
management systems, brand and reputation, occupaticnal health, employee
volunteering, vineroble customers, employee satisfaction and dversity In addition,
the Committee responds to emerging 1ssues and received updates on disability access
and pollutions performance

The Committee also received reports from Intemal Audrt with respect to theirwork
onnor-finanaal risk inked to the termns of reference of the Committee and regular
updates on health, safety and envronmentat performance and whistieblowing.

Within Severn Trent Water we have an effective performance managernent system in
place through our core business KPls. These are overseen by the Executive Committee
and the board. Many of the business KPis relate directly to our (R focus areas and
therefore contribute significantly to our CR performance We report intemally on our
performance through both the Executive Committee and the Committee Externally,
we report through a number of chonnels induding our Annudl Regulotory Retumns to
Cfwat, our websites and our annual report and cooounts.

Corporate Responsibility Committee attendance in 2012/13

Dr Bemard Bulkin 33 GordonFryett B 3

Andrew Duff
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Remuneration Committee

Richard Davey
Charman of the Remuneration Committee

The Cornmittee detesrmines, on behalf of
the board, the company’s policy on the
remuneraton of executive drectors, ather
mernbers of the Executive Comrmittee and
the Chairman of the board. The Committee
deterrmunes the total remuneration
packages and contractual terms and
conditions for these ndmdugls. The policy
framewark for rernunerating all sensor
executive managers is consistent with the
approach taken for executve drectors.

The rmembers of the Commuttee dunng the
year were Dr Bernard Bulkin, Richard Dovey
{Commuttee Charman) and Morbn Lamb all
of whom are mdependent non-executive
directors. Andrew Duff, the cornparny
(harman, who was independent on his
appomtment to the board, s also a
member Accordingly, the cormposition of
the Committee is m uccordance with the
Govermnance Code,

Dear Shareholder

Ths report sets out the remuneration policy for the directors of Sevem Trent Ac and
disdeses the amounts paid to them in the year ended 31 March 2013.

The UK Govermment has tabled proposals to reform the way directors’ remunenation
voted upon and reported. The new legislative requirements will not corne into effect
until October 2013. Although not mandatory for ths report, the Comimittee has
sought te comply with the new requirements where practicable and where minimaot
duplication with cumrent reporting standards occurs. Therefaore, this report has been
spiit into two sections, a Policy report which sets aut the remuneration policy of the
executve and non-executive directors and an Implementation report which discloses
how the current remuneration policy has been implemented in the year ended

31 March 2013. We will be seeking your suppart for both parts of the report by way of
a single advisory vote at the forthcoming AGM on 17 July 2013

The remuneration policy for senior executives s set with dose regard to the company’s
four key focus areas and nsk managernent.

Ke); focus " Remuneration policy

Customer = Custormer focused KPIs forrn a substontial part of the annuol
- delveringquality  bonus scorecard

Services at prees |, oy general policy s to posonfixed pay around the market

zl#sot%mers can medion to ensure that remuneration remains offordable.

« Return on Regulatory Capito! Volue {RoRCV) targets within the
tong Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and finonaiol based KPIs within
the annual bonus are set with dose regard to Ofwat's Final
Determination, ensuring that we dosely manage our

e avenn o poflOmTOnCewithnthe mguidtoylemits
Employee - Insetting directors’ pay the Committee 1s sensitive to pay and
-investinginthe  conditions in the workforce generolly.

"thg:t PEOPL‘; With . elected KPIs for the annual bonus indude health safety and
nght skills well-being and employee engogerment.

* HMRC approved share plans (all-employee Share Incentve Plon

{SIP) and Sharesave) are operated annually for Sevem Trent
Water (STW) UK based executives and employees. Sevemn Trent
Services (STS) employees are eligible to parbapate inthe

.+ mmrmen ann. Sharesavecnly given the SIP relates to STW performance. _

Erwironment = Ernronmental KPIs are included withun the annual bonus for

- reducing ofl employees, induding directors.

pollubon and our . 1he committee can override the formulaic bonus outturn if there

corbonfootprnt s asignificontenwronmentalese.
Finandial * Avariety of finanadl KPIs are used withm the annual bonus
= makmg our sconecard to help ensure our finanoal performance s opbrrsed,
business = Qutturn under the LTIP 1s determined by the achievernent of
fﬁmcg\r'se to RoRCV ogainst the Ofwot Final Determingtion, Payment will not

be mode if performance is below the RoRCV target set by Ofwat.

* Relotive total shareholder return {TSR) is used to measure
performance in the Share Matching Plan to reward executives for
Severn Trent outperforming a peer group of comparses in the
stock market.
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Governance Rermuneration Committee

Link between pay and Severn Trent performance in 2012/13

Annudl bonus payments to executive directors were between 95% and 115% of bose salary, reflecting a strong year of operational
performance of the business Payments under the LTIP vested at 57 5% of the mmamum award available, reflecting o 433%
increase in share pnce over the three years to 31 March 2013 and TSR perforrnance above median when compared to the

FTSE 51-150 {our TSR benchmark group for the 2010 LTIP oword).

Key policy developments for 2013/14
There are no material changes to the remuneration policy or Commttee processes proposed for 2013/14.

The Cornmttee continues to monitor policy to ensure that it s fit for purpose and atigned with shareholders’ interests, corporate
govemance and all employee remuneration policies Therefore, in 2013, the Committee intends to exarrine whether the cument
long term incentives can be simplified, assess whether sufficient weighting is gven te long termn perforrmance and to review
directors’ senvice contracts. The Committee will consult with major shareholders over the course of the next finanaat year regarding
any changes. Any armendments to the revised remunergtion palicy will be effective from 1 Apnl 2014 and will be voted upon under
the new BIS regulations at the 2014 AGM.

Richard Davey
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

RA‘M’{&O\N%




Governance Remunergbon Committee

Policy report
This port of the Directors’ remuneration report sets out the remuneration policy for the company with effect from 1 April 2013

Setting the remuneration policy

Each year, the Commitiee reviews the remuneration policy for executive directors and other senior executive managers, taking into
account both the extemnal markat and the company’s strategic objectives over the short and the medium term. Furthermore, there
15 a clear ink between all-employee remuneration polices and those operated at o senior executive level.

The Cornrmittee addresses the need to belance risk and reward. The Committee continues to monttor the vanable pay anangements
for the executive directors and other members of the Executive Committee to take account of the nsk profile of the compary
ensunng sustainabiity and how this is reflected in vanable remuneration The Committee believes that the schemes are appropnately
managad and that the choice of performance meosures ond torgets does not encouroge undue nisk taking by the executives The
schermes incorporcate a range of internal and extemal performance metrics, measunng both operational and finandial performance
providing a rounded assessment of overall company performance.

Lmkage to dll employee pay

The Committee addresses the need to ensure that changes in senior executive remuneration are kept in lne with workforce pay
Whilst it has not set a speatfic policy on the relationship between executive directors’ pay and that of the rest of the workforce, it
aims to ensure that executive salary movernent s appropriotely aligned to the rest of the workforce and specifically considers this
carefully as part of its decision making process. Furthermore, bonus schemes operate on a consistent basis throughout Severn Trert
(using the sume balanced scorecard) and all UK employees may particpate n the Sharesave and Share Incentve: Plan.

Shareholder views

The Commttee engages proactively with the company’s mapor shareholders, and takes sencusly their views. When any matenial
changes are made to the remuneration policy, the Committee Charman will inform, and where oppropriate, meet major
shareholders in advance

Remnunenaton policy for the executive drectors

The remuneration policy for executive directors compnses the following elements:

- base sdlary,

+ annual bonus scheme;

+ long term incentve schernes, and
= pension and benefits.

The following table sets out a summary of each element of the exacutve directors’ remuneration packoges.

Tony Ballance Martin Kane Andy Smith
Toryy Wray Michael McKeon Director, Strategy CEQ - Sevemn Drector of
Component Chef Executne Finance Dyrector end Regulation Trent Services Woter Services
Base scdary from £575,000 £466,800 £211,300 £256,900 £274,600
Ty 2003 e e e e e e e~
On target annuadl 60% 60%
bors(ofsalory) e e e oo ol e o
Maximum annual 120% 120% 120% 120% 120%
borus(eofsalary) e s o e wenn
% of bonus earned 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
deferedmioshares il e e o e e e
Annual LTIP award 7% 50% 50% 50% 50%
(hofsalory) e e e e .
SMP award - 051 051 051 051 0.5:1
maximum ratio of
matctung shares to
deferedshares . ... e i e~ e e e e
Pension Cash supplement of Cashsupplement of Defined contribution Cash supplementof  Final solary defined
arrangement 40% of bose sclary  40% of base salary schermne, 30% of base salary benefit scheme
contribubions of with cosh
30% of base salary supplement of 40%
of base salary above
e e e e e Mhesalary cap
Benefits A car allowance of £15,000 per annumn, farmily level private medical insurance, tffe assurance worth 6 x

base salary and an mcapacity benefits scheme
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Governance Remuneration Commitiee

Base salary

Base salanes for mdividual directors are reviewed annually by the Committee and take effect from 1 July, Salanes are set with
reference to indviduat performance, expenence and contribution, together with developmants in the relevant employment market
(having regard to the market meadian for simitar roles n publicly guoted companies of a comparable size and practice in other water
companies) and internal relativities,

The Commitiee gives due consideration to the current economic dimate, curment market practice and offordabity regarding
execubve solary reviews and the broader employee salary revew policy ot the company

The Committee has reviewed salones for 201372014 and has determined that the bose salaries for all executive directors will be
increased by 2.5% from 1 July 2013. This level of increase is Tn line with the average increase across the rest of the comparny.

Annuadl Bonus Scherme

Executive directors are eligible for annual bonuses to encourage iImproved performance, with targets established by the Committee
to align directors’ interests with shareholders’ interests. The maximum annuat bonus opportunity for all executive directors s 120%
of salary For the achieverment of target performance (which requires satssfachon of challenging goals), 60% of salary could be
eamed All annuat bonus payments are non-pensionable

Executive directors’ bonuses are determined by performance against a balanced scorecard of measures with their indnvidual
contnbution assessed through persenal objectives.

Half of any bonus paid 1s deferred into shares and held for three years following payment. If the executive is summarily dsmissed
without notice under hisiher employment contract then the deferred bonuses are forfeited. In all other cases of cessabon of
employment the deferred bonuses are not lost and the shares are automatically released on the dealing day after the cessation
of employment.
Severn Trent continues to operate a dawback provision,
Details of the bonus outturm for 2012/13 are shown i the Implementation report on pages 64 and 65.
Long term incentives
The executive directors are eligible to parbopate in twe long termincentive schemes: a} LTIP: and b} a Share Matching Pan (SMPY-
a) L7IP

The LTIP was approved by shareholders at the 2005 AGM Under the LTIP, annual condiional awards of performanice shares

may be made to execubve directors and senior staff, up to an annual maxamum of 125% of base salary, The policy level of LTIP
awords 15 70% of base satary for the Chief Executrve and 509% of base salary for other directors.

RoRCV will remain as the performance metrnic for the 2013 LTIP This meosure 1s consistent with the meosure used by Ofwat in
setting custormer prices as part of the Finat Determination {the process whereby Ofwat sets the level of pnces we can chorge
austomers) and reflects the efficiency of eamings rather than simply being an absolute meastrre of profit and s venfied and
published as part of the Annual Regulatory Performance Report. The Committee bealeves that the use of RORCV provides a strong
alignment between the long term finandal and operational performance of the group and the reward delivered to
managerment.
Further nforrnation with regards to the performance of the 2002 and 2010 LTIP can be found in the Implementation report on
page 67, together with the vesting schedule

b) smp
Unider the SMP, executive directors can recenve up to one matching share for each share deferred under the annual bonus
plan The aurrert policy & that they recesve 0.5 matchng share for each share deferred. Awards will normially vest as soon as the
Committee determines that the performance conditions have been met provided that the parbapant remams in employment ot
the end of the three year penod.

Awards under the SMP are subject to o retative TSR measure over three distinct performance penods. However, awards will not
normatly vest to participants unbl the third anrwversary of gront. The performance condition requeres the comparny’s TSR is
measured relative to thase comparues ranked 51-150 in the FTSE Index by market copaalisation {excluding investment
trusts). This is considered to be the most surtable comparator group since the number of comparabte requlated comparnies
against which te compare the company's performance remains teo small to enable o meaningful andlysis. The FTSE
51-150 comparator group aliows for the company performance to be measured aganst a broader market without any one
sector overly impocting the group. In addition for awards to vest, the Commuttee must be satisfied that the TSR is reflective of
the company’s underlying performance.

At the time of release partiapants will receive the volue of the drvidends pad on vested shares over the performance penod.

The TSR vesting schedule and detail of shares vested during the penod reported are shown in the Implementation report.
The plan wos moduced in 2010 with the first owords due to vest this year
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Penston

Severn Trent exeautive directors recenve retirernent benefits from a vanety of legocy pension anangerments includmyg defined
benefit, defined contribution (DC), payments made direct to persond plans and cashin lieu However, whilst for legacy reasons the
executive directors partidpate in a wanety of different armangements, the policy for emiployer contribubions for new executive
directors is 25% of salary. If the value of the persion contribution 5 above the HMRC Annual Allowance or Lifetime Allowance
executive directors will receive cash n beu

Detalls of the speaffic pension arrangements implemented m the year for each executive director ore detaited in the
Implementation report.

Reward scenarnos

The charts below show how the compasiiion of each of the exequtive directors’ emunention pockoges vanes ot different levels
of performance achievement. Target performance assumes a 60% of salary bonus, a 0 25 to 1 match on the related SMP award

and 50% vesting under the LTIP award for a single year Maxrmurm performance assumes full payment of bonus and full vesting
of the SMP and LTIP owards No assumphons have been made as to shore prce growth over the vesting penod.

Graph Removed
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ExeaUtive service controcts

The Remuneration Committee reviews the contractuat terms for executive drectors to ensure that these reflect best practice
and for new joiners a new model contract was ntroduced dunng 2012 This provides for termination provsions that compnse
a maximur of 12 months’ salary and fixed benefits only.

The remuneration related elements of the cument contracts forexecutme dlrectors are shownm the table below:

Provision Pdl:y

Noticepenod . 12monthsfometherpgty .

Terminahon Theoretical maximum payment In the case of redundmcy or termination n breach of the agreernent by the

payment company of 175% of base salary In determining actual payouts, the Comimittee has o duty to take into
account the following.

~a reduction of up to 10% can be made at the Committee’s sole discretion (i e. lowenng the payout to
157.5% of salary), and

- an explict douse in the contract stating that the company shall not be required to reword poor perforrmance

The value of any payment wilt not indude the relegse of owards which have been made under any share plans.
o ____ Thepions contain separate provisions regarding the treatment of leavers i line with best practice guxdelmes.

Mitigation Any termnation payment will not be made cutomutlcully but will be sub_|ect to both phusnng and mitsgation
(incdluding offset against any earmings from new employment)} unless, in the arcumstances, the Comnmittee
considers it oppropriate to achieve a dean break through payment of a lump sum, in which case it will require
sormne discount for early payment.

Change of control " There are no speaﬁc contractual payments or benefits which wouid be tnggered inthe event of a chunge n
control of the company

Contr(:lctdotes Execm]ved:rectors o Duheof currmtagreement - _l?g_tgofuppo:ntmenttoSevem Trent
TonyWrgy” o i 20 May 2008 o 7Mord\2005 o
Michoel McKeon _ 6December2005 13December2005
Tony Ballance  2June2008 Buyo0s
MartnKane © lJewary2012  10November1s7s
AndySmith T 2June2008 1 Jonuary 2005

Personal shareholdings

The comparty operates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to build and maintgin a shareholding
i the company The Chief Executive 1s expected to build and maintain a hotding of shares to the value of 1.5 x base solary and other
executive directors 1 x base salary. Executive directors are expected to retain alt of the net of tax number of shares they recene
through the LTIP, SMP and other shore-based plans until the shareholding quidelines have been met. Detaits of the aurment
shareholdings of the directors are set out on poge 66.

Exterrval directorships

Executrve directors are permitted to take on external non-executive directorships, though nomally oty one ather FTSE 100
appaintrment. In order to avoid any conflicts of nterest, all such appomtments are subject to the approval of the

Norminations Carnmittee, Executive directors are normally only penritted to retain the fees ansing from one such

appoibment. Externol non-executive appointments help to bing a further external perspective to the group and help in

the development of key indmduals’ expenence

Michael McKeon was appainted as a non-executive director of The Merchants Trust Plc on 1 May 2008 and in respect of the
appointrment for the year ended 31 March 2013 he was pad fees of £23,458

Tony Wray was appointed as @ nor-executive director of Grainger ple on 24 October 2011 and in respect of the appontment for the
year ended 31 March 2013 has been paxd fees of £41,250.

Both Michael McKeon and Tony Wroy retained their respective fees in accordance with the above policy.
No cther executive directors currentiy hold any extemal fee eaming non-executve directorships.
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Chairman and non-executive directors

The remuneration policy for non-executive directors, other than the Chairman, is determined by the board, within the imits set out
inthe articles of associahon A single fee including such memberships is ped, with additiona! fees paid for the senior independent
drrector and chammanship of the board committees. The Chairman's fee ts reviewed annually by the Committee (without the
Chairman present) He recerves a single fee of £250,000 to cover dll his board dubes.

The cumrent fee levels for the non-executive directors are set out in the table below and remain at 2012 fee levels.

Fees
Bose fee paidto all non-executvediectors . . £50000
Supplementaryfees T T T
- Senior independent director _ _ o L £10,000
- Audit Committee Chaiman — o I " £15,000
-RemunergtonCommitteeChairman 7 £15,000
~ Corporate Respansibiity Committee Chairman T £13,000

Non-execubive directars normally serve terms of three years They do not have service contracts. Instead they are engaged
by letters of oppointment which are terminable by erther party with no notice penod and no compensationin the event of
such termination.

FR— - Y - e — - — ae = e [, - -

Ir—ntlclappomm\ent— i Currertuppomtn‘en n nt‘ ) Currmtexpnyduteh i
OrBemardBulkin ... LJanuary 2006 Tlonuory2012 31December 2014 =
Rechard Davey - Tlanuory2006  1Jonuary2012 31December 2014
AndrewDuff(Charman] " 10Mqy2010 T 10Mqy2013 | 9May2016
Gordonfryett o w2009 1 JULy2_0“1j2 . 30June2015
Matmlomb T 29Fbuoy2008 | 1Mach201 _ 28Febrory2014
Baroness Noakes 29 February 2008 1 March 2011 28 February 2014

All of the directors are subject to regppomtment ot the 2013 AGM

Implementotion report

Membership of the Remuneration Committee

The members of the Committee are listed in the table below All are ndependent non-executive diectors, as defined under the
Governance Code, with the exception of the company Chairman who was independent on his appointmert,

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2013, the Committee met five times to discuss key rermuneration ssues ansing, the review and
operation of the company’s remuneration pobicy and market updates by its odvisers.

Committee attendance in 2012/13
RebaniDovey ~ "S5 DreemodBukn 55
AndraNDuﬁ"N 5/5  Maortin Lomb 415

With the exception of the company Charman, the Com—mittee members have no personal financiol interest, ather than as
shareholders, in the motters to be dedded.

External advisers

To ensure that the cormpany’s remunanbon proctices are market competitive, the Committee has occess to detalled
external advice from experienced specialist consultants

New Bridge Street (a trading name of Aon Hewitt Limited) 1s the independent odviser to the Committee. Nesther Aon Hewitt

Limited nor any other part of Aon ple (Aon Hewitt's parent company) provided other services to the corpany during the year.
Dunng 2012/2013, the Committee carried out a review of ts advisers, and reappointed New Bridge Street.

The Chief Executive (Tony Wray), the Director of Human Resources (Evetyn Dickey) and the General Manager of Reward and Pensions
{Richard Galletly) and New Bridge Street also attended the Committee meetings to provide advice and respond to speafic questions.
Such attendances spectfically excluded any matter concemng their own rermuneration. The Company Secretary, Bronagh Kennedy,
is secretary to the Committee.

The total fees paid to New Bridge Street in respect of ds services to the Cornmittee dunng the year were £130,799 (excluding VAT).
The fees charged for major projects are normally negotiated in advance of any major project being undertaken. However, an
element of the fees relate to sundry angoing odvice, in ine with New Bridge Street’s role to provide ongoing support throughout
the Cornmittee over the entire remuneratien year and are predorminantly charged on a ‘e spent’ basts. New Bridge Streetisa
signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct.
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The text and tables that folilow comprise the auditable part of the Directors’ remunerstion report, being the information required
by the UKLA Listng Rules 86 and 9 8.8,

Directors’emoluments . .. e e e
Total Total
201272013 Totol 201172012
Annual Annual before DC nchuding DC including DC
Bosicsolary  Benefits borus bonus penston  DC pension penson pension
and fees in kind? cosh®  deferred® Other® contributions contributions contribubons contributions
{E£000) (£1000) (£000) (£:000} (£000) (£'000} (£000) (£1000) {£000)
DrBemardBuln 830 - - T - " - 80 _ - 80 594
RchodDovey — ~ ~ 750 -7 "o 7o 773 73T -3 s
Andrew Duff _oBan o - TS T - T e psee - 500 2500
Gordan fryett L. WO~ - -, .50 - 500 464
'MUFEII:I—LO_I'!'IP_ ) 500_ B T - ..z N - 00 . LT 500“ 464
Baroness Nockes ) 650 e b3 653 - 6?3 _ 586
Tany Ballance i 1985 15 979 979 150 4108 728 4836 /3953
MartinKane A 2508 494 1440 1440 1668 7550 - 7550 5014
Michael Mckeon . As27 15 231 T 231 T 1%4 109637 T - 10%3 8798
AndySmtﬂj o . 2568 15 1269 1269 667 5788 - 5788 _LB65
TonyWmy . 9524 15 2732 2732 2383 13386 = - 13386 10349
Tatal 2,263.7 554 8651 8651 683 8 4,7331 728 48059 38101

Footnote:

® The figure shown for Martin Kane s iargely representative of hes US cost of ving experses, (accommodabon £22,799, UK ond US pivate medical msurance £10,605,
vehide aosts £5,858, ar fores £2,662, tax adwce £7,390 and flexible benefits £71 00)

) The directors recenve 50% of ther annuol bonus eword n cosh and 50% in shares. The amounts shiown in the toble hive been mode n respect: of 2012713 parformance,

Qutsignding unreleosed gnnual boruss scheme awards are shown as non-beneficial interests n the toble of directors’ share nterests and n the deferred bonus oward table,
@ Other esmoluments indude expenses charpeable to Ncorme tmx, aor cliowances, troved allowances, telephone allowonces, and amounts pad tn bew of pension contributions.

Included in other emoluments arer

- Richard Davey experxes £333.50

- Baroness Noakes expenses £264.50,

- Tory Ballance oor allowance £15,000,

- Martin Kane persion supplernent £75,180, cor allowance £15,000, US disturbance aliowance and udlity costs £32,309, and compensation for UK tax suffered

on LS benefits £44,270

- Michoel McKeon pension supplement £181,270, cor allowance £15,000 and a telephone alowance £112.68,

- Andy Smith pension supplemnent £51,670 and car allowance £15,000

- Tony Wray pension supplement £223,300 and £15,000 ar allowonce:

Details of variable pay eamed in the year
Arnual bonus plan outtum - 2012/13

In the 2012713 finanaal year, the Chief Executive end Finance Director had: (i} 80% of therr borws outtum based on the
performance of Severn Trent Water, (i) 10% bosed on the performance of Sevem Trent Services and (5} 10% based on personal
cortnbution. The remaining executive directors with the excephon of the Chief Executive Officer, Severn Trent Services, had 90% of
therr bonus outium atiributed to the performance of Severn Trent Water and 10% based on personal performance.

The Cruef Execubive Officer, Severn Trent Services had 70% of his bonus linked to the performance of Severn Trent Services, 10%
linked to the performance of Severn Trent Water and 20% against personal contnbution.

i} Severn Trent Woter

The bonus outturn in respect of Severn Trent Water performance was operated by reference to a balanced scorecard of measures,
based on 10 of the company’s 16 KPIs (shown on page 139). The Committee believes thot the use of the selected 10 Sevem Trent
Water KPIs continues to be both an effective ond challenging annual borus metne and meets the needs of the business. The bonus
entitiement was determined by reference to the aggregate number of points awarded across all the KPIs. The torgets taken
together are considered by the board 10 have an impact on the longer term finanod performance of the company and a number
of them are reported to Ofwat.
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A definition of each KP1 s Usted below:
Keyoeo Obeane 77T T eyPedomonce Indcatos T T
Employee Provide a safe working ervironment KPI1  lost tme madents per 100,000 hrs worked
.. . ......Dewlopaconfdentondproductiveworifore  KPI2  Employeemotwvaion
Customer Quolty Interaction withthe customer KP4 Service Incentive Mechanism - Qualitative
KPIS Service Incentive Mechanism - Quantitative
KPI7  Senviceabilicy - Woste
e e e e n vae o — e meun .. . KPIB  Seniceobiy -Woter -
Fnoncial Asset bose enhancernent KPLS  Capiol Expenditure (net) versus Final
Determination - % outperformance
Management of cost base KPi11 Operating Expenditure versus Final Determingtion
e e e e e e o e e L e wmeme oo TXoutperformance . -
Emvironrent Minimise ervironmentat impact KPL12  Pollutioninadents (cat 1, 2 ond 3)

KPI16 Leakage M/d - Post MLE

Eoch KPT has 100 target points, 130 stretch pomnts and are uncapped For executive directors to be awarded the maxamum bonus
available they are required to achieve 1,300 aggregate points. Dunng the year 7 of the 10 KPIs exceeded the stretch level of
performance. After examining the overall perfonmance and indicetive bonus outturm the Committee determined that each of the
7 KPIs should be capped ot the level of stretch performance As a consequence the bonus awarded for the Severn Trent Water
portion of the annual bonus was 77.7% of its borws element maximum, representing a strong performance in the year and
continues the positive progressive trend in the outturn of the KPIs The chart below shows the points gwarded by the Committee
for bonus purposes under each of the 10 KPIs in relation to the 2012713 annual bonus scheme and the effect of capping of each
KPI ot stretch performance

Graph Removed

Copital expendrture (Capex) s measured annually and over the five year AMP period. The directors are incentivised to outperform
the annual Capex target, however, ths year the annual target wos not outperformed and therefore zero points were achieved,
Sevem Trent Water remains on track to meet its five year Capex target at the end of the AMP.

i) Sevemn Trent Services

A proportion of the bonus opportunity for the Chief Executive (10%), Finance Drrector (109} and Chief Executive of Severn Trent
Servicess (70%) was measured ogamst the performance of Sevem Trent Services. Performance was measured against the profit
before interest and tax (PBIT) {before exceptional tems} and the retum on invested caprtal (ROIQ) of Severn Trent Services. A number
of the persondl objectives set for the directors named above atso relate to the performance of Sevem Trent Services, Followang a
strong year of performance, the PBIT and ROIC torgets were met 1n full and the bonus oward for this element of the plan will pay
out at the maximum

i) Personal contribution

All directors had 10% of their benus opportunity measured agamnst personal objectives, with the exception of the Chief Executve
of Severn Trent Services who had 20%. Performance agamst personal objectives in the year was strong with directors receing
between 90% and 26% of the mmarmum bonus opportunity avaiable under this elerment of the annual bonus plan.

The Committee has reviewed the operotion of the annual bonus plan over the year and concluded that it should operate on
a similar bass for 2013/2014.
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Directors’ pension provisions

Tony Wray and Michael McKeon recerve a salary supplernent of 40% of base salary in lieu of future pension provision and
Martin Kane recerves 30% of salary

Tony Ballance ts a member of the Sevemn Trent Pension Scheme (Pension Choices section) which s one of the company’s defined

contnbution schemes. He cumently contributes 3% of salary and the company contrbutes 30%, plus a further 2.5% in espect of
death in service and il health benefits. The normal retirernent age for the scheme is 65 atthough retirernent pnor to 65 15 possible
with the consent of the company

Andy Srrith partiapates in the Severn Trent Pension Scheme which will dose n 2015 The scheme s a funded HMRC registered final
salary ccaupational pension scheme which provides

+ anomoal retirernent age of 60 years;

« an overall pension at nermal retirement age of two thirds of finat pensionable salary, which for executve directors s defined as
base solary only, subject to the completion of 20 years’ pensionable seriice and member contnbutions of 6%,

+ life cover of 4 x pensiongble eamings;

+ a pension payable in the event of retirement on grounds of il health, and

+ adependant’s pension on death of two thirds of the member’s pension.

Andy Srmuth partiapates up to the level of the scheme specific earings cap which in 2012/13 was £137,400 He s provded with a
cash supplernent m beu of pension entitterment above this scherme cap at 40% of hes salary Early retirement is avoiloble after the
age of 55 with the consent of the company, subject to actuanal reduction, other than in the cose of ncapacity

Details of d_irr_ectors_' interests n deﬂl}ed be[leﬂt pension schemes

Increase in Tnaeasen  Transfer volue
Serice occrued  Transfervalue  Tronsfervolue  transfervalue of accrued
completed n Accrued Incregsen  pension dunng of ocarued ofocoued  overtheyear benefits net of

years (including  pensionat 31 ocoued pension the yeor (net of pension at pension at net of directors’ drectors’
trarsfemedn March 2013 dunng the yeor mflabon} 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 contributions  contributions

Nome service credits) {Epa) (Epa) (£pa) (£000) (£000) {£00G) (£'000)
AndySmith _ 83760 G2 5AS0 6808 4933 1793 1081
ToryWray _ T6 7 Toosls [T T3 T s TTEns T Gw3 T T TET2T T 60
Martin Kane 35 149,113 14,340 10,027 2,7489 2:166.1 5828 2644
Notee:

Accued pension figures and transfer value calculations prowded by Towers Wotson

The tronsfer value bass s been updated snce the kst yeor end. Transfar vatues quotad above reflect the tronsfier uolue bags thot was n force at the time of the oacrued persion
cokculabon. The impoct of the change in methodology wos to ngease the rarsfer walue ot 31 March 2013 value s follows: Andy Srmith £23,400, Tory Wray £17,100, Mortn Kone £89,3000

Mr Whray ceased te contribute to the scheme frorm 31 Decernber 2011 At this date he becorne adeferred pensioner of the scherne and stopped occnuang persionable service.
Towers Watson hove aatrulated his acaued pension ond Final Pesrslanabile Salary as ot 31 Denernber 2011, In addition, Towers Watson hove colculatad hes transfer value os at
31 mMarch 2013 ollowng for deferred revoluahon 1o ths dote.

Inflaton figure used i respect of year 1 February 2013 (32%) as the botest availoble figure prior to the year end, Thes gpproach ts consistent wath the prios year
Directors’ share interests

The directors of the comparty at 31 Morch 2013 and therr benefiaal interests in the shares of the compary were as follows:
i) Beneficiol holdings and outstanding deferred shares

At 1 Aprl 2012 nurmber of At 31 March 2013 number of At 22 May 2013 nurmber of

ordnary 97 Yhsp shares each ordinary 97 7hsp shares eoch ordinary 97 Yhep shares eoch

Beneficial Non-benefical! Benefioal Non-beneficial! Beneficic Non-benefioal

Chairman and other non-executvedirectors e e e
DrBemordBufen 8% - " 584 T o e84 -
RichardDavey =~~~ 588 ... 8 _ - . s8 -
AndrewDuffchaymer) 38~~~ - 3% - 350 -
Martinlomb L - 3,012 - .. .3n -
BaonessNookes 4018 - " 4m8 - 408 -
Gordon Fryett _ B T S = .
Breavedirectos T T .
ToryBalance T 4218 13ses e M3 8172 11317
Motinkane? 11162 15678 16225 13759 16674 13759
MchoelMcKeon 8168 32574 20302 25601 20302 25601
AndySmith 9514 19333 16051 15364 16051 15364
JoyWraye 13429 35453 T 26419 29,733 27,542 29,733

1 Nonbenefiaal holdings are yet to be released corditionally held under the Annual Bonus Scherme, to which drectors becorme uncondibondily entitied on the thid anvrversary of gront.
2 Martin Kane acguaed 449 shares on 1 May 2013, with a market pca of 1,823p per share, following the exercrse of his 2010 three year Sharesove scheme opbion.
3 Tony Wray acqured 1,123 shares on 1 May 2013, with a market pnce of 1,823p per share, fallowing the exercrse of his 2010 three year Sharesove scherne option.
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i) Long Term Incentive Plan

The executive directors have further interests in the company’s ordinary shares of 97 17/, p each by virtue of having recenved
cortingent awards of shares under the LTIP The LTIP operates on a three year rolling basis, Awardsdo not vest until they have been
held i trust for three years and specific performance anteria have been satisfied. The Sevemn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust
& operated in congmchon with the LTIP, Exequtive directors have a technical interest in 395,749 shares held by the Sevem Trent
Employee Share Ownership Trust. The individual interests, for the executive directors, which represent the maximnum aggregate
number of shcmes to which eoch ndividual could become entltled, are s follows.

Maximam

outstonding awords

Awardsgranted  Maxarmum award Awaords vested Awards lapsed  as ot 31 March 2013

Tony Ballance 7 y2008 7,405 2103 5,302 ] -
L munend 6803 T - - 6803
o . Mme201 BS2 L —65S
- T 9dune2012 5741 - - 5241
MatnKane ... 7huy2009 _81s4 2315 5839 -
. re2010 8504 - - 8504
o o 72 )une2011 7121 - - 1
oo ... l9dne2on2 719 - - 719
MchoelMdeon T Taty2009 18733 5320 13413 -
o " Mune2010 17211 - -7
L . NJune2011 14411 - - 1441
o 77 19lune2012 12684 - - 12684
Andy Smith T 7ay2008 1,9 3129 7890 -
o T Mune2010 10,124 - - 10124
.. nae21r  8ATT - - ... BAT
L o _ . 19June2012 a0 - = 1480
TooyWray " Tly2009 27769 7886 19883 -
o T 71une2010 25512 . - 25512
_____ - e e e, L 2dune20n1 23271 - ————. T BN
19 June 2012 21,875 - - 21,875

Mgrket price on the date of the 2012 award was £17 49 (19 June 2012).

The LTIP awards made in 2009 and 2010 were subject to TSR performaonce, measured relative to those companies ronked 51-150
inthe FTSE by market capitalisobon {exduding imvestment trusts) At median performonce, 25% of awards vest ond 100% vest for
performance at or above the upper quartile In addition, for awurds to vest, the Committee must be satisfied that the cormparwy's
TSR 15 reflective of the compary’s underlying performance. The 2009 award ended its TSR parformance peniod on 31 March 2012
and vested at 28.4%. The market price on the date of vesting (1 June 2012) of the 2009 award was £17 60 The 2010 oward ended
its TSR performance period on 31 March 2013 and will vest at 57.5%.

The performance conditions for the LTIP awards made in 2011 and 2012 are based on Return on Regulatory Capital Voalue (RoRCV).
Asliding scale of targets is used, inked to outperformance of the Ofwat Final Determination shown graphicatly below:

Graph removed
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This vesting schedule is set sa as to ensure that executives are appropriately rewarded for performance in excess of the Finol
Determinabon, with no payouts for performance below this. However, Tt s also important that exeautives are not.over ncentivised
to achieve excessive levels of RoRCY, which could in theary mcertnvise inappropriate behoviours such as operational performance
which does not deliver customer value or inadequiate nvestrnent in our capital base. The Commitiee believes the above scale
encourages delivery of strong perfomance aganst the Final Determmination, but withcut compromising the company’s wider values.
Performance is measured over three finanaal years, If the vesting result is 0% or greater than 50% then the Compnittee reserves

the discretionary power to change this resuit, If 15 greater than 50% it may reduce the vesting to a number not less than 50% os it
constders appropriate, and ff it 1s 0% it may ncrease it to any figure not greater than 50%. The use of this discretion 1s expected to be
exceptional, but may be invoked by the Committee m order to take into account of arny of the following factors {not an exhaustive list)

+ octual RPI compared to the Ofwat assurned RPI figure - even though the RoRCV 1s adjusted each year for RPI a significant swing
i nflation during the year can result in substantict under or over performance on the RORCY torget. RPIE in itself is not a factor that
management can influence;

- changes to the finanang of the company as approved by the board dunng the performance penod - for example a sigrificant
change to the level of gearing of the balance sheet would result in partially meeting this performance conditon, ond

+ policy changes that occur dunng the performance penod - there is much discussion on the future shape of the water industry
i the UK and if enacted we would wish to ensure that any changes hove a neutral Impact on existing awards.

Farticpants are entried to addtional shares in eu of dividends paid on vested shares over the performance period.
iii) Annual Bonus Scheme

The shares in respect to 2012/2013 performance year are due to be granted in June 2013 The table below shows outstanding
unreleased shore awards from previous years.

" " "o - e e e OO,

Annual bonus Deferred share
Date of grant  deferred intoshares  Numnberof shores  aword release date
TonyBalanee  7July2009  £62,29 5,669 9 July 2012
S 28June2010  ES1448 4133 27June2013
- 30June2011 £51823 3736 29June2014
S 28June2012 ES563% 3442 27June2015
Martinkore T 7 Juty 2009 £68598 6243 9July2012
___________ T 8ure010 64310 5173 27June2013
R T 30Mumez0m £59119 T 4262 29June2014
_________________ o 281une2012  £69887 4324 27 une2015
MichaelMcKeon 7uly2000 £157,500 14343 9Juy2012
T 28June2010 _ £128724 10355 27 June2013
7 30Mune2011 £109262 7,876 29 June2014
e T 7T Toswee2012” £115108° 7370 27June2015
AndySmth 7July2009" £92,700 8437 9 July2012
o T ghne2010  E75810 6098 27.June2013
S e T T T T 30june 2011 £66555 4,798 29 June 2014
ST T T 8aune2012 £72210 4468 27 June 2015
ToyWry © 7hy2009 £166680 15187  9luy2012
e . . .. _ _ _%june2010 _  £1389%6 _ __ 11182 _ 27June2013
- T T304ume011 T T £126000 T 9084 29June2014
28 June 2012 £152,988 9467 27 June 2015

Noter

The 2009 owards were relecsed on 9 July 2012 ot £16.24 per share
The market pce on the date of grant of the 2012 aword wos £16.45 (28 June 2012).
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rv} Share Matching Plon

Under the Shore Matching Plan executives can recerve, subject to performance, matching shares for each share deferred under the
annual borus plan The current palicy rs for one matdhing share to be awarded for every two defeired shares. The table below
shows outstanding unreleased matching shares

Maxarnum
outstanding
awards os ot

Dateofaword  Moxmum award Awards vestryg Awards lapsing 31 March 2013

Tony Ballance _ 21May2010 2,069 - - 2,069
L ) 20May2011 1868 - . - ) 1,868
e .. BMay2012 1721 - i - 1,721
MatnKane ) 21 Moy 2010 2% - - 2,586
o . 20May2011 2,131 = - 2,131
. 25May202 2162 T A 7
MichoetMckeon e AMay2010 5177 - ... 1 . 5w
- S 20May2011 3938 - - 3,938
. - ) 25May2012 0 3688 T e - 3,685
Andy Srrith . ) 21May2010 3049 - - 3,049
) . . .20May201 2339 e .. . 2,399
o - _ _25May2012 2,234 - - 2,234
Tony Wray _ o ... 21May2010 581 - - 5,591
. e e e 20May2011 _ A542 L LT L A5
25 May 2012 4733 - - 4733

The performance condition for the 2010 SMP awards 1s the same as that opplying to the LTIP awards granted in 2010, albert with
the performance period being three years from the date of grant.

Shown graphically, the vesting schedule and performance and vesting penods apply to the 2010, 2011 and 2012 SMP awords is:

Graph removed Graph removed

[n addition, for any awards to vest, the Cornmittee must be sabsfied that the vesting level 1s justified when taking into account

the underlying financial performance of the company over the full three year performance penod and that there has been no
compromise to the commeraal practices or optional standards of the group over this penod

The TSR performance up to 31 March 2013 for the outstanding 2010, 2011 and 2012 SMP awards ndicates that 67.1%, 73.8% and
(%% of the maximum owaord will vest for each award respectively, reflecting generally strong performance compared to the other
compantes in the TSR comparotor group

UOHDULIQJUI JBI0  SIUSLLIERONS IDDUDUT AUDALLIO)  SIUSLLBNOTS IDDUTUY ANOK)  S0UDLUSWOG)  MANDI SSBUSNG  MAABAD

£10Z SWNOY pun 1oday [onuLy  d1d WAL Wenes



/0

Governance Remuneration Committee

v) Shmesuve options over ordinary share's
Exersed  Concelled " Granted

Atthestortof  dunngthe dumngthe dumngthe Attheendof Date from
theyer (No  year(No.of year(No.of year{No.of theyear{Ne. Yearofgmmi Exemssepmce  which
of shares) shares) shores) sharesy  of shores) of opton (p} exerosable  Exprydate
Sharesave! i o o o
Tony Ballance? 556 (556) - - - 2009 862 May2012 Oct2012
T 61 - - - 61 2010 808 Moy2013 Oct2013
o - - - 715 725 2003 1,241 May2016 Oct2016
MorinKane* 222 - - 72009 862 May2012 Oct2012
. - = - 49 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
N 316 - - - 36 2011 1137 May2014 Oct2014
S ~ - - - 152 152 2012 1177 May2015 Oct2015
o - - - 290 20 013 1241 May2016 Oct2016
Michael McKeon 1,943 - - - 1%3 2009 862 May2014 Oct2014
Andy Stith_ 1123 - - - L1233 20010 808 Moy2013 Oct2013
o - - - 725 725 2013 1261 May2016 Oct2016
Tory Wray L1123 - - - L123 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
- - - 725 725 2013 1241 May2016 Oct2016

1 The executive direchors, in cormimon with dll efigible UK ernployees of the group, are entitied to partcgaate n the company’s HMRC opproved Sharesove Scheme,
2 Tony Ballance ooqured 556 shares on 8 Novernber 2012, with o market price of 1,51 7p per share, following the exerase of hes 2009 three year Sharesave scheme oplions,

generating a £3,641 gam

3 Martn Kone aegired 222 shares on 1 May 2012, with o market pnce of 1,683p per share, following the exerase of his 2009 three year Sharesove scheme oplions, genenating

a£1,822 gan,

The terms and conditions applicable to these options are those provided in that scheme  The opbions have no performance
condibions as such conditions are not permtted by legislation No executive share options In respect of executive directors were
granted or lapsed during the year At the close of business on 31 March 2013 the mid-market pnce of the company’s shares was

£17 12 and the range dunng the year was £14 97 to £18 36

Five year total shareholder return chart

This groph ilustrates the vatue, by 31 March 2013, of £100
mvested in Severn Trent Plc on 31 March 2008 compared
with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 Index.
The intermed:ate points show the value at mtervening
financal year ends.

Graphremoved

Statemment of shareholding voting at AGM

At tast year's AGM, the resolutlon approving the Directors’ remuneration report recerved mefollwnng votes ﬁ_gm shareholders

Totdmmberofwtes %ofvotescust
For - - ) 135100083 96 96%
Aganst - T 8231835 O 304%
Totalvotescost i 139332658 5847%
Abstenbiors 7 o 2,383,537 NA

1 As o percentage of share coprtol

Note: The table above does not form part of the auditable section of the Directors’ remuneration report.

Richard Davey QM,%

Chaimnan of the Rernuneration Committee




Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited
finanaal statements of the group, for the year ended
31 March 2013

Principal activity

The principal acthaty of the group s to treat and provide water
and remove waste water in the UK and intermnationaily.

Detais of the prncipal joirt ventures, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the group at 31 March 2013 ane shownin
notes 19, 20 and 42 to the finanaal statements on pages 101
and 127.

Business review

The Choirman’s statement, the Chief Executive’s review,

the report and performance reviews for the group’s main
businesses and the Financial review on poges 35 to 38 provide
detoiled mformation relating to the group, its busness models

and strategy, the operation of its businesses and the results and
financat position for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Detoils of the principal risks and uncertainties focing the group
are set out in the risk management section on pages 39to 42.

All of the above are mcorporated by reference in (and are
deemed to form part of) this report.

Directors and their interests

Biographiies of the directors cumently serving on the board
are set out on pages 44 and 45

All of the directors will be offenng themsetves for reappointment
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), as set cut in the
Governance report on pages 48to 51.

Details of directors’ service ogreements are set out in the
Drrectors’ remunerahion report on page 62 The interests of
the directors in the shares of the company are shown on
pages 66 to 70 of that report.

Insurance and indemnities

The company mointains Directors’ and Officers’ Lability
Insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought
against its directors and officers. In occordance with the
company’s artides of assoaabion, and to the extent permitted
by law, nNovernber 2011 the company indemnified each of ks
directors and other officers of the group against certan liabilities
that may be incurred as a resutt of their positions with the group
Sevem Trent does not hove in place any indemnities for the
benefit of the auditors.

Employees
The average number of employees within the group 1s shown in
note 9 to the financial statements on poge 94

Sevem Trent believes that a diverse and indusive culture is o key
factor in being @ successful business. Apart frorn ensuring an
mndividual has the ability to do the job we do not discrrminate in
any way and make every effort to ensure that those with
disahilties are able to be emplayed by us, We endeavour to
retmin employees 1n the workforce if they becorme disabled,

we make all recsonable adjustments to their role and,

if necessary, look for redeployment opportunities to support
them m seeking an altematrve role within Sevemn Trert.

We ensure that training, career development and promation

opportungties are avallable for all our employees mespective
of their gender, race, oge or disability
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The group actively encourages employee invoivernent and
consuttabon and ploces emphasis on keeping its ernployees
nforrmed of its activity and financial performance by way of
brefings and publication to staff of all relevant information ond
corporate announcerments, To help develop employees’ interest
m the company’s perfonmance, Severmn Trent offers two
employee share plans. The Severn Trent Sharesagve Scheme,

an HM Reverwe and Custorns approved SAYE plan, 1s offered

to UK employees on an annual basis, The Severn Trent Share
Incentve Plan, approved by HM Revenue and Customs,

makes an annual oward of shares to Severn Trent Plc and
Severn Trent Water Limited employees, based on performance
aganst the KPIs,

Research aond development

Expenditure on research and development is set out in notes 7
and 17 to the Financed! staternents on poges 93 and 99
respectrely.

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the EU Fair Value Directive in
relation to the use of financal nstruments by the company are
set out in note 32 to the Ainancial statements on poges 109 to
118 Further detads on our treasury policy and management
are set out In the Financaol review on page 37

Post balance sheet events
Detalls of post balance sheet events are set out in note 40 to
the group financial statements on page 126.

Diwdends

An mtenm dividend of 30 34 pence per ordinary share wos paid
on 11 January 2013 The directors recommend ¢ final dnadend
of 4551 pence per ordinary share to be paid on 26 Juty 2013 to
shareholders on the register cn 21 June 2013 This would bring
the total dmdend for 2012/13 to 75.85 pence per ordinary
share (2012: 70.10 pence) The payment of the final dvidend s
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM,

On 27 july 2012 a specid dividend of 63.0 pence per ordinary
share was poki to shoreholders.

Capital structure

Details of the compary's issued share capital and of the
movernents dunng the year are shown in note 29 to the
finanaal statements on page 109. The comparw has one dlass
of ordinary shares which cames no right to fued incorme

Each share camies the nght toone vote at general meetings of
the company. The ssued nominal value of the ordinary shares
s 100% of the total issued nominal volue of all share capital.

There are no specific restnctions on the size of a holdng nor on
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisions of the orticles of assooation and prevaiing legslution,
The directors are not aware of any agreements between
holders of the company’s shares that may resutt in restrictions
on the transfer of secunbes or on voting nghts.
Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 33 to the
financil statements on pages 119 to 122. For shares held by
the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, the trustee
abstains from voting.

No person has any special nghts of control over the company’s
share capeel and all issued shares are fully poid.
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With regard to the appointment and replacement of directors,
the compony1s governed by s artides of association, the
Govemnance Code, the Companies Act 2006 ond related
legeslation. The arides may be amended by speaal resolution
of the shareholders. The powers of directors are described in the
Severmn Trent Plc Board Governance document, the arbdes and
the Govemance report on poges 48 to 51.

Under tts articles of association, the directors hove authonty to
allot ordinary shares, subjct to the aggregate nominat amount
limit set ot the 2012 AGM,

There are o number of agreements that take effect after, or
terminate upon, a change of contral of the compary, such as
commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease
amangements and employee share plans None of these s
considered to be significant in termis of thew ikely impact on
the business of the group as awhaele There are no agreements
between the company and its directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or employrment that
accurs because of a takeover bid

Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 March 2013 the company had been notified In

accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency
Rutes of the following major shareholdings

Percentnge of

No. of ordinary - voting nghts and

shares of 97 71sp 1ssued share

Narne of holder eoch copital

Blackrock Inc o 23457458 987%

Newton Investment

Management Lid o 12087473 = 509%

Legal & General Group Plc 9,627,643 4.04%
Percertoges rounded to two decmal places.

As at 29 May 2013, the company had been notified of the
following holdings of vobing rights in the ordmary share capital
of the company: Blockrock Inc 23,457,458 (9.87%); Newton
Investment Management Ltd 12,087 473 (5.09%) ond Legal &
General Group Plc 9,627,643 (4 04%).

Authority to purchase shares

The company was grven authonty at its AGM in 2012 to make
market purchases of ordinary shares up to a maximum number
of 23,819,555 shares. Similar authority wil again be sought from
shareholders at this year's AGM. No market purchases were
made by the comparty during the year ended 31 March 2013

Supplier payment policy

Indmdual operating companies within the group are
responsible for establishing appropnate policies with regard

to the payment of their suppliers. The companies agree

terms and conditions under which business transachions

with suppliers are conducted. It s group polxy that provided

a supplier is complying with the relevant terms and conditions,
including the prompt and complete submussien of oll specified
documentation, payment will be made in accordance with
agreed terms. It 1s alsa group policy to ensure thot suppliers
know the terms on which payment will take ploce when
bustness 1s agreed., Details of supplier payment policies can be
obtained on request to the company. Trade creditors for the
group at the year end are estimated as representing 17.9 days’
purchases (2012 21.2 days’ purchases)

Contnbutions for palitical and charitable purposes
Bonations to chartable organisations durtg the year
amounted to £97,707 (2012 £107,325) Donabons are gven to
charies whose projects align closely with our gim to promote
the resporsible use of water resources and weste water services
which provde the opportunity for longer term partnerships.

In additon we provde donctions to employee nominated
chanties through a matched funding scheme and hedlth and
safety reward schemnes. We ore glse cormmitted to supporting
WaterAid, the UK's onty major chanty dedicated to improving
access to safe water, hygiene and santtotion in the world's
poorest countries.

Sevem Trent's policy is not to make any donations for politcal
purposes n the UK, or to donate to EU pelibca] parties or incur
EU polrzcol expenditure, Accordingly nether Sevem Trerit Plc nor
its subsidiones made any peltical donations or incurred political
expenditurein the finanaal year under review

Under the provisions of the Folitical Parbes Elections and
Referendums Act 2000 (the relevant prowisions of which are
now contained i Part 14 of the Compares Act 2006),
shareholder authonty s required for politrcal donations to be
made or political expenditure to be ncurred by the company
or any of its subsidiares in the EU and disdosure of any such
payment must be made in the annual report. The legistation
gves a wide defintion of what constitutes political donations
and political expendrture including sponsorship, subscriptions,
payrnent of expenses, paid leave for employees fulfilling public
duties and support for bodies representing the business
community in policy review or reform. The comparty has
therefore obtamed mited suthonty from shareholders asa
precautonary measure to allow the company to continue
supporting the community and such ergonisations without
inadvertently breaching the legistation.

At the 2012 AGM, shareholders gave the company authonbies
to make poltical donations or to incur political expenditure m
the EU (which would not ordinarity be regarded as polrtical
denations) up to an aggregate annual limit of £50,000 for the
companyand its subsidianes Pursuant to those authorities,
dunng the year ended 31 March 2013 the group incurred costs
of £nil (2012: £nil). Those authonties will expire at the 2013 AGM
and, in line with market practice to renew the authorities on an
annual basis, the board hos dedided to put forward a resolution
to this year's AGM to renew the outhoribes to make donations
to political organisations and to incur politicat expenditure up to
a maxtmum of £50,000 per annum As perrmitted under the
Compantes Act 2006, ths resolution also covers any polibeal
donations made or politionl expenditure ncurmed, by ony
subsudianes of the company.
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Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2013

/3

Nurnber of
Cotegory shoreholders % of shareholders ~ Numnber of shares % of shares
Indvidudlandjoftaccourts 60846 913 7503498 _ 105
Other* 5,790 8.7 213,330,806 895
Total 66,636 10000 238,365,734 100.00
* Inclurdes insurance comparies, norminee: companies, banks, pension funds, other comorate bodies, Imited ond public imited comporwes, L
Size of hoiding m % of shareholders  Number of shores % of shares
1499 _ P 7201 8380610  _ 333
sio-ode T T TR figso T 1798 a7 330
10004999 ) - -, S - 9,771,710 . Al
5,000—9,999" i § 317 948 _____ 2_21146,49“9 090
1000049999 T 07 7 TTmpg TTT pag 7,647,097 321
50000-99999 B S L - XS . 285
100,000+ 253 038 194,281,752 8151
Total 66636 100.00 238,365,734 10000
Internal controls The group’s procedures for exeraising control and maonaging nsk

The board 1s responsible for the group's system of intemal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The board reviews
the effectiveness of the systern of internal control, nduding
finanaial, operational, compliance and risk manogement,

at least annwially in accordance with the requirernents of the
Governance Code. The internal control system can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance agamnst material
misstaterment o loss, os it 15 designed to manage rother than
eliminate the rsk of fallure to achieve business objectives.

The Audit Cormmittee reviews the group’s risk managerment
process and the effectiveness of the system of internal control
on behalf of the board and keeps under review ways in which
to enhance the control and assuronce amangements.

The Audit Committee receives reports every six months

from the Chuef Executive detalling the significant nsks and
uncertainties faced by the group, an assessment of the
effectiveness of controls over each of those nsks and an action
plan tommprove controls where this hos been assessed as
necessary. Dunng the course of its review of the system of
internal control In 2012/13, the Audit Committee has not
dentified nor been adwsed of any fallings or weaknesses
which it has determined to be sigruficant.

The Internal Audit department provides objective gssurance
and advice on nsk management and control The extemat
auditors also report on signficant finandial control issues to
the Audit Commuttee

Anindependent reporter {Atkins) provides objective assurance
in relation to the Severn Trent Water Limited Annuat Regulatory
Compliance Staterment ond Annual Reguictary Performance
Report.

The board confirms that procedures providing an cngoing
process for identifymg, evaluating and managing the prmapal
risks and uncertenmties faced by the group have been in place
for the year to 31 March 2013 and up to the date of approvot
of the annudl report, which is in acoordance with the revised
guxlance on intemal cortrod published in October 2005

(the Tumbull Guidance).

in relation to finanaal reporting and preparation: of consohidated
accounts include

+ the formulabion and communication of group accounting
poliaes which are reqularly updated for developments in
IFRS and other reporting requirements,

+ spedfication of a set of finanaal contrels that all of the
group’s operating businesses are required to mplement
as aminimum,

+ deployment of a group wide consalikdation systemn with
controls to restnict access and maintan integty of data;

* recrutment, training and development of appropnatety
qualified and expenenced finoncial reporting perscnnel,

+ oversight by the Disclosure Committee of the group’s
compbance with its disciosure obli and

- monthly reviews by the board of finandiat reports from the
group’s operating businesses,

Relevant oudit information
The directors confirm that:

« sofar as each of thern is aware, there i no relevant audt
nformation of which the campany’s auditors are unaware; and

« each of them has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have token as a director to make himsetffherself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
cormpony’s auditors are aware of that nformation.

This confirmation is given and should be mterpreted m
accordance with the prowsions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Extermnal auditors

The Audit Commuttee has recommended to the board the
reappointment of Deloitte LLP and a resolution to that effect will
be on the agenda ot the AGM. Deloitte LLP have ndicated therr
willngness to continue as audttors. The Audit Committee will
also be responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of
the board.
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Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited
Regulatory occounts for Severn Trent Waoter Limited are
prepared and sent to Ofwat. A copy of these accounts will
be gvallable on the website of Sevem Trent Water imited

(www stwater.co uk) or on request to the Comparny Secretary
There is no charge for this publicotion

Going concem

The group’s business activibes, together with the factors ikely to
aoffect its future development, performance and postbion are set
out m the Chief Executve’s review on pages 7 to 10.and the
business reviews of Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent
Senaces on poges 11 to 32 The finanaal posion of the group,
1ts cash flows, liquidity position ond borrowing focilibes are
descnbed in the Financial review on pages 35 to 38 The group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital and
its financial nsk management ob are descnbed mn the
Financial review on pages 35 to 38 and in the Risk management
report on pages 39 to 42 Dedails of the group’s financial
instrurnents, hedging actaities and expasure to credit nsk

and liquidity nsk are desaibed in note 32 to the group

finanoal statements.

The group’s prnapal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water,
i1s a regulated long term business charoctersed by mults year
investment prograrmmes. The group’s strategee funding
objectives reflect ths. The group therefore seeks to ottan a
balance cof long term funding or commitment of funds acoss

a range of funding at the best possible economic cost.

Average debt maturty 15 16 years and the effective avenoge
interest cost dunng the year was 5 8%. The groupis in a strong
liquidity positron and had £403 6 million m cash and liquid
reserves and £500 0 million of undrown committed bonk
fadiies at 31 March 2013, which are expected to be sufficent
to fund its investment and cosh flow needs at least until
January 2015 in the norrmda course of business.

Severn Trent Water operates in an industry that is cumently
subject to economic reguiabion rather than market connpetition.
Ofwat, the econemic regulator, has a stotutory ebligation to set
price {imits that it believes will enable the water comparses to
finance their octivities. As a consequence the directors believe
that the group s well ploced to manage its business nsks
successtully despite the cumert uncertam econornic outlook.

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the company and the group have
adequiate resources to contnue i operabonal existence for
the foreseeable future, Accordingly, they contmue to adopt
the going concem basis in prepanng the annual report

and accounts.

Annudi General Meeting

The AGM of the company will be held at the Intematonal
Convention Centre, Broad Street, Birmingham B1 2EA ot 11am
on Wednesday 17 July 2013. The notice convening the
meeting, together with detais of the business to be considered
and explongtory notes for each resoluton, s distributed
separately to shareholders. It 5 also available on the company’s
website (www.severntrent.com)

By order of the board

Bronagh Kennedy \

General Counsel and Company Secretary
29 May 2013
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Dnrectors responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for preparng the annual report,
Directors’ remuneration report and the finanaal staterments n
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Cempany law requires the directors to prepare finandd
staterents for each finanaal year. Under that low the drectors
ore requited to prepare group finandal statements in
aocordance with International Finandial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Urion and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation and hove chosen to prepare the parert
company finandiat staternents in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdormn Accounting Standards and applicable low) Under
company law the directors must not approve the accounts
urdess they are satishied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and of the prafit or ess of
the company for that penod.

In prepanng the parent company financial statements,

the directors are required to

» select surtable accounting polices and then apply them
consistently;

+ make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

« state whether apphicable UK Accountng Standards have been
followed subject to any matenal departures disdosed and
explained in the finanaiol statements, and

+ prepare the financial staternents on the gomg concem bass
unless & 15 inappropnate to presume that the company will
continue n business,

In prepanng these financal statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that the directors:

= properly select and apply accounting policies;

* present information, induding occounting polices, Ina
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information,

« provide additional disdosures when compliance with the
spedific requirernents in IFRSs are msuffidestt to enable users
to understand the impact of parbicular tronsactions, other
events and conditions on the entity’s finanoal position and
financal performance; and

= make an assessment of the company's abilty to contmue as
agoing concem.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accournting
recards that are sufficent to show and explain the compary’s
transactions and dsclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the finuncial position of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

They are also responsible for safequarding the assets of the
company and hence for takang reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of froud and other imeguianties.

The directars are respensible for the mamtenance and integrity
of the corporate and financal mfemation induded on the
company’s website. Legistabion n the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of finanaal
staternents may differ from legslabion in other Junsdictions.

We confirm that to the best of our knowtedge'

» the financiol staternents, prepared m accordance with the
relevant finanaal reporting fromework, give o true and far
view of the assets, liabiities, finandial position and profit or
loss of the comparty and the undertakings induded in the
consclidation taken os a whole, and

+ the management report, which s Incorporated into the
Drrectors’ report, includes a far review of the development
and perfonmonce of the business and the posthon of the
company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a descnp'uon of the prindipal
nsks nd uncertamnties thot

ﬂ_

Andrew Duff
Charman

Md(eon
Flnunce Director
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Sevem Trent Plc

e

EO1 SOUDUBACT  MIINGISSILISTI | MAWAIND)

LN

"Wehme oudited the g‘roup financial staternents of Sevem Trent  Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinen the information given in the Directors’ report for
the finanaal year for which the group financial statements are
prepared is conststent with the group finanaal statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

- " consolidated Income statement, the consolidated statement of
- ’scompxehenswe income, the consolidated staternent of changes
" +n equity, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated cash

flow statement, and the related notes 1 to 42 The finanaal
" reporting frarviework that hes been applied in their preparation
1s applicable low and Infemationod Financal Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) us adopted by the European Union
Thus reportis made solely to the cornpany’s members, as a
~body, in gocordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companes
Act2006 Our gudit work has been undertaken so that we
mught strte to the company’s mernbers those matters we are
required tostate to them in an audrtor’s report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent perrmitted by law, we do not
accept or ossume responsibility ta anyone other thon the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
wotk, for this report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibiiities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Directars’ responsibility
staternent, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the group financial staternents and for being satisfied that they
give a true and farview. Our responsibilty s to audit and
express an opirmon on the group finanaal staternents in
accordance with applicable law and Intemahonal Standards on
-Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to
comply with the Auding Practices Board'’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial stoterments

We have nottang to report in respect of the following.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required £ report to you

if, 10 our opinion:

» certan disdosures of directors’ rermuneration speafied by law

are not made, or

= we have not recenved all the information and explandations we

require for our gudit.
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the directors’ statement, contaned within the Directors’
report, n relation to going concern,

+ the part of the Chaman’s letter relating to the company’s
compliance with the nine provisions of UK Corporote
Governance Code specified for our review; and

= certain elements of the repoit to shareholders by the Board
on directors’ remunerabon

Other matters

We have reported separately on the parent company financiot
statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March
20113 and on the nformation in the Remuneration Commuttee
report that 1s descnbed as having been audibed.

Ca .«

1

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and Carl D Hughes (Senior ory cudrtor)
disdosuresin the finanaal staterents sufficent to give for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

reasonable assurance that the finandal staternents are free Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
from material misstatement, whether caused by froud or error London. UK

This ncludes an assessment of whether the accountingpolicies  og Muy’2013

are appropriate to the group's crournstances and have been

consistently applied ond adequately disclosed; the

reasonableness of significant accounting estrmates made by

the directors; and the overall presentation of the finandial

staternents Inaddrtion, we read dll the financal and non-

financial nformation i the annual report to idertdy matenol

nconsistencies with the oudited financiot staterments  Ifwe

become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or

inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opunion on finandial stotements

In our oprrwon the group finonciol statements

+ gve atrue and fair view of the state of the group’s offairs as
at 31 March 2013 and of s profit for the year then ended,

* have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs os
adopted by the European Union, and

+ hove been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of
the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the [AS Regulation
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2013

;

2013
£m

2012
£m

Turnover

5

18316

1,7706

Exreptional operrmng costs

[()Egtng costs before exceptional iterns

7 (13338)

(4.3)

11,266

Ba]

(1337.9)

(1,300.8)

Exceptiondl loss s on drsposal of businesses

(1.5)

Profit before mterest, tax and exceptional items

4980

504.2

Excepﬂmahtemsbeforemterstandtax

oou-lm\.looum

(58]

(34.4)

Profit before mterest and tax

4922

469.8

Finance income

Finance costsexdudingexcepfionalosts " C 0 70

Exceptional finance costs

10

Rio

11

50.8

N2

G367)

(16.5)

Net finonce costs

arrm e i et e e es r——————— [T . e e sy e e e s e e 4 bmmaan ey e bees e

Losses onfinanaal mstrun’zents

‘Share of results of associates and joint ventures

{2319)

_[245.5)

12

W53
02

677)
0.1

Profit before tox, losses on financial nstrumertts and exceptional tems

Exceptjond terns before tox

Losses on financial instruments

8

127

2663

(5.8)
53

2753
.309)

{67 7)

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

—— v fireanfhukhniisp oot Tl T, e e s

Taxation on proft on ordinary activibes

2152

1567

Current tax excluding exceptional credit
Deferred tax excluding excephona! drurgej(cred:t)

13

13

137

@79

A
384

_(€05)

13

15.2

2304

Ownersofthecompany " - B

Non-controlling interests

Eomings per share (pence)

Basic

Diluted

15
15

'95.2

arr




Consolldated stutement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2013
2013 2012
£m fm
Profitfortheyeor T o 2304 174k
Losses on cash flow hedges taken to equity — e 330) {863}
Deferredtax on losses on cosh flow hedges token toequty. T 90 208
‘Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the ncome statement_ o 148 37
Deferted tax on transfers toncome staternent _ e e e 34 (69
Exchange movement on translation of overseas results and net ossets o o 54 (14
Actuanal losses on Qeﬁned benefit pension schernes _ i ~ ) {542)  (1107)
Taxon actuandl losses ) o A 125 266
‘Deferred tax moverment unsmgfmm rate change . - T - {34) 17
Other comprehensive loss for the year {583) {1467)
Totol comprehensive incorme for the year 1721 277
AbEEY h
Ownersofthecompany ) ) ~ T T o —_ A 1687 251
Non-controlling rterests ST T 34 26
1721 277

UODULICIUINJBI0  UALLIBRONS DDLU AUDDLLEY)  SJURLLIBI0NS IDDUDLY GNOJD  S0UDLLIACD)  MIIARI SS3USTYY - MIRA

€70 STUNCTny puo poday [onuly  Jjd Juad) wenes




Consollduted statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2013
Equity ottributable to owners of the company Norv
Share Share Other Retained cortrotiing Totd
capital premiurm reserves eamings Totat interests equity
£m £m fm £m fm £m £m

At 1 Aprit 2011 2322 80.0 4645 3231 1,099.8 63 1,1061
Pofitforthepediod ] - - - 1718 1718 26 1744
Lossesongash flow hedges e L Y 1 B -
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges = - 208 - 2208 - 208
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
to the income staternent = 37 - 37 - .37
Deferred tax on transfers to the
ncome statement - - 09) - _(09) - ©09)
‘Exchenge movement on tronsiation of i ’ '
_overseas re"suhs unf:l" net assets o= - (1.4 i - ﬂ-f*!, - - _(1 &)
Actuonu! lqgsgs _____ s - - (1107} (110 7 - (110.7)
Tax on actuariol losses == - 266 _266 o 266
Deferred tax orising from rate chonge - - - 17 17 - 17
Total comprehensive mcome for the penod - - (643) B94 251 26 277
Shorebused poyments o i "_ N ’ _ ’ i ) i o
—pmceegs“ﬁ'gmsharemssued i N : 04 ) 38 - - 42 - 42
- value of employees’ senices i ) = : - - 45 45 - _ 45
- free 2 shares issued - - - (18) (18 - asg
Currertt tax on share based payments - - - 04 G4 - 04
Deferreditox on share based payments ~~~ - T - - 83 o3 - o3
Drvidends pad LT - - (1590)  (1590) 10 (1600)
At 31 Morch 2012 2326 838 4002 2569 9735 7.9 9814
Profit for the penod . . = - - 275 2275 29 7304
Lossesoncumﬂowhedges = - @soy - (390) - (39.0)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedgs - - 9.0 - 50 - 50
Amounts an cash flow hedges transferred
to the income statement = - 148 - 148 - 148
‘Deferred tax on transfers to the
ncome staterment o - - {34) - (34) - 34)
‘Exchange movement on tanslationof o
‘overseas resutts and net assets e -~ 49 - 49 0S 54
Actuonallosses == - 542) (542 - (542
Tax on actuanal tosses o - - - 125 125 - 125
Deferredtuxonsmgﬁommtedmnge - O YA RN c 1 - (3.4)
Totol comprehensve ncome fortheperiod - - (37 1824 1687 34 1721
Share based payrments C e e e S
-proceedsfromshoresssued 07 59 - - . 66 .. - _ .86
- value of employees’ services = W-:_:% - 69 68 - _ 69
- free shores ssued = - Ay a3 - a3y
Currenttaxonsharbasedpayments__ -~~~ = "0 7T 08 08 - 0%
Transfer of infrastructure reserve = - "fjii;."Z) %2 - - =
Dvidendspad - T 30 (3220) 05 (3225
At 31 March 2013 2333 89.7 723 4379 8332 10.8 8440
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Consolldated bulance sheet
At 31 March 2013
2013 2012
Note fm £m
Non-cunentassets - L
Goodwll B (T A )
Othermntangblecssets _ B o 17 993 1160
Property, plantandequipment ~ ~ "7 T T 0 T 18 67600 65778
Interestsinjomtventuress S L 19 03 02
Interests i associates ) 20 47 46
Derivative financal instruments S i 32 1301 1326
Available for sale financadl assets i e T 32 7 01 01
70362 68762
Curent ossets o o
Ivertory J O - W~ SO S
Trudeandoﬂ'lerrecewab!es S T ) 22 5060 4794
Current tox receivable ) B T ) o ”!10“5 -
e T EH T T 7 a0
Cash and cash equvalents T 23 4036 295.1
9832 8389
Total assets 80194  7,7151
Curenthobitpes o o o o
Borrowings 32 (1703} (893)
Dervopve finonaal instruments o o 32 08 _ (©3)
Todeandatherpayatles T 77T T T UTTT 7T 35T Tasen) U derg
Curent income tex ibilties. S S L)
Provisions for Labilities and charges h ST 28 {11.1) (170)
(5810)  (5509)
Non-gurentbobiites T __ . .
Borowings DO 32 wen3 63095
Derivative finanaal |nstrt_ggne“r[t§n o - 32 _(3096) (2880)
Tmdeandotherpayables T T T 0T Twse) (110
Deferred tax o o R - -2 - 1)

Refirement benefitobbigations

Provisions for liabiities and charges

27 (383 7) (345.8)

28 (306 (270)

{6,5944) (6,182.8)

Total liobiibes

{71754) (6,733.7)

Net assets

844.0 9814

Equity

Clledwpsharecoptl ~~~ 7 T 0 T T TR T T 09 2333 2326
Sharepremiumoaccourt o 30 T 877 T sis
Otherreserves - T T3 71230 Th002
Retained eamings S 4379 (2569
Equity attributoble toownersof thecormpory 8332 9735

Non-controlling interests

108 79

Total equity

B440 9814

Signed on behalfo:j who approved the acoounts on 29 May 2013

2 M

Charman Fnunce Dlrector

Company Number. 2366619
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Consollduted cush ﬂow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2013
2013 2012
Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations o 3% 732 59
Tax paid ) T 725 G20
Net cash genercted from operating activities 6587 6539
Investing octaities i - - e e
Irtterest receved o - ) 37 61
Net coshinflow from sole of businesses T o 3% 124 -
Aoqustuon ofsubsadnnes o N 3% a0 -
Proceeds on dlsposul of property, plant and eqmpment and |ntung|ble ussets i ) " _ .1k 91
Purchoses of ntangible assets ) ) - C O asm  (120)
Purchoses of property, plant g_nd equment ) L (429 2) (371 a)
Contrbutons and grants receved 273 28
Net cash used in investing activibies {3870) {344 5)
Finanang actvities - — - —_— . e o
Interestpaid S (868 (2035)
Cosedoutswaps s oL )
Interest element of finance lease payments R ) o 60) (136)
Dividends pard to shareholders of the parent ) B o (3220) _ (1590)
DMdends padto non-controlhng"mterests . . A o s Q0
Repuymentsofbom:mngs o o L (259.9) (157 l-)
Repayments ¢ of obligations under finance leases o L o _{174) _m{‘f? 6)
New loons rosed o o R 6683 2500
Issuesofshores T T T ) o 66 42
Purchase of own shares - o ) {1.3) (18)
Net cosh used in financding activibies (1633) (3297)
Increase/(decrecse) in cash and cash equivalents _ 1084  (03)
Netcash and cash equnvalents ot beginning of period ) 2947 3152
Effect of foreign exchungerates B T o i o017 (0.2)
Net cosh and cash equivalents ot end of penod 4032 2947
Net cash and cash equivalents comprse: L
Total cosh and cash equivalents o T 4036 29531
Bark overdrafts ] T T (08 (0.4)
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 403.2 2947

The increase in cash and cash equivalents is recandled to the moverment in net debt mnote 36.




Notes to the group financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 General information

The Sevemn Trent group has a number of operations.
These are descnbed inthe segmental analysis in note 5.

Severn Trent Pic is @ companty incorporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdom. The address of its registered office s shown
on the back of the cover of the anrual report and accounts,

Severn Trent Pic is bsted on the London Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of prepanation

The finanaal statements have been prepared in accordance
with Internatonal Financial Reporbing Standards (IFRS),
Intermational Accounting Stondards {TAS) and IFRIC
interpretations ssued and effective and endorsed by the
European Union as of 31 March 2013

The financal statements have been prepared on the
going concern basis (see Directors’ report on page 74)
under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilties
(induding denvative instruments) at fair value.

The preparation of finandial statements in conformuty with
IFRS requrres the use of estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and Tabilties at the date of the
finanoal statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses for the reporting penod. Although these
estimates are besed on management’s best knowledge of
the ameunt, event or actions, actual results may ulbmately
differ from those estmates

b} Basis of consolidation

The finoncial statements indude the results of Sevemn Trent Pic
and s subsidiaries, joint ventures and associoted undertakings.
The results of subsidianes, jont ventures and associated
undertakings are induded from the date of acquistion or
incorporation and excluded from the date of disposal

The results of subsidianes are consolidated where the group
has the power to cortrol a subsidiary

The results of joint venture undertokings are accounted for on
an equity basis where the compary exerased jomt coritrol
under a contractual amangement.

The resuits of assoaates are accounted for on an equity basis
where the company holding is 20% or more or the company
has the power to exercise significant mfluence.
Non-conttrolling interests in the net assets of consalidated
subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s equity
therein Non-controlling nterests consist of the amount of those
interests ot the date of the original business combmnation and
the non-controling nterest's share of changes in equity since
that date.

All ntro-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation

) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration

receivable, exduding value added tax, trade discounts and
inter-cornpany sales, in the ordinary course of business for
goods and services provided.

Revenue i not recogrused until the service has been provided
to the custormer or the goods towhech the sale relotes have
either been despatched to the customer or, where they are
held on the custormer’s behdlf, ttle has passed to the customer.

Tumover indudes an estimate of the omount of moins
wter and waste water charges unbilled at the year end.
The accrual is estimated using adefined methodology
based upon a megsure of unbiled water consurned by tanff,
which is calculoted from histoncal bilting information

In respect of long term cortracts, revenue 1s recognised
based on the value of work comed out during the year

with reference to the total soles value and the stage of
completion of these contracts,

Interest income & accrued ona time basis by reference to
the prinaipal outstanding and at the effectve interest rate
applicable. Dvidend income from investrments is recogrused
when the group’s rights to receve payment have been
established Interest and dmdend income are included n
finance Income

d) Exceptiondl items

Exceptiond rtermns are income or expendrture, which indnaduadly
or, f of a similar type, in oggregate should, in the opinion of
the directors, be disdosed by virtue of their size or nature

if the financial staternents are to give a true and farr view.

In this context, matenality is assessed at the segment level.
&) Taxation

Current tax payable is based on toxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income staternent because t exdudes items of income ond
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes iterms that are never taxable or deductible.
The group’s liabiliy for current tax is caloulated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the batance sheet date.

Defemed taxation s provided in full, using the babiity method,
on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liobilibes and their camying emourits n the finanaal
staternents A deferred tox asset is only recognised to the
extent it is probable that sufficent taxable profits will be
avaitable in the future to utilise . Defermed taxation s
measured on a non-drscounted basss using the tax retes and
lows that have been enacted or substontively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is redlised or the deferred
tax bability 15 settled.

Deferred tax assets and babilibes ore offset when there s a
legalty enforceable nght to set off current tax assets ogamst
current tax liabilties ond when they relote to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority ond the group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilties on a net basts.

UOMOWLORILAY  SISLLIIONS Joousuy AUDDUIOD  SJUBWEIS uouy dRoiSy  S0UDWEACD  MBINDI SSBUIY  MBBND
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Group financial statements Notes to the group finanaal statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)
) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the far value of purchase
consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired.
(oodwill ansing on acquisition of subsidiaries s nduded

i mtangible assets, whilst goodwall ansing on acquistion

of assodiates is induded in rwvestments m assoaales

If an acquisition gives nise to negative goodwill this s credited
directly to the income statement. Farr value adjustments
based on provisional estimates are amended within one

year of the aoquisition, if required, with a corresponding
odjustment to goodwill

Goodwill arsing on all acquistiohs pnor to 1 April 1998 was
wtten off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eiminated
ogamst reserves Purchased goodwill ansing on acquistions
after 31 March 1998 s treated as an intongible fixed osset.
Goodwill s tested for imparrment in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2m) below and camed at cost less accumutated
impairment losses, Goodwill 1s allocated to the cosh-generating
unit that denves benefit from the goodwill for inparment
testng purposes.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generatng unt and all

or part of that Gnit is disposed of, the assocated goodwil is
induded in the camying armount of that operation when
determuning the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.

g} Cther intangible assets

Intangible assets ocquired separately are caprtalised at cost
and when acquired in a business combinotion are capitolised at
fair value at the date of acquisition Following inial recognition,
the histetical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets.

Finite bife intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis
aver their estimated useful economic lives as follows:

Years
Softwgre . ___ _3
Other ossets 2-20

Amortsation charged on assets with finite bves is taken to
the meome staterment through operating costs.

Intongible assets are reviewed for mpairment where
indicators of mpairment exst.

h} Resecrch and development

Research expenditure is expensed when it 1s incurred.
Development expendrture s capitolised and written off
over its expected useful economic Ife where the following
onteng are met.

« itis techmically feasible to cregte and make the asset
available for use or sale;

« there are odequate resources avallable to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset;

+ there i the ntention and obilty to use or sell the asset;

= It s probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

- the developrent cost can be measured reliobly.

Experxiiture on property, plant and equipment relaung to

research ond development projects is capitalised and written

off over the expected useful ife of those assets

1) Pre-cortract costs

Pre-contract costs re expensed os incumed except where itis
probable that the contract will be awarded, in which case they
are recognised as o prepayment which 1s written off to the
income statement over the ife of the controct.

The group assesses that it is probable that o contract will be
awarded when preferred brdder or equivalent status has been
achieved ond there are ne significant impediments to the
awart of the contract.

]} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment s held at cost (or at deemed
cost for infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS) less
accumulated depreciation. The costs of bike for ke replacement
of infrastructure components are recognised in the income
statement as they anse Where it1s probable that the
expenditure will cause future economic benefits to flow to
the group, then costs are capitalised.

Where tems of property, plant and equipment are transferred
to the group from ctastomers or developers, the far value of the
osset transferred 1s recogmsed n the batance sheet. Fairvalue 1s
determuned based on estmated depreciated replacement cost.
Where the transfer is in exchange for connection to the network
and there 15 no further obligation, the comesponding credt is
recognised immedsately in turmover Where the transfer is
considered to be linked to the provision of ongoing services

the comesponching credit 1s recorded in deferred income ond
released to operating costs over the expected useful ives of
the related assets.

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the ocquisition,
construction or production of assets, that necessanly take a
substantial penod of teme to get ready for their intended use,
are addedto the cost of those assets untl such time as the
assets are repdy for tharr intended use.

Property, plant ond equipment is depreciated to its estimated
residual value over its estimated useful life, with the exception
of freehold land which 5 not depreciated. Assets in the course
aof construction are not deprecated until commissioned.

The estimated useful bves are:

Years
Infrostructure gssets
Impoundingresenors 250
Rowwdteraqueducts 250
Mains R - =
Sewes . 150200
Otherassets ..o ..
Buldings e 30-80
[Foedplontondequipment 2040
Vehicles and mobie plont 2-15
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Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)
k) Leased assets

Where the group obtains assets under leasing amangements
which transfer substaritiatly all the neks and rewards of
ownership of on asset to the group as lessee (finance leases),
the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present
value of the mimirmum lease payments is copalised as an asset
with a comesponding liability representing the obligation to the
lessor Lease payments are treated as conssting of o caprtal
elerment and a fincnce charge; the caprtal element reducing the
obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written off
to the iIncome staterent at a constant rate over the penod of
the lease in proporbion to the capital amount outstanding
Depreciation s charged over the shorter of the estimated

useful lfe and the lease penod.

Leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership remain with the tessor are dassified as opercting
leases Rental costs arising under operating leases are expensed
on a straight bne basis over the term of the lease. Leases of land
are normaily treated as operating leases, unless ownership s
tronsferred to the group at the end of the lease

f) Gronts and contributions

Gronts and contributions receved In respect of non-current
assets, induding certain charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated
s deferred ncome and released to the income staterenit
over the usefiul econornic ife of those non-current assets,

Grants and contributions which are given in compensation for
expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised in
operating costs in the ncome statement in the penod that they
become receivable,

m) Impainment of non-current assets

If the recoverable amiount of goodwill, an ttern of property,
plant and equipnnent, or any other non-curent asset is
estimated to be less than its comying armount, thewamying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from ather assets, the group estimates the
recoverabie amount of the cash-genenating unit to which the
osset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell or estmated volue m use at the dote the
impamment review is undertaken Foir wiua less costs ta sell
represents the amount obtanable from the sale of the asset
in an amy'slength transochion between knowledgeoble ond
willing third parbies, less costs of disposol, Value in use
represants the present value of future cash flows expected to
be denved from a cash-generating unit, discounted using o
pre-tax discount rate that reflects cument market ossessments
of the cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or asset.

The discount rate used s bosed on the group’s cost of capital
adpusted for the risk profiles of inddual busmesses,

Goodwill 1s tested for impaiment annuatlly. Imparment reviews
are aiso camed out ff there is an indication that an mpairment
may have ecourmed, or, where gtherwise required, to ensure that
non-current assets are not camed above ther estimoted
recoverable armounts.

Impairments are recognised in the income staterment.

n} Inventory

Inventory and work in progress is stated at the lower of cost
and net realsable volue. Cost indudes labour, materiols,
transport and attributeble overheods,

0) Service concession agreements

Where the group has an unconditional nght to recerve cash
from a government body in exchange for constructing or
upgrading a public sector asset, the amounts receivable

are recognised as a finanoal asset in prepayments and
acorued income.

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recogrused on a straight Line basis, before adjusting for
expected inflation, over the tife of the contract.

p) Retmernent benefits

The group operates both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension
scherne assets and defined benefit pension scheme labilibes
s recorded on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset
or obligation,

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at fair
volue using nd prce for assets with quoted pnces. Defined
benefit pension scheme liab:lites are measured ot the balonce
sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit
method and discounted at the current rate of retum on hagh
qualrty corporate bonds of equnalent termn and cumency to the
ability. Service cost, which 15 the increase i the presert value
af the liablities of the group's defined benefit penston schemes
expected to anse from employee service in the penod, is
nduded in operoting costs The expected retum on the
scherne’s assets and the increase dunng the penod in the
present value of the schermne’s liabilibes, arising from the
passoge of time, are induded in other finance income or cost.
Actuanal gans and lesses ansing from experience adjustments,
changes in actuarial assumptions and amendments to pension
plans are charged or aedited to equrty and recorded in the
staterment of comprehensive Inmme

Contributions to defined contnbution pension schemes

are chorged to the ncome statement in the period m which

they foll due

@) Provisions

Provisions are recognised where:

« there 5 a present obligation os a result of o past event;

- Itis probable that there will be an outfiow of economic
benefits to sattie this obligation; and

« arelioble estmate of this amount can be made.

Insurance provisions in the group’s captive insurance subsidiary

are recognised for dams notified and for doims incurred but

which have not yet been notified, based on adwvice from the

group’s independent insurance odvisers.

Provisions are discounted to present value using o pre-tax

discount rate that reflects the nsks speafic to the babiity where

the effect s materiol
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
1 Purchase of own shares

Shares held by the Sevem Trent Employee Share Ownership
Trust which have not vested unconditionally by the balance
sheet date are deducted from shareholders’ funds until such
time as they vest.

<) FAinancial instruments

() Finanaal assets
Financial assets are daossified into the following categories:

- at far value through profit or loss;

+ held to matunty investments;

= avaitable for sale financial assets, and
« loans and recevables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A finanaial asset 1s dassified ot farr value through profit or loss

if it 15 50 designated or ff 1t is classified as ‘held for trading’
Denvative financial assets that are not designated and effectve
as hedging instruments are required to be dlassified as

‘held for trading’ bry 1AS 39 However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
desaibed i the Finanaal review on pages 37 and 38, 1s that
the group does not hold or issue desvative financial mstrurnents
for trading Financidal assets at far value through profit or loss
are stated at far value, with any gains or losses ansing on
remeasurernent recognised in gains/losses on financial
instrurnents in the incomne statement. Fair value is

determined using the methodology descnbed n note 32
Interest receivable n respect of dervative finanaal gssets s
induded n finance.income,

Held to maturity irvestments

Where the group hos the ability and intent to hold an
investment to maturty the finonaial asset s dossified os held
to matunty. Such finanaal assets are megsured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gains
or losses being recognised in the income statement.

Awailable for sole finonaal assets

After initial recognition at cost (being the fair value of the
consideration pad), investrments which ore dassified as
available for sole are rmeasured at fair value, with gains

or losses recogrused in other comprehensive income.
When an avalable for sale investment i disposed of or
mparred, the gain or loss previousty recognsed in other
comprehensive ncome Is taken to the income statement.
Where there is no active market In the irvestments and
the fair value canrot be measured reliably, the iIrvestments
are held at cost_

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other recesvables that have fixed
or detemminable payments ond that are not quoted in an
active market are dossified as loans and recevobles.

Such assets are measured at far value on nttial recognition
and are subsequently measured at armortised cost using the
effective mterest rate method unless there s objective
ewdence that the asset s mpared, where it 1s written down
to s recoverable amount and the imecoverable amount is
recognised as an expense.

Trode receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
indnadually are assessed collectively for imparment by
reference to the group’s historical collection expenence

for recemables of smilar age

(i} Finanaal iabities
Finandial labirbes are dossified as either:

+ finanaal labiitses ot fair value through profit or loss, or
- other finoncial labilities.

Financidl inbilities at farr value through profit or loss

A financal hability is classified ot fair value through profit or
loss if it is so designoted or if it 15 dassified as *held for trading’
Dervative financial babiities that are not designated and
effective as hedging instrurments are required to be dossified
as ‘held for trading’ by 1AS 39. However, the group’s Treasury
Policy, descnbed in the Finanaal review on pages 37 and 38,5
that the group does not hold or issue denvotive finanoal
instrumentts for trading Financial obilities ot fair volue through
profit or loss are stated at fair volue, with ary gans or losses
arising on remeasurerment recogrised in gams/losses on
financd mstrurnents in the income statement. Foir value 1s
determined using the methodology described in note 32.
Interest payable n respect of demvative financial babitties s
inctuded in finance costs.

Other financal babilibes

Other financial labilites, including borrowings, are inttially
recogrused ot fair value less transaction costs. Afterinbol
recognihion, other finonaal labflibies are subsequently measured
ot amortised cost using the effectrve interest rate method

{iii} Hedge occounting

The groupuses demvative financiat nstruments such as

cross cumency swaps, forward currency controcts and interest
rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency

and interest rote fluctuations. Such denvative instruments are
recogtsed and measured in accordance with the accounting

policies descnbed above

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the group
documents:

+ the relotionship between the hedging mstrument and
the hedged iterm;
« Its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
hedge transactions; and
+ whetherthe hedging instrument is highly effectve in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows (as eppropnate)
of the hedged tem
The group contmues to test and document the effectiveness
of the hedge an an ongoing bass.
Hedge aocounting s discontinued when the hedging
instrurment expires, is sold, terrminated or exerased, or no longer
quatifies for hedge accounting.
Fair value hedges
Where aloan or borrowmng s in a fair value hedgmg relationship
tt 1s remeasured for changes in fair volue of the hedged risk at
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in
gains/losses on finonadl instruments in the ncorne stotement,
The gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s taken o gains/
losses on financal instruments in the income statement where
the effectve portion of the hedge will offset the ganor loss on
the hedged item.
When hedge cccounting s discontinued, the fair volue
adjustrnent to the camying amount of the hedged tem ansing
from the hedged msk s amortised to the income stotement
from that date.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
s) Financial instruments (continued)

{ii} Hedge accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that s
detenmined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in
equity and the ineffective porbien in gainsflosses on finanaol
irstruments in the mcome statement. The gains or losses
deferred in equity n this way are recyded through gainsflosses
on finandal instruments in the income statement in the same
penod in which the hedged underlying transaction or firm
commwiment is recognised in the income statement.

When hedge occounting s discontinued any cumulative gain or
toss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity 1s held in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to
gansfiosses on finanaal instruments in the mcome statement
if the forecast transoction 1s no langer expected to ocaur.

Hedges of net imestments in foreign operations
Where forward cumency contracts and fareign cumency

bomowings ore used to hedge net investments in foreign
currency denominated operations, to the extent that they are
designated and effective os net nvestment hedges, they are
ratched n equity aganst changes in volue of the related
assets. Any meffectiveness 1s taken to gainsAosses on finanoal
instruments m the income statement.

{iv) Embedded denvatves

Derivatves embedded in other finandal mstruments or other
hast contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their
nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the
hast contract and the host contract is not camried ot fair value,
with gains and losses reported n gonsflosses on finonciol
instruments in the Income statement.

t) Share based payments

The group cperates a number of equity settled share based
compensation plans for employees. The farr value of the
employee services receved in exchange for the grant is
recogmised as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant.

The fair value of employee seraces s determined by reference
to the fair value of the awards granted, caleulated using on
appropnate pricing model, exduding the mpact of any
non-market vesting conditions. The number of awards that
are expected to vast tokes into account non-market vesting
condiiens induding, where appropriote, continuing
employmertt by the group. The charge is adjusted to reflect
shares that do not vest as a resutt of failing to meet a
non-market condition.

u) Cash flow statement

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equvalents indude highly bquid mvestments that are readity
corwertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant nsk of change in value. Such mvestments are
nomnally those with less than three months’ maturty from the
date of acquistion and mdude cash ond bank balances and
mvestments n biqued funds. Cash and cash equivalents also
indude overdrafts repayable on dernand,

Interest pad in the cash flow staternent indudes amourts
charged to the income staterment and smounts included
inthe cost of property, plant and equipment.

v) Foreign cutrency

The results of overseas subsidiory and associated undertakings
are translated into sterling, the presentational currency of the
group, using average rates of exchange ruling during the yeer.
The net investrnentsn overseas subsidiary ond assodated
undertakings are translated mto sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the yeor end, Exchange differences ansing
are treated as movements in equity. On dspasat of o foreign
currency denominated subsidiary, the deferred aumulatne
amount recognised m equity smce 1 April 2004 relating to that
entity s recognised in the income statement under the
transttional tule of IFRS 1.

Exchange differences ansing in respect of foreign exchange
mstrurnents token out os hedges of overseas investments are
also treated as movements in equity to the extent thot the
hedge 15 effective (see note 2 5)

All other foreign currency denominoted assets and habilities
of the cormpany ond its subsidiary undertakings are translated
mito the relevant functionol cumency af the rates of exchange
rubng ct the year end Any exchange differences so arising

are dedlt with through the income statement.

Forexgn currency transoctions ansing dunng the year are
translated nto sterling ot the rate of exchange ruling on
the date of the transaction. All profits and losses on
exchange ansing dunng the yeaor are dealt with through
the income staternent.

w) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets (a disposal group) s available

for mmediate sole and the sdle s tughly probable and expected

to occur within one year then the disposal group s dossified as

held for sale The disposal group is measured ot the lower of the

carnying amount and fair volue less costs to sell.

Where a group of assets which compnses operations that can

be dearly distinguished operationally and for financial reporting

purposes, from the rest of the group (o component), has been

disposed of or dassified as held for sale, and it

* represents o separote major ine of business or geogrophicd
area of operations; or

* is part of o single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
maior line of business or geographical area of operations; or

+ is a subsidiary acquired exdusively with a view to resdle;

then the component s dassified as a discontinued operation.

Non-current assets dassified os held for sale are measured at

the lower of tamying amount and fair volue less costs to sell,

Depreaation s not changed on such assets.
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3 New accounting policies and future requirements
The following stendards have been issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and are tikely to offect future
financal statements.

IFRS 9 *Ananacdl instruments’ is Ukely to affect the
measurement ond disdosure of finandal instruments.

The standard is required to be implemented by the group

with effect from 1 April 2013, subject to EU endorsermnant.

IFRS 10 ‘Consoldated Finanaal Statements’ was issued

May 2011 and 1s required to be implemented by the group
from 1 April 2013. The standard indudes a new definition of
control to be used to determmine when entities are consolidated.
The standard s not expected to have a matenal impact on the
group’s finanaal staternents.

IFRS 11 “fomnt Agreements’ was issued m May 2011 and is
required to be implemented by the group from 1 Apni 2013
IFRS 11 replaces [AS 31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures’ and SIC-13
*Jonty-controlled Entities’ IFRS 11 uses the defirution of control
grven n IFRS 10 to define joint control and removes the option
to account for jaint ventures using proportionate consolidation
Thus 1s not expected to have a matenol impact on the group's
financial statements.

IFRS 12 ‘Ossdosure of Interests in Other Enhities’ was issued n
May 2011 and s required to be implemented by the group from
1 April 2013 The standard prowides disclosure requirernenits

for subsidianies, assoaates, joint agreements and structured
entities which were previously covered i 1AS 27, [AS 28 and
1AS 31 Additional disdosures will be required in the group
finanaal statements to meet the requirements of the standard.

IFRS 13 Far Value Medsurement’ was issued nMay 2011 and 5
required to be implemented by the group from 1 Aprit 2013.
The standard provides addiional guidance on how to measure
foir value but does nat change when far value 1s permitted or
required, The standard may impact the methods of
determining fair value which are currently employed by the
group and will require further disclosure of these methods.

1AS 19 Employee Benefits’ (revised) ndudes a requirement
to measure the expected retum on the defined benefit pension
scheme assets using the discount rate applied to the scheme
liabilites. The estimated effect thas will have is to reduce profit
by £16 0 million and increcse actuarial gams in the statement
of other comprehensive income by £16 & mithonin the year
ended 31 March 2014, The stondard is required to be
mmplemented by the group with effect from 1 Aprit 2013

The directors assess that the other standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective are not Likely to
have a significant impact on future finangial statements,

4 Significant accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accountting policies, the
group 15 required to make certain judgements, estmates and
assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the
information available.

The more significant judgernents were:

a) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcorne of uncertain tax posrtions requires
judgernents to be made regarding the resutt of negotiatzons
with and enquines from tax autherities in o number of
jursdictions, The essessments made are based on advice
from independent tax advisers and the status of ongoing
discussions with the relevant tax authortes.

b) Provisions for other babtiies and charges

Assessing the financial outcorne of uncertain commercial

and legal posttions requires judgements to be rrade regarding
the relatve ments of each party’s case and the extent to
which any dlairm against the group s likely to be successful
The ossessments made are based on advice from the

group’s intemal coursel and, where appropnate,

ndependent legal advice

The key accounting estrnates were:

a) Goodwill irnparment

Determining whether goodwll s iripaired requires an
estirnation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
{CGU) to which goodwill has beenallocated. The volue in use
cdleulation requrres the group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arse from the CGU and o suitable discount rate

to caloulate present value Details of the ossurmptions used are
set out innote 16 to the finanaal statements.

b} Depreciation and carying amounts of property, plont and
equipment

Calculating the deprecation charge and hence the camying
value for property, plant and equiprment requires esimates to
be made of the useful ves of the assets. The estmotes are
based on engineenng dota and the group’s expenence of
similar assets. Detatls are set out in note 2 J),

¢) Retirement benefit obligations

Deterrminmg the armount of the group’s retirement benefd:
obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires
assumptiens to be made congerning long term interest rates,
inflation, salary and pension increases, investment returns and
longevity of current and future pensioners. Changes in these
assumptions could significantly impact the armount of the
cbligations or the cost of prowiding such benefits. The group
makes assumphions conceming these matters with the
assistarce of adwce from independent qualified actuanes.
Detuails of the assumptions made are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements
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4 Sigmificant accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty (continued)
d) Unbilled revenue

Severn Trent Water rases bills and recognises revenue
accordance with its nght to receive revenue in line with the
lirmits estabbshed by the penodic reguiatory pnice review
processes. For water and waste water custorners with water
meters, the amount recognised depends on the volume
suppled induding an eshmate of the sales value of units
suppbed between the date of the last meter read and the
year end Meters are reod on o cydical basis ond the group
recognises revenue for unbiled armounts based on estimated
usage from the last billing to the end of the finanaal year
The estimated usage is based on histoncal dota, judgement
and assumptions,

e) Provision for impmment of trade receivables

Provisions are mode ogamst Severn Trent Woter's trade
recenvables bosed on historical expenence of levels of recovery
frorn accounts in a porbcular ageing category. The octual
amounts collected could dfer from the estiated level of
recovery which could impact operating resuilts.

5 Segmental analysis

The group has two reportable segments. Severn Trent Water and Sevem Trert Services. The key factor determnining the identrfication
of reportable segments 1s the regutatory envronment in which the businesses operate. Severn Trent Weter s subject to econarmic
regulabion by Ofwat and operates under @ icence to provide water and sewerage services within a defined geographecal region

in England and Wales. Seven Trent Services 1s not subject to econormic regulation and operates in markets in the US, Europe

and Asia.

The Sevemn Trent Executive Committee 1s considered to be the group's chief operating decssion rmaker The reports provided to the
Executive Committee include segmental information prepared on the basis described above. Details of Severn Trent Water's
operations are descnbed on pages 12 to 23 of the Business review and those of Severn Trent Services on pages 2410 32
Transoctions between reportoble segments are Induded within segmental results, assets and liabites in accordance with

group accounting poliaes These are eiminated on consolidation.

The group has alarge and diverse customer base and there 1s no significant rellance on any smgle customer

The measure of profit or loss that 15 reported to the Executive Committee for the segments 15 profit before interest, tax and
exceptional items (underlying PBIT) A segmentat analysss of sales and underlying PBIT 1s presented below,

Sevemn Trent  Severn Trent
Woter Servoes

2013 £m £m
Extemalsoles e 15093 3206
Inter-segment sales - 17 79
Total sales 1,5110 3285
Profit before nterest, tax ond exceptionaiterns 5009 127
Exceptional items ’ 1337 (161)
Profit/{loss) before interest ond tox 5142 (34)
Profit before Interest, tax and exceptional tems sstated after, e .
Amortsationof rtangbleassets . 289 " 15
Depreagton of property, plont ondequpreent 2614 ) ___"—5—.3
Loss/{profit) on disposal of fixed assets } o 15 T {14
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)

Sevemn Trent  Severn Trent
Water Serices

2012 £m £m
Extemalsgles 14561 3133
Inter-segment sales o T e e 14 19.0
Total sales 14575 3323
Profit before mierest, tax and exceptional tems .. .. 5000 180
-Exceptlo. nal tems T e e 103 (44.7)
Profit/{loss) before interest and tax 5103 (26.7)

Prafit before interest, tax and exceptnonul rterns IS stoted ufter

Amortxsation of other mtangible assets - A L
Depreaation ofproperty. plant and equnpnler}tu o o o o _2521 59
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (42) {0.2)

The group’s treasury and tax affairs are managed centratly by the Group Treasury and Tax Departments. Finance costs are
managed on a group basis and hence interest income and costs are not reported at the segmentd level Tax is not reported tothe
Executive Cornmittee an a segrmental basis,

Interests in joint ventures and associates are not matenal and are not included in the segrmental reports reviewed by the
Execubive Caormmittee.

Separate segmental analyses of assets and liabittses ore not reviewed by the Executive Committee The balance sheet measure
seviewed by the Executive Committee on a segmental basis s caprtal employed which includes the following components:

Severn Trent  Severn Trent
Water Services

2013 £m £m
Operotingassets =~ _ S . . L. p87 1731
Goodwl _ L L. S U = S )
Interests in joint ventures and assodates T ' 01 49
Segmentassets . o o o 742201 2197
Segment operahng yliabilies (1,137.4) (94 0)
Copital employed 6,082 7 1257

Sevem Trent  Sevem Trent
Water Services

2012 £m fm
99_‘3'“““9“55515_ . el . ..o 0229 1855

e e o L T . - -
Imereslsmpmvelmjresundassouutes B T T 01 46
Segmentassets B - - 70230 2349
Segment operating babilties " et e e {1,064 3) (953)
Capital employed 59587 1396

Operating assets comprise other mtangible assets, property, plant and equipment, invertory and trade and other recesvables.
Operating babilties cormpnse trade and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions,
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)
Addttions to other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment were as follows:

SevemTrent  Severn Trent

2013 £fm fm
Othermtongblegssets .36 22

Property, plant and equipment 4516 8.6

SevemTent SevemnTrent
Water Services
m2 £fm fm

Other mtangible assets 9.3 21

Property, plant and equupment 4053 55
The reportable segments’ revenue is recondiled to group tumover as follows:

2013 2012
fm £m

Sevemn Trent Water 1, 5110 14575

SeemTeniSevces L. L . _ s 323
Other _ 101 98

Inter-segment sales T asn (90
Group tumover 18316  1,7706

Segmental undertying PBIT s recondled to the group’s profit before tax and discontinued cperations as follows:

2013 2012
£m £m

Underlying PBIT

- Severn Trent Water oy T 5008 5000
—S_egefr_\TrentSerwce_s_ o e L .Y S 1 4
~ Corporate and cther L e _(16.8) (153)

Consdlidation adjustrnents 12~ 15
Group undertymg PBIT 4980 5042

Exceptional itemns allocated to segments i

-SevemTentWoter " " T T T T T 133103
-SevemTrentSenices T T T W16 4D
-Corpomt_equgther o o o o By -
Share of resulfs of assodiates and jomt vertures o 02 01

Nat finance costs ) (231 9) (2455)

Losses on financial instruments {453)  (677)
Profit before tax 2152 1567

The reportoble segments' assets are recondled to the group’s total assets as follows.

2013 2012
£m £m

Segment assets

-SeemTentWater ~ ~ C T T T TR 72201 70230
~ Severn Trent Services - T 2197 2349
Coporteondotherassets 7 T 495 464
Otherfinangalossets i . . 5348 4578
Cumenttaxrecoverale T 405 -

Consolxiation adjustments T s 4Io
Total assets 80194 77151

The consolidation adjustments comprise ebmination of intra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fied assets.
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5 Segmental analysis {continued)
The reportable segrments’ lobilities are recandiled to the group's total babilities as follows:
2013 2012
£m fm
— Severn Trent Water i I ¢ 17 I W 7% )
“SeemTrentServces N 0 TN )
Corporate labiftes - R -/ N 11
Other financal habitties e e G118 (4,6873)
Curenttax . e ]
Deferedtax. o L _(7858)  (8015)
Consolidabon adjustments o ) 183 19.0
Total liabiltzes {7,1754) (6,733.0
The consolidation adjustrents compnse elimination of intra-group creditors,
Geographical areas
The group’s sales were denved from the following countnes.
2013 2012
£m £m
Uk o 15847 1,5380
us. R S T T 122 1365

Other

1047 96.1

18316  1,770.6

The group’s non-cuntent assets (excludmg finanaal mstruments, deferred tax assets and retirement benefit ossets) were located

in the following countries,

2013 2012
£m £m

68362 6,6704

us T _ i T e 592
Other T T ’ R oo i 10.8 14.0
6,906.1 6,743.6

6 Revenue
2013 2012
£m £rn
Water and seweroge services e 215009 14463
Other services .o 1914
Sdeofgoods . o107 944
Servire concession arrangements {note 38} 399 385
Total tumover e e e e ... A8316 17706

26 70

18342  1,777.6




93

Group financial statements Notes to the group financiol statements

7 Operating costs

2013 2012

Excephonal
cosls costs Totdl costs oosts Totd
£m fm £m £m fm £m

Wogesand sdlaries 2829 12 2841 2642 26 2668

Socdlsecurtycosts . _ . 02 4 202 w7 0L 178
Pension costs T T T 98 ST T298 T 7523 bk

Share based payments 6.8 . 68 41 . 41
Total employee costs 3397 12 3409 3135 (204) 2931

Power . 68 - 658 590 - 59.0

Carbon Reduction Commitment 57 - 877 's9 - 59
Rownmtemlsandcomumobles i 130.8 - 1308 1350 04 1354

Rates 732 - 732 694 7 694
Charge forbad and doubtfuldebts  ~ S3a - 331 307 215 522
Service charges ] T 319 - 319 333 - 333
Depreciation of pmﬁén_;, ;;lat"uﬁa equlpinent T 2646 R 2646 2560 - 2560
Amortrsation cndtmpummutofoﬂnnntnngﬁeos_s_ets 305 © 36 %1 308 _ : _ ~_: i 30}:3
Imparment of goodwill - 46 a6 - 229 229
Hiredand contracted seces ~ T 1962 "37 7 1999 2192 43 2235
Operating leases rentals o T
-londandbuldngs 31 - 31 34 - 34
—other o 197 7T T 18 15 - 15
Hreofplantandmochinery  —— — © T T T 44 T T T T4 " " 'se T -7 5§
Research and development expenditure 54 - bk ‘a5 - T 745

Lossl(proﬁt) on disposal of property, plant ond
equipment 29 {13.3) {104) (4 4) - (4 4)

Foregnexchange(gansMosses (03 - - 03 _oa” T -7 o1
Infrgs:chumtenunceexpenditure 37 - 1477 1289 - 1289

Other operating costs 932 45 97.7 59.2 57 649
14208 43 14341 _ 13516 344 13860

Relemeﬁomdefenedlwemm T - x ) "_—m M_N(S.})_ ®8n__ - 87

Own work coprtalsed (86.9) - (86.9) (76.5) T 65)
13336 43 13379 1,266.4 344 13008

Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 8.
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the ouditors;

Fees payable to the company’s audttors for

—the oudtt of the company’s annual ccoounts. ) ’ T ) 010

— the qudtt of the company’s subsidianes 05 05
Totol audit fees 06 06
Fees payable to the company’s auditors and therr associates for other services to the group

-oudtrelatedossuonceserwees L i 9202

- services relating to corporate finance 0.1 -
Totel non-audit fees 03 0.2

Detais of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 57 to 70
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B8 Exceptional items before tax

Exceptional 0 operu'ang costs

SeemTentWoter T
Poftondisposal of fixedassets e B3 -
Restructuringcosts . 3

Curtailment gains on defined benefit pension schermes - (21.8)
(133) {10.3)

Impalﬁﬁénfafa;élqpmgpgcmgmsﬁggdrelutedussets -:-__ T T T T T s _" o
imparmentof goodwil L T )
Prowsoonsforcomrnerauldisputesundresuuct};_r?ngmf“ ~ o mmwwj:u“__ _ ____ 55 _-i“sn
Provisions for bod debts T o - - 215

Curtaiment gains on defined benefit pensmn schemnes - (13)

Corporate and other L
Professional fees on proposed transaction that did not proceed 30 -

Total exceptonal operating costs 43 344
Exceptional loss on disposal of businesses 15 -

Costs mcurred on eorly redemmption of debt - 165
Exceptional iterns before tax 5.8 509

Exceptionat tax is disclosed m note 13,

9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (induding executive directors) dunng the year

2013 2012
Nurmber Number

By type of busness

SeemTentWoter 7 0 T T T sas8 5162
"§gver_nTrgnt§e_mces o o o . . 2,749 2,878

Corporate and other ) 14 11
8221 8051

10 FAnance income

Interest revenute eamed onx

Bankdeposis T 0 T T T w

Other fmanaal income - 29
Totalinterest revenue e - 26 .70

Expected retum on defined beneﬁtpensonsdmmeossets 88.2 1007
9208 1077
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11 Finance costs

2013 2012
Before

Total costs costs Total
£m £m £Em £m
Interestonbonkloansand overdrafts e 227289 - 289
Interestonotherloans 1916 1989 - 1989
Interest on finance leases T T Tgs 97 - 9.7
Tdborowngeosts 28 s __ - _ 2315
Otherfinandalexpenses 7T 1T TN TGy TR AT Tigs T g0
Interest cost on defined benefit scheme obligations 922 97.7 - 97.7
3227 336.7 16.5 3532

Borrowing costs of £10 4 million (2012 £10.5 millon} incurred funding eligible capital projects have been copitalised at an
interest rate of 5 12% (2012 593%)

12 Losses on financial instruments

2013 2012
£m £m
Loss an cross cumency swops used as hedging instrurnents in fair volue hedges e e e 23D B
Gain arising on adjustment for foreign currency debt in fair value hedges ) .3 19
Exchonge (loss)/gan onotherloans o o L T ¢ % I -3
lossoncoshflow hedges tansferedfromequity - (48 37)
Loss arising on swaps where hedge accounting is not apphied (255) (1023)
(45 3) {€77)
The group's hedge accounting armangements are described N note 32 1),
13 Taxation
a) Analysis of tax credit In the year
2013 2012
Before
excephional  Exceptional
tax tax Total Totd
£m £ £m £m
Curentyearat 24%(201236%) " "TT 7T T T T T T TOs71 (w@es)) 166 892
Prior years at 28% (2012 28%) 29.2) - (29.2) 87
Total cumrent tox 279 {405) {(12.6) 605
Deferedtax o e o e e e
Ongnation and reversal oftermporary diferences - cumrentyear " " © | (03 388 38577 (140)
Origination and reversal o temporary differences —prioryear - @4 - &) 49
Exceptional credt ansing from rate change. e e - oo .86 86N (691)
Total deferred tax T %7 21 (26) (782)

232 {38.4) {15.2) {17.7}

The group’s UK subsidiory companies have adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101 in the currentt year. This bas changed the
statutory accounts that form the basis for those companies’ corporation tax computations. The most significant impact of this
change 15 that certan amounts that had been taxed i previous years will now be recognised as profits and taxed in future periods.
Therefore, to prevent such items being taxed twice, the tax already paid on such iterns 1s repoyable The impact of this change was
on exceptional credtt of £40.5 million to curent tax and an exceptiond chorge of £38 8 million to deferned tax.

Current tox credits have ansen due to adjustments to prior year tax computations. In 2013 these pnmarily related to an industry
agreement over the reatment of nfrastructure income.

The exceptional deferred tax credit arises from the reduction in the rate ot which the temporary differences ore expected to reverse
from 24% to 23% On 20 March 2013 the Govem©ment announced that the main rate of corporation tax in the UK would reduce to
23% with effect from 1 Apnl 2013 with subsequent reductions per anrum to reach 20% by 1 April 2015
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13 Taxation (continued)
b) Factors offecting the tax credit in the year
The tox cradit for the year s reconciled to tax on profit at the standard rate of corporation tax m the UK belowr

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit on ordinary actvities before tax 215.2 1567
Tax gt the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 24% (2012 26%) . . 516 = 408
Tax effect of expendrture not deductible in determnining taxable profits o .41 120
Currentyear lmpactof nate chunge o i i L (_12_) __ 18
Effect of different rates in overseas pnsdictions . - .07 05
Adjustmentsinrespectof pnoryears . » . e __(336) _(38)
Exceptional deferred tax aredit ansing from rate change 367) {69 1)
Total tax credit (15.2) (177)
<) Tax credited directly to equity
In addition to the amournit credited to the mcome staternent, the followang amounts of tax have been credited directly to equity
2013 2012
£m £m
Current tax ) ) )
Toxonshare based payments N [ (1] 08
Tax on pension contnbutions In excess of profit and loss charge (15) 88
Total current tax credited to equity (23) {9.2)
Deferred tax -
Tax on ucluunul losses - ’ ) T T ”(ﬁ.ﬁf: (17.8)
Tax on cash flow hedges e [ -V (199)
Toxonshurebosedpayments S N o o - (0_3)_
Effect of change in tax rate B i i T 34 a17n
Total deferred tax credited to equity (13.2) (397)
14 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the penod
2013 2012
Pence per Pence per
share f£m share £m
Final dwvidend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011) o - 4206 999 3905 = 925
Intenm dnidend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012) 3034 722 2804 66.5
Totalordinary dvidends L 7240 1721 6709 1590
Special dividend T T T T 6300 1499 - -
Totol dividends 13540 3220 67.09 1590
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 4551

The proposed final dndend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and has not been induded as o iiabiity in these
finanoel statements.
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15 Eamings per share

Bosic earmings per share are colculated by dwding the eamings attnibutable to ordinary sharehotders by the werghted overage
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year, exduding those held in the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust
whuch are treated as cancefled.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted averoge number of ordinary shares i issue s odjusted to assume conversion of ot
patentially dilutve ordinary shares, These represent share options granted to employees where the exerase price s less than the
averoge market price of the company’s shares dunng the year.

Basic ond diuted eormings per share from conttnuing operations are calculated on the basss of profit from continuing operations
gttnbutable to the equity holders of the company

The coloutation of basic and diluted eamings per share 1s based on the following doto:

Eamings for the purpose of basic and diluted eamings per share from continuing operations

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit for the perod aitributable to the equity holders of the company 2215 1718
Number of shares
2013 2012
m m
Weighted averoge number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basiceamings pershare 2377 2370
Effect of diutve patenbalordnaryshares " T T
- share options and LTIPs 11 1.2
Weighted average number of erdinary shares for the purpose of diluted earmings per share 2388 2382
Adjusted earnings per share
2013 2012
pene perce
Adjusted basic earnings per share 989 889
Adprsted diluted eamings per share 98.4 885

Adjusted eamings per share figures are presented for continung operations. These exdude the effects of deferred tax, losses
onfinancal instruments and exceptional ttems 1n both 2013 and 2012 The directors consider that the adpusted figures provide
a useful additonal ndicator of performance. The denominators tsed in the calcutations of odjusted basic and diuted eamings
per share are the some as those used i the unadpusted figures set out cbove,

Adjustments to eamnings

The adjustments to earmings that are mode in calculoting adjusted eamings per share are as follows:

2013 2012
£m £m
‘Eommngs for the purpose of basic and diluted 2d ecmings per share from continumg cperations: L 2275 1718
Adustments for o L e e e — e e
—exceptional temsbeforetax e e - 1. S
- currestt tax related to exceptional tems ot 24% (2012 26%) N () S ¢ =)
—tosses on finanaal nstruments o 453 677
—defaredtuxenducﬂngexcepﬁonddﬂ_\g_rg_eww_____m e (4.7) ey
- exceptional tax (384) {69.1)
Eomngs for the purpose of adjusted basic and diluted earmungs per share 2350 210.7
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16 Goodwill

2013 2012

f£m £m
Cost ... o e e e e e e i e s eeremm e
S s 57 < )
Exchange adjustrents ) 14 {05)
At 31 March 692 67.8
INPOITIRN e o e e e e e s e
Atlapd e e — e e 29 = _ -
Amounts written oft (4.6) (229}
At 31 March {27.5) (229)
e BOOKVOIE e e e e e e
At 31 March 417 449

Goodwill impairment tests

Goodwill s allocated to the group's cash-generating units {CGUs} identfied according to country of operation ond business segment.
All of the group’s goodwill is in the Sevem Trent Services segment.

A summary of the goodwill allocation by CGU s presented below

2013 2012
£m £m
Water Purificaion US 271 263
ControctOperotions ~—~ " 7 o I T 4
Sewweslaly ..o 23 12
Senaces Spain ST T T o T T Y
41.7 449

The group has revewed the carrying value of goodwill for impaiment in accordance with the policy stated in note 2 m).

The vdlue in use calculations use cash flow projections based on finanao! budgets approved by manogement cavenng a

five year pertod. The key assumption underiying these budgets is revenue growth, Managerment of each CGU deterrmunes
assumptions based on past expenence, curent morket trends and expectations of future developments

Cash flows beyond Lhe five year penod are extrapalated using an estmated nomingl growth rate stated below The growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the econarmy in which the CGU operates. The assumptions used in relation
to growth rates beyond the five year period and discount rates were,

Nornnal growth rote Descount rate

2013 2012 2013 2012

% % % %

Water PurficationUS _ e . ) 33 3.5 52 8

ControctOperations T m T T T Ty 35 6.5 59
Services Italy ) ) L _ N 25 30 B2 110

Services Spain 25 3.1 8.8 B9

The weighted overage growth rotes used are consistent with the forecasts induded sn industry reports. The discount rates used

are pre-tox and reflect specific nsks relating to the CGU

As a resuit of the imparment review, the group has fully imparred the goodwill In Services Spain by £4.6 mithon. This foliows

the further deterioration of the econornic cutiook in Spam.

Changes in the growth rate outside the five year period or in the discount rate applied to the cash flows may couse a CGU's camying
value to exceed 1ts recoveroble amount. However, in the opinion of the directors, the changes in growth rate or discount rate that
would be required to reduce the recoverable amounts of Water Punfication US and Controct Operations below their camying value
are not reasonably possible and therefore sensitivity enalyss has only been provided for Services Haty.

Surpius of recoverable Change required for
amount over camyng recoverable omount to
amount equal camying amaount

Growth rate  Drscount rate

percentoge  percentoge
£m pomits pomts

Services Ttaly 111 (215) 9.8
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17 Cther intangible assets

Computer software Cther
Intemaolly Internally
generated  Puschased genercrted
£m £ £m

Tota
£m

Cost

At1Aprﬂzo11 T
Addntlons e

Exchangeadjusm'xerrts

R 7 S 1/} S Y
L 0.3““__ 97____ 20

sy -
- 02 02)

3164
120
(04)

Arl April2012

Acqusmonofbusmesses )
Dsposalof businesses
Exchange adjustments

1218 179.6 266

89 B5_ 15
R oL LT 13
o - . . a7

- 0.6 0.5

328 ‘3‘_
160
- 1 3—-
a7

11

At 31 March 2013

1278 188.7 282

3447

Arnortlsa'uon

AtTApdizon T T T
_gjr_lgrtsotlonforﬂ'teyear____ o
Disposals e .

Exchange udJush'nents

®28) @62 (125

(194 {_9.7)______ an, .

e T 02 T

- - 01

s1s)

. 60g
02
01

A1 April 2012

Amo"rtlsatlon for the year

Exceptlpnul |mpmrment
Disposal of bustnesses

Exchange adjustments

A 857 (141
_ben sy 08

e m ey eeeten samm we e e

T- T 02) ©03)

(2120}
(30 5)

05}

At 31 March 2013

(118 5} (108 3) (18.2)

(245 4)

At 31 March 2013

89 804 10.1

993

At 31 March 2012

195 83.9 12.5

1160

Other assets primanly compnse capitohsed developrment costs and patenits.
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18 Property, plant and equipment

Landond  Infrastructune plunfuﬁ Movable

buildings essets  equpment plant Total

fm £m £m £m £m
st o .
At1Aprl2011 ) o 25699 43917 32662 567 100845
Additions - o © 1068 1188 1815 45 4117
Disposals . o T Be D) es %3] (44
Exchange odjustments - - 0.8) 0.1 07
At1Apri 2012 T 26732 43104 34205 = 570 104611
Addtions R _ 1721033 2207 | 87 4599
Disposats o o I 2 I (15 VI v 1) @4 (LY
Disposal of businesses L (113) - azs) - (288)
Exchange odjustments } oD T 21 0.7 27
At 31 March 2013 2,7862 44136  3,6013 620 108631
Depreciation L o o o o
At 1 April 2011 o (8161)  (1,0035) (1,7154)  (325) (3,6575)
Chargefortheyear o ) (560)  (282) (1651) (67}  (2560)
Disposals o 33 - s 38 299
Exchange ndJﬂsﬁnEnts o i L - 03 - 03
At 1 April 2012 ] - ] _(B688) (L1217) (1,8574) (354) (3,8833)
Charge for the year _ o  (609)  (96)  (1675)  (66)  (2646)
Disposats ) S 30 -7 191 41 282
Disposal of businesses o 7 T1s o T us . - 93
Exchange adustments - 05 01 {12) o1 07
At 31 March 2013 (9187) (1,1512) (1,9952) (380) (4,103 1)
Netbookwvolue L ) L L
At 31 March 2013 18675 32624  1,606.1 240 67600
At 31 March 2012 18044 31887 15631 216 65778
The carmying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under
finance leases.
Fixed
toandand Infrostruchue plant ond Mowvoble
buildings mssets  equpment plant Total
£m mn £m fm £€mn

Netbookwolue T S -
At31 March 2013 i ) "~ 7 185§ 548 - 1733
At 31 March 2012 - 1192 763 - 1955

Property, plont and equipment mdudes £509.2 milion (2012 £372.3 millon) in respect of assets m the course of construction
for which no depreaation 1s charged
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19 Interests in joint ventures
2013 2012
£m £m
Group's share of e e e e .-
Noprcurentossets T T T e 02 T02
Curentossets . ... . A . Y .06
Current babiities T T (0.5) (06)
03 02
Group’s shareof e L o o
Tumover o . 04 .04
Operating costs S T ’ i {0.4) {04)
Profit before tax o o L _ L ) - -
Tox N - i - ~
Profit after tax - -

As ot 31 March 2013 and 2012 the joint verttures had no sigrficant contingent babilities to which the group was exposed and the
group did not have any sigrificant contingent abilities in relation to its Interests in the joint ventures. The group had no capital
commitmenits in relation to its interests in the jont ventures at 31 March 2013 or 2012.

Parhaulars af the group’s pincipal joint venture undertakings at 31 March 2013 were:

Country of Proportion of
Name Incorporation ownership interest
Cogncalimted IS o ee... GreatBuian . 0%
Jackson Water Partnership us 70%

The partnership agreennent for the Jackson Water Partnership requires that certain key deasions require the unanimous consent
of the partners and consequently the partnership has been accounted for os a jont venture.

20 Interests in associates

2013 2012

£m fm
AtlApnl i L .. 48 48
Shamofpiofls T Tt e T 2 T oon
Exchange odjustments (0.1) {03)
At 31 March 4,7 46
Group's share of L o _
Totdassets 7 7T Ll D 248 247
Total babifites o oo T (20.1) {201}

47 46
Tumover 47 17
Profit after tax 02 01

The assoaate company at 31 March 2013 was Serzio Idnco Integrato S.cp.o., 0 company incorporated in Raty

The proportion of ownership interest held by the group was 25%.

At 31 March 2013 and 2012 the assoaate company had no significant contingent liobitines to which the group was exposed.
Thegroup had no capital commitments i relation to its interests in the assodate at 31 March 2013 or 2012,

The group has given certam guarantees in respect of the assocate’s bormowings. The guarantees are imited to €11.2 million
(2012 €11 2 million). The group does not expect any liobiities that are not provided for inthese finanaial statements to arise
from these amangements.

21 Inventory
2013 012
fm fm
Inventory and work in progress 321 344
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22 Trade and other receivables

a13 012

fm £m

Trode recenables e e el . 33403063
Less provisions for impaimnent of receivables ) {(1380) (1252)
Nettradereceables . e e e e e 2967 1811
Armounts recefvable from related parties - T T T o - 02
Otheromountsrecevable  ~ e L ;s 35
Prepayments and acarued income o T o 2768 265.6
5060 4794

The carmang values of trade and other recesvables are reasonable approximations of their far values

Prepayments and accrued income indude £26.8 million (2012 £27.1 mithion) n respect of amounts due from customers for
contract work and £39.5 millon (2012, £43 1 million) which s recoverable after more than one year

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the iIndmdual business unit tevel The most significant business unit of the
group 5 Sevem Trent Water Lirnited, which contributes 82% of group humover and 80% of net trade recenables. Severn Trent Water
has a statutory obligation to provide water ond sewerage services to customess wathin its region. Therefore there is no concentration
of credit nsk with respect to its trade receivables and the credrt quality of its custorner base reflects the wealth and prasperity of all
of the commercial businesses and domestic households within its region. None of the ather business units are ndividually signiicant
to the group.

Movernents on the doubtful debts provision were as follows:

2013 2012

£m £m

At1Apnl _ o N _ 1252 985
Amounts witten off during the year R o @21) (244)
Amounts recovered dunng the year L “__ —:” i ":" :_ - “(0"3:)_
Charge for bad and doubtful debts o ) T 7331307
Exceptionai charge forbad and doubtful debts L S - s
Exchange adustments ) ) ) 18 (0.8)
At 31 March 1380 1252

Induded in trode recevables are balances with a camying amount of £176.4 millon (2012 £157.8 million) which were past due
at the reporting date but for which no speafic provision has been made as the collective impamment recorded agamst such assets
s considered to be sufficient allowonce for the risk of non-coliection of such balances.

The aged analysis of recatvables that were post due ot the reporting date but not individually mpaired is as follows:

2013 2012

£ £m

UptoS0days R - —— 494 464
o3eSdays £ N X}
l2years B . e e L2300 264
23years . S U 1}
More than 3 years 70 54
1764 157.8

Included in the allowance for doubtfid debts are provisions amounting to £25 1 million (2012 £27 5 million) aganst specific trade
recaivables, The oge of the mipaired recervables wos as follows:

2013 2012

£m fm

Upto90days e B s

91-365days e o g% _é-?.
1-2 i3 .

Sayeas T T TTIITITIT mm s e it s
More than 3 years 34 4.1

27.1 280
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23 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
£m £m
Coshatbarkendinhanrd &8 374
Short terrn deposits 355.7 2577
4036 295.1

Of the £355 7 millon {2012 £257.7 rmillion) of short term bank deposits, £26.1 million (2012: £26 9 mullion) is held as secunty
deposits for Insurance cbligations and is not available for use by the group

24 Finance leases
Obligations under finance leases are as follows.

2013 2012
£m £m
Gross obligations under finonce leases 2651 2921

Less future finance charges 635 (731
Present value of lease obligations 2016 2190

A matunty analyss of gross obligations under finance leases s presented in note 32 Net obligabons under finunce leoses fall due
as follows:

2013 2012

fm fm

Within 1 year 05 -
1-2years o _ i e 2 178
By T T T Tt o 665 &5
After more than 5 yeors 1134 1157
Induded in non-current liabilties 2011 2190
201.6 2190

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 3 to 20 years at 31 March 2013 Interest terms are set ot the meeption of the
leases Leases with capital eutstonding of £201 6 million (2012 £219.0 mullion) bear fixed mterest ot a weighted averoge rate of
54% (2012 54%) The lease obligations are secured aguinst the retated assets.

There were no contingent rents, escadation clauses or matenal renewal or purchase options, The terms of the finance leases do not
rnpose restrichion on divdend payrnents, additonal debt or further leasing.

25 Trade and other payables
2013 2012
£m £m
CGurenthabiities e e e
Todepayobles  _ T T 8749
Sooalsecurityandothertoxes o .10 70
Otherpayables e e e e e e . BT 184
Deferedmcome %2 88
Accruals 3284 328
399.0 3976
Non-current liabiles e
Todepables | | TTTTTTTTT T TG
Otherpaygbes ~ T o T T OA 04
Deferred ncome_ T T T T T Ty
Accruuls— T T o T e 138 140
4534 4110

The directors consider that the canying value of trade payables s not matenally different from therr foir values.
Accruals includes nil (2012 nil) in respect of amounts due to customers for contract work.
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26 Deferred tax
An analysis of the movernents in the deferred tax babilibes and assets recognised by the group is set out below
Accelemted Renmxent Farvalue of
financit
depreocmon obilgutlon Toxlosses  instruments Cther Total
£m £ro £m £m £m
AtlApri201z o 10919 ('{5 9) . l64) (248 (654 _ 9194
Credit toncome = R A (- Y 7 1 R X 1)
C“regng to Income arising from rate chunge (728) 28 ) = 11 {08 (69 1)
Credittoequity _ T - Ty - 09 (03 Gso)
Credit to equity arising from rate change (55) 30 - 0.7 01 17
At 1 Apri 2012 - - 9309 {742) 64)  (596) 108 _ 8015
Charge to income __ o (04) ©®% 64 01 346 342
Credit toincome unsung from rute change I = 10 14 = 12 03y  (367)
Credttoequty R 1 I 1 I ¢ 15
Charge to equity ansing from rate chonge - 21 - 12 0.1 34
At 31 March 2013 891.5 {88.2) ~ (62.7) 452 7858

Deferred tax ossets and liabilties have been offset. The offset amounts, whch are to be recovered/settled after more than
12 months, are as follows.

2013 2012
£m £m
Deferred tax osset o i A o assy (198 9)
Deferred tax labiity ) oo 9549  1,0004
785.8 8015
27 Retirement benefit schemes
a) Defined benefit pension schemes
@ Amount induded in the balance sheet ansing from the group’s obligations under defined benefit pension schemes
2013 2012
£m £m
Fair value of scherne assets N o L . . L ]
Bubes L o oo L ... .BT72 7986
Gits o L i 26 2352
Gorporate bonds _ S ) o 3609 3391
I - - e _ L w18 1057
Hedgefunds _ ~ . _ .0 . . . ... .58 56
Cash 80 260
Total far value of ossets L 17243 15572
Present value of the defined benefit cbigations - funded schemes ) (20987 (1,8944)
e @)
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - unfunded schemes - 93) (86)
Liobility recogrusad in the balance sheet (383.7)  (345.8)
Movernents in the foir value of the scherme assets were as follows:
2013 2012
£m fm
Farvolueat1April ~ i 15572 14734
Expected retum on scheme ossets e e e 8821007
Contributions from the sponsofing companies o 435 535
Cortributions from scherne members e 556
Actuarial gamns/(icsses) recognssed in the statement of comprehensvencome " 1013 (49
Berefitspad o 710 @15

Far value at 31 March 1,7243 1,5567.2
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27 Retirernent benefit schernes {continued)

o) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

() Amount induded in the balance sheet onsing from the group's obligaticns under defined beneftt pension schemes {comtinued)
Moverments m the present volue of the defined benefit obligations were os follows:

203 2012
fra £m

Present value at 1 April. 1,9030 1,7655

Svieeast | T T Tttt TTTThE T3
Pcsgtservicecost T o e e rm e "h‘m__ 04 i _——:
Interétcos"t R _ o T T Tmr T i T _92_2 ) _977_
Netcurtnilmentgmn i —;m“ o e e e m e .,.,..:‘ ; . @3
Contrbutons from scheme members” T TR T T T T gy 56
Actuano!loss&srecognlsedlnthestctementofcmnprelmxswe;ﬁc-ome o ______: N _ —" 1555_ " 1062

Benefits paid T 7o) {715
Present value at 31 March 2,108 0 1,903.0

Of which,

2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts relating to funded schemes ) 20987 1,8944

Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 93 8.6
Present value at 31 March 2,108.C 1,903 0

(ii) Armounts recogrvsed in the ncome statement in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2013 2012
fm £m

Amounts charged to operating costs

Curent service cost e L, 28 @260
Exceptionadl curtailment galn i - 231

Past service cost 04 -
232) 05

iEPé@ws!___ Y - 772}
Aourts gedted tofinancemcome T

Expected retum on scherme ossets 882 100.7
Total amount {charged}/credited to the income stoterment (27.2) 35

The octual retum on scheme assets was a gan of £189.5 milbon (2012, gain of £95.9 milion).

Actuanol gains and losses have been reported in the stotement of comprehensive income. The cumutative amount of actuanal
gains and losses recognised in the staternent of comprehensive income since the adoption of IFRS 1s a net loss of £334.3 million
{2012 net loss of £280.1 milbon).
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27 Retirernent benefit schemes {continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued}

i) Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes inthe UK, covenng the majonty of UK employees The defined
bernefit pansion schemes are funded to cover future salary and pension increases and therr assets are held in separate funds
admirstered by trustees, The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficanes. A formal actuanal
valuation of each scheme 15 carmied out on behalf of the trustees at tnennial mtervals by an independert professionally qualified
actuary Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitled to retmerment benefits calculated os o proportion
{varymng between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of their salary for the final year of emplayment with the group or,

ff hugher, the average of the highest three consecutive years’ salary in the last 10 years of employment.

The defined benefit pension schemes will close to future accrual on 31 March 2015 A new defined contribution pension schermne
has been estobbshed and members of the defined benefit pension schermes will then becorne members of the new defined
contnbution pension scherme. The existing defined contribution pension scherme will also be replaced by the new pension
armangements with effect from 1 April 2015

from 1 Aprl 2012 new ernployees have been autormabcally enrolled into this scheme and those employees who were not
members of a Severn Trent scherme were automoticatly enrolled into thes scheme from 1 April 2013

The final sdary sections of the pension schemes are dosed to new entrants ond the age profile of scherne parbicipants
15 expected to nse and hence senice costs are also expected to nse until the schemnes are dosed to future accrual.

The schemes typically expose the comparty to actuanal nsks such as market nsk, interest rate nsk and longevity nsk.
The UK defined benefit pension schermes and the date of therr tast formal ectuonal valuation are os follows.

Dote of last formal actuana valuation
Sevem Trent Pension scheme (SYP$ . .31March2010
Sevem Trent Mirror | Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2010

* The STPS 5 the lorgest of the group’s LK defined benefit schemes.

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former emnployees, whose benefits would otherwise have been
restnicted by the Finance Act 1989 eamings cop Provision for such benefits amounting to £9 3 million (2012 £8.6 midlion)

is ncluded as an unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit cbbigaton

{v} Actuarial assumphions

The major assumptions used in the vatuabion of the STPS (dlso the approximate weighted average of assurmptions used for the
valuations of di group schemes) were as follows.

2013 2012
% %
Prcemflaton B e e v 32 31
Salary increases e e e 30 36
Pension ncreases in pa_yment o T o _3_2 _ 3_L
Pens:mlnuensesmdeferrmnt T T “”M: :_“_____ _3_2_"___ 351
Es:égmtjntlgmte . m,..___:":_l ’ - CoTrr o e 44 49
—LE)ngtennmteofre_iymm o . :_—_: T e o i
Bawbes - 66 68
Glts ) i 3 33
Corporate bonds T - T R 43 49
Property e i 55 .. . 58
Hedgefunds ~ ~ ~~ " T T Tl .80 63
Cash T T mmmmmmm e e 3.1 33

The assurmption for pnce inflotron 15 denved from the: difference between the yelds onlonger tenm fixed rate gilts and on
ndex-linked gits. The discount rate s set by reference to AA rated stering 18 year corporote bonds.

The expected rate of retum on scheme assets 15 based on market expectations at the beginning of the penod for retums

over the ife of the benefit obligation. Forgl]tsar\dcorpomtebondsmeexpectedmtesofretum are based on market yelds.
For equities, property and hedge furds, a risk premum hos been odded to the gilt rate.

The mondlity assumptions are based on those used in the tnenmial valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2010 updoted by a
further mveshgation camed out i connection with the 2013 valuation, which Indicated that members' bfe expectancy had not
been as high as the previous investigation hed predicted.
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27 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (contmued)

{v) Actuanal ossumptions {contirued)

The mortality assumptions adopted at the yeor end and the lfe expectanaes ot oge 65 mpbed by the assumpbons are as foliows:
2013 2012

Mortality table used _

Tmen C T TTT T T T T eAPSSINMAL L SAPSSINMAL
wormen T CUUTTANRAL T T T SINRAL
Mortolity toble compared withstondardtable ~~ — T
swen . T T oo 1% 110%
- wormen LT - T .
FRuture emprovernent per annum a0 O5%

Rermaining lde expectancy for members cunently aged 65 (years)

-women T Ll wms

Remaining bfe expecto" ’ ncy Eg"gge _ﬂ§§”fg: mem_;_mﬁgrg "c"ﬂ?fénﬂuy ég_ed}S "(yeursw W)- )
-men 22,7 218

- women 262 258

The coteulation of the scheme liabflties & sensitive to the actuanal assurmptions and n particutar to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, price inflabon and mortality The following table summanses the estimated impact on scheme Labites ond
service cost resulting from changes to key octuarial assurmptions whilst holding ol other assumpbions constant.

Assimption Change in assumpbion Imporct on scheme bobiliies

Discountrate _ Increase/decrease by 0 1% Degease/inqease by £38.0milon

Preenfioton " incoesedeauaseby01% . Inecsaideoecssby (550 milon

Mortality Indease inlfe expectoncyby 1year  Increase by £55.0 million

In reality, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particutarly between the discount rote ond pnce inflation.
The above analysis does not toke into account the effect of these interrelationships.

(v) Effect on future cash flows

Contribution rates are set in consuitabion with the trustees for each scheme and each partiapating employer,

The avercge duration of the benefit obligabion at the end of the year is 18 years (2012: 18 years) The expected cash flows
payable from the schemes are presented in the graph below.

Image Remnoved

It s anticipated that normal contnbutions to the scherme n the year ended 31 March 2014 will be unchanged. The tnennial
vatuations for both schernes for the year ending 31 March 2013 is in progress. Pending complebion of this vatuction, future lump
sum defict contnbutions will ndude a poyment of £10 0 milion per annum in cash and a further £8 2 million per anrum through
anasset becked funding amangement.
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27 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
0) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

{vi) History of actual and expected performance of penston scheme assets and babibies

013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m fm fm £m £m
Present value of defined beneft oblgatons =~~~ 1080 (1 903 0)  {1,765.5) (1,7479) (1,3080)
Farr value of scheme assets 1743 15572 14734 13930  1,0750
Deficit in schemes (383 7) (345.8) (2921) (3549) (233 0)
Diference between actual and expected retum on scheme assets 1013 (4.5) 122 2704 (329 8)
Expenence adjustments on scheme labilities {155 5) (106 2) 1051 198 {79
b} Defined contribution pension schermes
The group alse operctes defined contnbution arrangements for certain of its UK and overseas employees In Septermber 2001,
the Severn Trent Group Pensicn Scherme {an occupational defined contribution pension schemie) was established to ensure
compliance with stakeholder legislation ond to provide the group with an altemative pension arrangement. This was dosed
to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2005 and reploced by the Severn Trent Stokeholder Pension Scherne.
The total cost charged to operatmg costs of £6.6 million (2012. £4.9 millon) represents contnbutions payoble to these schemes
by the group at rates speafied in the nules of the schemes. As at 31 March 2013, oll contnbutions (2012 100%) due inrespect
of the current reporting penod had been paid over to the schemes.
28 Provisions
Termunated
Onerous  operations
Restuctunng  Insurance controcts and disposals Other Totd
£m fm £m £m fm £m
At1Api2012 .. 18 w9 55 B4 53 440
Chargedl{releclsed] toincome stuterpent 07 50 .o 3 02 20 116
Uiisnonofprovision T T T04)  B8) @) Q0 02 (143
Disposal of subsidiaries. e - i T4 i - 01 ©3
Umwindingofdscount B - 05 . - 01 __06
Exchange differences - . Tl - 01 01
At 31 Morch 2013 22 251 24 46 74 417
2013 2012
£fm £m
Indudedm — e
Currentbabites = e B E S V)
Non-current liabilities Cormm e J Vo T 270
41,7 440

The restructunng prowvision reflects costs to be incurrad in respect of commutted restructunng programmes.

Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance comparny, is a wholly owned subsidiary of the group Provisions for dams are made
as set out in note 2. The assoaated outflows are estimated to anse over a penod of up to five years from the balance sheet date.

The onerous contract provision relates to speafic contractual liabties ether assurned wath businesses acquired or ansing In
exssting group busmnesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered in revenues. The assodiated outflows
are estrnated to ocour over a penod of 10 years from the balance sheet date.

Prowvisions reloting to terminated operations and dispasals indude amounts that 1t is probable will be pard in respect of dams
arsing from services perfonmed by these businesses and the indeminities descnbed in note 37 b).

Other provisions include provisions for dilapidations ond commeraat disputes. The assoaated outflows are esimated to arise over

o penod up to six years from the bolance sheet date
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29 Share capital
2013 2012
£m £m
Iotolissuedond fully paidshorecapital . . e -
238,365,734 ordinory shares of 87*%Asp (2012: 237,608,111) 2333 2326
Changes in shore copital were as follows
Nurnber £m
Ordinarysharesof 77hsp - S - e .
At1Apil2011 L ) . 231142534 2322
Shares issued under the Empicyee Sharesave Scherne e e e .. WW2593 04
Shares issued under the Unapproved Share Option Scheme 22,984 -
ALTAD2012 L L e ... 237g08101 2326
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 757,623 07
At 31 March 2013 238,365,734 2333
30 Share premium
2013 2012
£m £m
AtiApnl . .- - e e 838 800
Share preium ansing on issue of shares for Employee Sharesove Scheme 59 37
Share premium ansing on issue of shares for Unopproved Share Option Scheme - 01
At 31 March 897 83.8
31 Other reserves
Capttal Translaon
redempton  Infrostructure exchange Hedging
reserve reserve reserve reserve Totgl
£m £m £m £m £m
AtlApil2011 . e e e A58 3142 254 (12} 4645
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ - {14) {629} (64.3)
AtlApm2012 .. . e e e 2 196 3142 260 (941) 4002
Total comprehensive toss for the year - (314.2} 49 {18.6) {327.9)
At 31 March 2013 156.1 - 289 (112.7) 723

The capitat redemphon reserve arose on the redemption of B shares.

The infrastructure reserve arose on the group’s transthion to IFRS from restating Severn Trent Water Limited's infrastructure assets to
fair value os deermed cost. In the current year Severn Trent Water Limted has odopted the new accounting standard FRS 101, which
uses the recogruion and measurerment cntena of IFRS The infrastructure reserve has now been recognised n Severn Trent Water
Lirvited. Duning the year Severn Trent Water Limited used its infrastructure reserve to issue bonus shares, which were subsequently
cancelled These transactions result in o transfer from the infrostructure reserve to retained earnings in these finandal stoterments.
The translabon reserve arises from exchange differences on transiahon of the resutts and finanaal postson of foregn subsidianes

as well as foreign exchange differences ansing from hedges of net investment.

The hedgmng reserve anses from gains orlosses on interest rate swops taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting
provisions of [AS 39 and the transtion nules of IFRS 1

32 Financial instruments

a) Caprtal management

The group’s pnnaipal objectives i managing capital are

* to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quanturm required and lowest cost compatible with the need
for continued avatlability;

= to maintan an investment grade aredtt rating; and

« to mairtuin a flexible and sustainable balonce sheet structure.

The group seeks to achieve o balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding sources at the best

possitle economic cost.

The group does not have a specific geanng target but seeks to mantan geanng at o level consistent with its capital management

objegc;:%agdsabedabme.spec geamng torget geanm P

The group’s dividend policy s a key tool in achieving its capital manogement objectives. This policy s reviewed and updated in

tne \?wth p’Seswem Traﬁpv?llu?el’s ﬁ'\:zy year price contrg cydell)::tnd takes mto occount, nter alia, the planned investment programme,

the appropriate geanng level echieving a balance between an effident cost of capital and retaining an imvestrment grade credit

rating and delivering an attractve and sustanable retum to shareholders.
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32 Financial instruments (continued)
a) Copital manogement (continued)

The group maonitors future funding requirements ond credit market condrions io ensure continued avaiability of funds.
In July 2012 the group 1ssued a £75 million stetling denominated RPI linked bond in the retail bond rnarket. A coupon of 1.3%

& payable on the notes which are due to mature in July 2022,

In January 2013 the group sssued £500 million 3.625% Guaranteed Notes under its Euro Mediurn Term Note programme

The notes have ¢ 13 year term.,

Dunng the year, the group repaid a £208 million bank loan that wos due for repayment in July 2013,

A 10 yeor bilateral bank faclity of £100 million was drawn in the perod.
At 31 March the group’s equity and debt capital comprised the following:

2013 2012
£fm fm
Cashandshort termdeposts .. } ... A03e 2951
Bankoverdrafts ) T ) 08 04
Bankloans - ) .. san @25
Ctherloans T T (38409 (33269)
Obligations under financeleases el o o .. 018 (190)
Cross currency swaps 100.7 1359
Net debt e (4,292 3) (3,9678)
Equrtyattnbutobletome mmnersoftt‘yecompqny T - ) (833 2) (9735)
Total caprtal (5,130.5)  (4941.3)
b) Categories of financiol assets
2013 2012
£m £m
Fulrvuluethroughpqug_undluss L o L o o
Cross currency swaps - fulrvuh._le_rle_dgg “““““““““ _ . o 603 952
Forengnexchongefurward contracts - not hedge ac occounted . N o 01 -
Interest rate swaps - mthedgeugcqunted L o o o 210 37
Energy swops - coshflow hedges e e e . 25
Cross curmency swaps ~ not hedge occourted 4838 412
1311 162.6
Avalable forsale vestments comed at farvalue _ o o
Unquoted shares o T 0.1 01
Loans and recewvables (induding cash and cashequdlents) e o
Trade recenables ) T %67 181
Shorttenmdeposts T T T T 7T U 3ssy 2877
Cashatbankandinhand oo CooT T T 480 374
600 & 4762
Total finanoal assets 7316 6389
Bedosedhebdancesheetas T T e
Noncumenfassels 7T TTTT T T mm e e e
Derivatve finanddlmstruments T T . ._1301_ 1326
"Avalabie for sale finandiol assets T 01 01
130.2 132.7
Currertt assets o -
Demotne francelmsmumens 77 T o T T T 300,
Coshandcoshequndlents T T 4036 2951
Trade recenables {note 22) o T T 771967 1814
6013 506.2
7315 6389
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32 Financial instruments {continued)
c) Categones of finanocl labiles
2013 2012
£fm £m
Falrmluemroughproﬁtondloss e
Cross qumency swaps - nothedgecanm__tgg__ L B L 84 (0_5_)_
Interest rate swaps -coshflowhedges ~ (1280)  (916)
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted L i (171.8) (1944)
Energyswaps-cashflowhedges o S ¢ R )
Foresgn exchange forward controcts - not hedge occounted {0.2) {06)
(310.2)  (2885)
Otherfinancolbabiliees e
Banklogs _- o — —_~ — ~ L (7587) (83525)
Otherloans. ) o T T T T T Ee409)  (3,3269)
Obligations under firance legses ] R . oie). (2190
Bankoyegd_rp_ﬂsﬁ_"_m L . (04) (04)
Trade payobles 307 T (349)
(48323) (44337)
Total financial kabiities {51425) (4,722
Drsclosedinthe baloncesheetes " T T I
‘Nan-current habiibes o o L
Dervative financiatinstruments ~ ~ T e T(3096) (2880
Bomowings T W31 (43095)
Trade payobles 20 -
(6942.9)  (4,5975)
Current labites . L i o
Denvative finanoal instruments S o (8 __ (09
Borowngs' T T D L0 D Tlo Ll a3 @3
Trade payobles (note 25) (28.7) (349)
(1996) (124.7)
{5142.5) (4,722
d) Fair values of financial instruments

Except as disclosed below, the directors consider that the carrying armount of fmandal assets and babilises recorded n the
financial statements approximate thedr far vatues,

2013 w0

Book value Farvdlue Book value Farrvalue

£m £m fm £fm

Borkloons-omortisedcost o (7587) (1816) _ (8525)  (8583)
Otherloans (3 849_2!__(1513?_%)_ _(3_,3263) 3,936
Obligations under finance legses - amortised cost (201.6)  (2082) (3190) " (2154)

(48012) (55750)  (43984) (50099

Drscounted future cash flows re used to determine fuir values for debt. Discount rates are derved from yield curves based on
quoted interest rates and are adpusted for the group’s credit nsk.

Far valuee measurernents recognised m the balance sheet

In 2013 and 2012, dll the fair values of finanaal instruments that were measured subsequent toinial recogrution at far value,
were based on observable inputs other than quoted prices for idenbcal instruments, defined as 1evd 2’ N IFRS 7

The far vatue of nterest rate swaps s cdadoted os the present vdlue of the estimated future cosh flows estimated and discounted
based on the applicaton of yield curves denved from quoted interest rates,

Cross cumrency swops and forward exchange contracts are valued by reference to quoted forward exchange rates at the

bolance sheet date and yield curves derived from quoted mterest rates matching the motunbies of the contracts.

UCGOULOJUI RO SIUSLUDIS |DDUCUY AUDdWC)  SIUSLEI0S JDDUDUY dNQID  AUDLUAADD  MEIN3I SSAURNE  MIN0

EL0Z SILUNGO0Y PUO Ly [ONULY  J]d JuBy) WIBARS




112

Group finandial statements Notes to the group financial statements

32 Financial instruments {continued)
) Finandial risk factors

The group’s actviies expose It to a vanety of financiol nsks. market nsk (induding currency ond interest rate nsk), aedit risk,
heuidity nsk and inflation nsk. The group’s overall risk rmanagernent prograrmime addresses the unpredictobilty of finanoal
markets and seeks to reduce potentiol adverse effects on the group's finonaal performance or positicn,

Fnanaal nsks are managed by a central treasury departrent {Group Treasury) under policies approved by the board of
dwrectors Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges finandal nsks i daose cooperation with the group's operating
units. The board prowides written pnnaples for averall nsk management, os well as written policies covenng speafic areas
such as exchange rate nsk, interest rate nsk, credst risk and the use of denvative and non-dervative finanaal instruments.
Denvative fancial mstruments ore used to hedge exposure to chonges n exchange rates and mterest rotes.

The group's policy 1 that derivative finenadl instruments are not held for trading.

{i) Market risk

The principal market risk that the group 15 exposed to i fluctuations ininterest rates

Interest rate nsk

The group'’s Income and eperating cash flows are substantiolly ndependent of changes m market interest rates.

The group's Interest rate ask anses from long terrm bomowings. Bormowings 1ssued at vanoble rates expose the group to

cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to foir value mterest rate nsk. The group's policy
15 bo maintain 45% to 90% of its net debt in fixed rate instruments. At 31 March 2013 76.8% of the group's net debt was at
fixed rotes {2012 74 0%)

The group manages 1ts cash flow interest rate nsk by using floating to faced interest rate swops. Such interest rate swaps have the
economic effect of converting borrowings from flooting rates to fixed rates. Under the terms of the miterest rate swaps, the group
agrees with other parties to exchange, mainly semi-annually, the difference between fixed contract and ftoating rate intesest
rates colculated by reference to the agreed notiond prinapal amounts. The group has entered into a senes of long dated interest
rate swaps to hedge future interest payments. Economically these act to fix the mterest cost of debt within the group whichis

denominated as flooting rate, but do not achieve hedge accounting under the stnct antena of IAS 39 Thes has led 1o g £25.2 milbkon
charge (2012 charge of £80.3 million) in the ncorme statement.

Some of the group’s debt 1s Index-linked, that s its cost 15 linked to changes inthe RetoR Price Index (RPI} Thisdebt provides an
economic hedge for Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulatory Capital Violue that are also RPI bnked under ts requlatory regme

Finanaal babiliies analysed by interest rate gfter taking account of variows interest rate swaps entered into by the group

Non-interest

becrng Hoaling Fixed Index-

licbilites rate rote linked Total
2013 £m £m im fm £m
Bankloansond overdrafts .o Boos (910 @677)  (7591)
Otherloans e 12 (1952)  (25410)  (1,1035) | (3,840.9)
Fnonceleoses o ime o RO16) - (2016)
Other finanaial lobilittes 307 - - (30.7)

_B19)  (4956) (29336 (1371.2) (48323)

"Imrﬁ“pact“t-)f interest rute".f;wups not matched ogainst

speafic debt instrurnents - 3649 {364.9) - -
(319)  (130.7) (3,2985) (1,371.2) (48323)
Weighted averoge interest rate 544%

Weighted average period for which interest ssfixed (years) 113
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32 Financial instruments (continued)
) Financial risk factors {continued)

{i) Market risk (contimued)
Finandial babiities analysed by interest rate after talang account of vonous interest rate swops entered into by the group (continued)
NorHinterest

bearng Roating Fixed Index-

Tiabiibes mte rote tinked Tota
2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Barnkloansandoverdrofts o o B4  (1922) (603} (8529)
Oerloons — L2 ees2) (0631 (9974} (33269)
Finonceleases e o e T 42290 - Q130
Other financial liabilites (34.9) - - - {34.9)

e e, (361) (7656) (24743} (1,1577) (4433.7)
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched against

specific debt instruments - 4636 {463 6) - -
(361) (30200 (29379 (1,157 (44337
Weghted average interestrate OB -
Weighted average period for which interest is fixed (years) 128
Finanoal assets analysed by interest rates
Nor-niterest
beanng Fioating Fixed Index-
assets ote rote {inked Total
2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Avalable for sale finonciatassets o _......9b o - 0 - - 0
loansandrecevables T -3 e
Cash and cosh equivalents - £03.6 - - 4036
196 8 4036 - - 600.4
Nor-nterest
beanng Roating Fixed Index-
assets rate rate lmked Total
2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Avaloble for sale froncalossets - - o O
Loans and recenvables U |- . S . 2 1
Cash and cash equivalents - 295.1 - - 2951
1811 295.1 - - 4762
Interest rate sensitnity andlysis
The sensitivity of the group’s profit after tax, cash flow and equity, induding the impact on derivative financiol instruments,
to changes in interest rates at 31 Marchis as follows.
2013 2012
+10% 10% +1.0% -1.0%
£m £m £m £m
Profit after tax o 628  (744) 753  (900)
Cash flow (2.1) 21 01 01)

1128 (1306) 1217 (1431

Irfiation rate sersitvity analyss

The sensimty of the group’s profit after tax and equity to changes m inflation ot 31 March is set out in the following table
Thes anatysts excludes any rmpact on Sevem Trent Water's revenues and Regulated Coprtal Vialue, or accounting for
definad benefit pension schemes.

2013 nz

+10% -10% +1.0% -1.0%

fm £m £m £fm

Profit after tax {104) 104 (8.8) 83
Ecraty T 04) 104 (8.8) 83
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32 Anancial instruments (continued)

) Financial risk factors (continued)

() Market nsk (continued)

Exchange rate nsk

The group operates Internationally and s exposed to exchange nsk ansing from net investments in foreign operations, primarily
with respect to the US dollar and the euro However, since substanbally all of the group’s profits and net assets anse from
Severn Trent Water, which has very limited ond indirect exposure to changes nexchange rates, the sensitvity of the group’s
results to changes in exchange rates is not matenal

The group's net debt indudes foreign currency borrowings, primarily denominated in yen and eures The group’s policy 1s to
manoge the exchange nsk ansing from foreign cumency borrowings by entenng into cross currency swaps or farward contracts
with external parbies.

The group’s gross and net currency exposures arising from currency borrowings are summarised below,

Euro US dellar Jopanese yen Czedwlccno

2013 €m Sm ¥bn
Bomowmngs by currency i o (7216) (5000 (245) _(@29 )]
Cmsscun‘encyswops hedgeuccounted ) i ~ o 1es 500 _ 145 6200
Cross currency swops - not hedge occounted 700.0 - 100 -
e e - e XD =T n
Cash 39 381 - Z
Net curmency exposure 22 381 - -
furo US dollar Jcpuneseyen Czech krona
2012 €m $m (¥
[Borrowings by aurrency L . _(we _ 0O (30 0) _ (1,9700)
Cross currency swaps - hedgeuccounted ) o o .. ...189 500 200 1,9700
Cross aurrency swaps —not hedge aocounted 7000 - 100 -
e o .- - ©.n - . .I .=
Cash 5.3 221 - -
Net currency exposure 4.6 221 - -

The euro and US dollar net cash balances relate to operations in which the euro or US dollor is the functional currency
Monetary assets and licbllibes by currency, exduding functional currency

Certamn of the group’s subskfianes enter into transactions in cumencies other than the functional currency of the operation
Exchange nsks relating to such operations are not matenal but are managed centrally by Group Treasury through forward
exchange contracts to buy or sell currency

() Credit nsk

Operationally the group has no significant concentratians of credit nsk, It has pobaes in place to ersure that sales of products
are made to customers with an appropnate aedrt history, other than n Sevem Trent Water Limited, whose operating licence
obliges tt to supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not paxd. Amounts provided against occounts recesvable
and moverments on the prowision during the year are disdosed in note 22

For finandng purposes, derivative counterparties and cash transactions are bmited to hugh credit quality finanaial institutions.
The group has poliges that limit the armount of credit exposure to any one financial institubion.

Credit risk analysis

At 31 March the aggregate credit imits of authonsed counterparties and the amounts held on short term depostts were as follows:
Credit inut Arnount deposrted

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

A e e e e . 20 20 13 01
DoubleAronge .. ...A00 100 820 1
SngleArange T 4500 2724 1465

795.0 6200 355.7 2577
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32 Financial instruments (continued)
e) Finandial risk factors (continued)
(i) Credt nsk {continued)
Credit nsk analysis {continued)
The fair values of derivative ossets analysed by credit ratings of counterparties were s follows:
Denvative ossets
2013 2012
Ratmg £m £m
Double Arange 297 _4Ab
Single A range i B CooTrm T T 1014 1180
1311 1626
() Liquidity nsk

Prudent liquidty management implies maintaming sufficent cash balances and the availability of funding through on adequate
amount of comrmitted faciies and the ability to dose out market positrons Group Treasury manages kquidity and flexibility in
funding by manitoring forecast and actudl cash flows and the matunty profile of financial assets and Liabilises, and by keeping
committed credit bnes awailable

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing faclliies expiring as follows:

2013 2012

£m £m

Withn one year_ Co e e e e e e e Tl
T2yeass . .. S e e e 2T el T
25years L ter ... 5000 5000
After more than five years T o i i - 1000
5000 6000

Non-detivative finoncial instruments analysed by matunty date

The following tobles detail the group’s remaining contractuol moturity for its non-denvative net financal lrabilities.
The information presented s based on the ecrliest date on which the group can be required to pay and rapresents
the undiscounted cash flows induding pnnapal and interest.

Between Between Between Betweenten Gregter
Withnone oneandtwo twoondfive freondten ondiwenty thantwenty

yeor years years years yeors Yyeaors Totat
2013 fm £m fm fm £m fm £m
Fnonadbabitbes e e } R
Owerdreft L - B T, 04
Barklogns o ......l83 - {123 B33 (1870 (290) ... t879s)
Oterloans (194 4012) Q010 (6067 21799 (5,6779) (11,1361)
Finonceleases 46 (82 (@813 G719 1By - _ Q651
Other finandidl liabithes T T won 0 -0 T - - - (30.7)
4174) W4LT)  (24886)  (9643) (23220) (56779) (123119)

Finandiolassets e e e e e
Trode rcshebis 7T IS T I T T LT T gy
Cash and short term deposits T R036 - Z - - - 4036
6003 N - - - - 6003
Net cash flows 1829  (4517) (24B886) (9643) (23220) (56779} (11,7118)
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32 Financial instruments (continued)

) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii}) Liquudity nsk (continued)

Non-derivative finanod instrurnents analysed by maturity date (continued)

Between Between Between Between ten Greater
Withmone oneandtwo twoondfwe faeondien andtwenty thontwenty

yer years years yeors years years Totat
2012 fm Em fm £m £fm £m £m
Fnoncalbobtes e
verdraft S (1. ) B e 1., |
Bankloans  __ __(207) (846 (94 (401 _ (@39 - (9707
omeflgaﬁ ) e (3552_.1) ___g17_§ 1) _(1.9(_)8:9) - __(83_7 7)_ _(2,_2;53)“_(_6_,_(12_2:2)_ _(‘}1,4;13_)
quqgele_gggs_ o ) o ) _(_4_4) : (2_54) (1(_)36)__ ___(3}6)_ i (}2_3}) = (292.11
Other financiol liabilizes {(349) - - - - - (349)

(3225) {5851) (2,2039) (1,2134) (23818) (60227 (12,7294)

Finanowal assets

Trade recenvables ) 1811 - - - - T - s
Cash and short term deposits i 2951 - - T - - 2951

4762 - - - - - 4762
Net cash flows 1537 (5851) (2,2039) (1,2134) (23818 (60227) (122532)

Other loons include index-inked debt with maturiies up to 55 years. The pnncipal is revalued ot fixed intervals and 1s inked to
movernents m the Retall Price Index. Interest payments are made biannually based on the revalued prinapal. The pnnapal
repayment equals the revalued amount at matunty The calculabions above are based on forward inflation rates at the
balance sheet date

The group has bank loans which may become repayable in certain arcumstances following a change in controf of Severn Trent Ple.
The carmying value at 31 March 2013 of bank loans subect to such conditions wos £617 3 mullion

Dervative financial instruments analysed by matunty date

The following table detals the group’s liquidity analysis for rts dervotive finanaal instruments, The tables are bosed on the
undscounted net cashinflows/(outftows) on the derivatrve financial mstruments that settle on o net basis and the undscounted
gross inflows/{outflows) on those derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or recenvable 1s not fixed,
the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest and foreign aurrency rates derived from the
forward aurves existing at the balance sheet date Actual amounts may be significantly different from those indicated below.

Between Between Between Between ten Gregter
Withnone cneandtwo twoondfve fiveondten anditwenty thontwenty

year years years years  years years Toudk
2013 £m £m fm fm £m £m £m
Demvatvebablbes e e
Instrumentssettfedret e )
Interest rote swops  Be3) w12  (1109) (976) _ (559) R2) (41
Energy swaps 0.3} (1.5) - - - - {1.8)
(366)  (427) (1108)  (976) (559 @2 (3459)
Derivatve assets o L )
Instumetssettlednet o —
Interest rate swops 86 86 41 - - - 13
Energy swaps N U B - - 10
Instruments settied gross L — ] -
Cross currency swaps o ”
_—coshrecepts ..373 1254 685 56 407 - 8gs
- cosh payments (362)  (983)  (6002) B2 (BN - (7616)

107 357 874 24 170 - 153.2
Net cash flow (25.9) (7.0) {23.5) (95.2) {389} 22) {192.7)
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32 Financial instruments (continued)

e) Finandial risk factors {(continued)
(iif) Liquidity nsk (contmued})

Derivative financial instruments analysed by maturity date (cortirued}

Between Between Between Between ten Greater
Withmone oneondtwo twoondfive feondien andiwenty thontwenty

year years years years years years Total
2012 £m £m £m fm £m £m £m
Derivatneliabiibes - - e e e e
Instruments settlednet e .
. Interest rate swaps . (333} (394) (1106) __©@36)  (749) = (46  (3566)
Energy swops - " (04) (1.1) - - - (1.5)

(33.5) (398) (111.D (936) (749) {4 6} (3581)
Instruments settied ret . e
Interest mteswaps ) J38 32 34 - - ... _. 104
Enemyswops . L1807 -t T .28
Instruments settled gross LT L
_Cossaurencyswaps . e e e
- cash receipts o 1259 374 849 52 - 47 - 10281
- cash payments (97 8) (370) (7154} (3.7} (24 8) - (878.7)

337 43 1029 1.5 199 - 1623
Net cash flow 0.2 (355) (88) (92.1) (550) (4 6) {155.8)
fi Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative finanaal instruments to hedge exposures to changes n exchange rates and mterest rates
Hedge accounting is adopted for such instruments where the c¢ntena set out i IAS 39 are met.

(i) Farr value hedges

The group raises debt denominated in cumencdies other than stering - prinapally yen ond euro Cross currency swaps are entered
nto at the time that the debt is drown down to swap the proceeds into sterting debt beanng interest based on LIBOR in order to
mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuabons. The terms of the recevable leg of the swap dosely match the terms
of the underlying debt hence the swaps are expected to be effective hedges At the year end the amounts of cross curmency swaps
designated as far value hedges were as follows,

Notional pnncipal amount For value
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
USdollor e e e 270 Zie 87 . 16
Euro B C M4 TTua 93 78
Ven T T TUITT T ha TR T wal UED
Czech krona oo e 147 472 70 208
1245 1840 603 95.2

(i) Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swops under which it has ogreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating
nterest rate amounts calaulated on ogreed noticnal panapal amounts. Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the nsk of
changing interest rates on future cash flow exposures ansing from ssued vanable rate debt. The group also entered into o number
of interest rote contracts with future stert dates during the AMPS regulatory period. Such contracts enable the group to mibgate

the nsk of changing nterest rates on debt which s highty probable to be issued over the AMPS penod to fund Severn Trent Water’s
capitol progromme and have been accounted for as cash flow hedges. The farr volue of nterest rote swaps at the balance sheet
date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the vield aurve prevailing at the balance sheet date and the aredit risk

mherent in the contract.

The interest rate swaps pnmarily settle net on a biannual basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps s six month LIBOR.
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32 Financial Instruments (continued)

f) Hedge accounting {(continued)
{if) Cash flow hexdges (continued)
Detui'-sofﬂastmtempsﬁnt@ebeenucmun&dfnroscmhﬂnwhedg&umwmnsedbaw
Average controct fixed
irterest rate Naotional prnapal amount Far value
013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Penod to matunty % % fm £m £m £m
Less than 10 years o S - T T o T T
10-20years _ e 507% 507% | e10 w923 a80) 616
More than 20 years 0T - . I - -

507% 5.07% (491.0) {492.3) {128 0) (916)

The group has entered rto a seres of energy swaps under which it has ogreed to exchange the difference between fixed and
market prices of elecriaty at six monthly intervals up to March 2015

Details of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are sumnansed below

Averoge contract price  Notional controcted amount Rar value

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Penod to matunty £/MWh E/MWh Mah Mwh fm £m
lessthanlyear 533 488 550368 725088 06 18
1-2years o 829 533 174720 550368 (15 03
2-5 years - 629 - 174720 - (10)

556 522 725088 1,450,176 {09) 11

Changes in the amounts deferred in equity during the period relating to cash flow hedges were as follows:

2013 2012

fm £m

Fair volue {losses)/gains deferred in equity ot the start of the penod o ) (644 184
Fourvaluelossesrecognlsedlnequrtylnthepenod T T TR (8659)
Fair value gains transferred to finance costs in the period 148 3.7
Fair volue losses defemed in equity at the end of the period {88.6) (64.4)

@iii) Interest rate swaps not hedge accounted

The growp hes a number of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow hedges. Dunng the year, the group
terminated three of these swops, with a notional value of £100 0 milkon, at a cash outlay of £44.3 million

Contracts where the group pays fixed rote interest are summansed below-

Average contract fixed
mterestrate Notional principal ameunt Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Period to matunty % % £m £m £m £€m
Lessthan1 year e e e T T e T e T Lo
1298005 o e T e e T T -
25years e 632 83 2_250__~ _32_519____ (317) . B79
Soyeas . o el
10-0years . L ._..33 54 49 3136 _(996’ (11"5)
20-30 years 510 510 1250 1250 495 %19
5.59 561 564.9 663.6 (1718}  (1944)
Contracts where the group receives fixed interest are summansed below;
Avernge controct fixed
interestrate Netsonal panapal emount Far volue
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Pencd to matunty % % £m fm £m £m
Llessthan1 yeor O e
1-2 years e e e - oo S
25years 5187 "s18 2000 w000 210 237

518 518 2000 2000 210 237
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33 Share based payments

The group aperates a number of share based rernuneration schermnes for emplayees. Dunng the year, the group recognsed

total expenses of £6.8 milion (2012: £4.1 million) related to equity settled share based payment transactions.

The weighted average share price durng the penod was £16 49 (2012: £15.00)

At 31 March 2013, there were no options exercisable (2012: none) under any of the share based remuneration schermes.

a) Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs)

Under the LTIPs conditional awards of shares rmiay be mode to executive dinectors and senior staff Awards are subject to
performance conditions and continued employrment throughout the vesting penced. Awards have been made on different bases
to Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water esmployees {the LTIP) and to Sevem Trent Services enployees (the Senvices LTIP).

{) Awards outstanding

Awands made under the LTIP

In hily 2012 awards over 99,886 shares (2012: 112,446 shares) with a fair value of £15 36 (2012 £12.16) were made to

16 employees (2012 18 empioyees) under the LTIP These awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievernent of Return

on Regulcted Capital Value n excess of the level nduded n the Sevemn Trent Water AMPS business plan aver a three year

vesting penod. It has been assurmed thot performance against the LTIP non-market condibions will be 100% (2012: 100%)
Awards made under the Seraces LTIP

In July 2012 awards over 28,599 shares (2012 38,493 shares) with o far volue of £15 36 (2012 £12.16} were made to nine
employees (2012 10 employees) under the Services LTIP These awards are subject to achieverment of tumover and profit targets
mthe year ending 31 March 2015. It has been assumed that perfermance aganst the 2011 Services LTIP non-market conditions
will be 10% (2012. 75%) ond the 2012 Services LTIP will be 75%

The awards granted n July 2008 vest in three equol tranches which are subject to achievernent of tumaover and profit targets in the
years ending 31 March 2011, 2012 and 2013. It has been assumed that performance oganst the 2008 Services LTIP non-market
conditons will be 0% (2012 0%).

Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding dunng the year are set out below

Nurmber of awards

LTIP SerucesLTIP
Oulstondingot 1Aprl2011 402,701 101,387
Gonied dumng theyear T T T T Ti2446 38453
Fofeiteddunngtheyear 4946 (10329)
Lapsed dunng the year (116,714) (34,607
Quistandingat1Apl2012 o 383487 94944
Gronteddunng theyear ~_ © ... 9988  285%9
Vestedduringtheyeor T T T T T T T we02s) =
Lapsed dunng the year (116,324) (33,671)
Outstanding ot 31 Morch 2013 321024 89,872
Detalls of LTIP and Senvices LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were ¢s follows:

Nurnber of gwards
Date of grant Normdl date of vesting 2013 2012
OSSP OUY . .2 ” S =L/
Jy2008 T T T T 2013 3L1A5 31145
Jay2009 2012 - 151,786
Jy2000 - T T 3T 125568 127,727
July 2011 - 201k 129200 134,107
July 2012 015 124974 -

41089 478431
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33 Share based payments (continued)

a) Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs) {continued)

() Fair value

The share price at the grant date was £17 49 (2012, £13 98). The vesting penod commences before the gront date
Performance in thie vesting period pror to the gront date is taken nto account in deterrmining the farvalue of the award.

The fair volue of the LTIP awords made during the year wos calculated using the Black-Scholes method with the principal
assumptions set out below:

Assimphons 2013 2012
Expected volatility - SevemTret™c L 18% 2T%
Expected dvidend yield 4 3% 47%

Expected volatility is megsured over a histoncal penod, pnor to grant, commensurate with the expected term of the awards.
Volatilty has been coloulated based on histoncal share price moverments over the three years prior to the dote of the grant.

The rsk free rate is demved from yields at the gront date of gitts of similar duration to the LTIP awards.

The dividend yeld s calaulated using the expected drvadend for the year dvided by the share pnce at the date of grant.

Detdils of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out in the remuneration report on pages 67 and 68

b} Employee Sharesave Schermne

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scherme, the board may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares n the company to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Eam contract for a penod of three or five years.

() Opticns outstanding

The number of employees entering into Sharesave contracts and the number of options granted dunng the year were as follows.

2013 2012

3 yeor Syear 3yer Syeor

stheme scheme scherne scheme

Nurnber of employees L 1872 412 1610 363

Number of options granted S T T TT T 456821 144594 440930 127631
Detaiis of changes i the number of options outstanding dunng the year are set out below:

Weighted

Nurnber of

share ophons exercise price

Outstandingot1Ap2011 3128185 904p

Granted dunng the year_ o ) T 568561 1,177p

Fofeited duringtheyear 0 7T 0 (6073) © 903p

Cancelled dunngtheyear 51578  9%ulp

Bercseddurngtheyear T . (+42593) _ 928p

lopseddunngtheyear (57357  913p

Outstandingot1Api2012 384486 950p

Gunteddunngtheyear 7 T TUTTTTEOTT T a01415  1241p

Forfeited during the year e e (41494) _1005p

Cancelled durngtheyear = " o {&A590)109%

[Exerased dunng the year T (757623) _ 928p

Lapsed during the year — (7,708) _1,028p

Outstanding ot 31 March 2013 2,834,486 1,027p




121

e e e B e e s o b Setm—— e ey m —— — mh m e oo i arasit e e A W e G A [

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

33 Share bosed payments (continued)
) Employee Sharesave Scheme (continued)
(i) Options outstonding {(continued)
Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows.

Numnber of share aptions
Date of grant Normal date of exerose  Opon price 2013 2012
Jowory2005 01 759 - 52912
Jonuary2006 o 72013 823p 20468 20468
Jowary2007 O T T 20200201 Li7ap 113927 78280
Jorwary2008 T T T T T g3 1221p 74976 78488
:lgpy"qry}“(_)o_Q “““““““““““““““““ e 2012 or 2014 8!32;)__w q51_1“96p 1141447
Jonuary 2010 o 201302015 806p 774028 810413
Joruary 2011 T T T T T T T T o0lkor2006 1137p 315258 334910
Jowary2012 0 T T T T T T T T 1502017 1,177 525536 567,568
January 2013 ” 2016002018 1,241p 600,870 -

2,834,486 3,084,486

(i}} Fair vatue

The farr value of the Shoresave options gronted dunng the yeor was colculated using the Black-Scholes model.
The prinapal assumptions were gs follows:

2013 2012

3yer 5 year 3yeaxr 5 yeor

Assurnptons scherme scheme scheme scherme
E}_EegtEd“\iO\ﬁﬂ_It)f___ o L A% _MlS_%_“_ 2% 2%
Expecteddmdendyeld T T T % 41%  h6%  46%
Rskfeemte L _0{;6% 096% _053% 175%_
Falrvaluepershure 257p 239p 320p 339

Expected volotility s measured over a histoncal period, prior to grant, commensurate with the expected term of the awards,
Volatility has been calculated based on histonical share prce movements over the three years prorto the date of the grant.

The nisk frea rate is desived from yields at the grant date of gilts of sirilar duration to the Sharesove contracts.
The dividend vield is caladated using the expected dwvidend for the year divded by the share pnce at the date of grant.
The following data was used in calculating the far value of the Sharesave optons:

2013 2m2

3 year Svyear 3 yeor S yeor

scheme scheme scheme scherme

Shaepricectguuntdete 0 .., ._....1605p  1605p _ 1520p .15209
Vestingperiod (years) L e e e e e e D3

Option life {years) 35 55 35 55

) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to emnployees of group comparies. Dunng the year the board has announced
that it will make owards under the SIP based on performance against Severn Trent Water's torgets for s Key Performance
Indioators. Hligible employees will be entitted to shares to a maximurn volue of £750. It 1s expected that these awards will be
made in August 2013 SIP shares vest with the employee on the dote of grant.
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33 Share based payments {continued)

d) Share Matching Plan (SMP)

Under the Share Matchung Plan members of the Executive Committee receive matching share awards over those shares which have
been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme. Matching shares may be awaerded ot @ moximum
ratio of one matching share for every one deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting period. Dunng the year mafching
shares were awarded ot a robo of 0.5 1

Matching shares are subject to totat shareholder retum over three years meosured relative to the compomes ranked 51-150

by market capttalisation in the FISE Index {excduding investment trusts). This replicates the LTIP performance condibon for the

July 2010 award.

The number of shares subject to an award will Increase to reflect dmidends pad through the performance penod on the basis of
such notional dvidends being renvested at the then prevoiling share price Awords will normally vest s soon as the Remuneraton
Cornmittee determines that the performance condrtions have been met provided that the participant remaoins n employment at
the end of the performance penod.

(i) Awards cutstanding

Dunng the year 18,024 (2012 19,072) matching shares with a far volue of £1143 (2012 £8.84) were awarded 1o 10 employees
(2012:11).

Number of owards
Outstanding ot 1 April 2011 ) o o 25187
Grontedduringtheyear T 19072
Concelleddunngtheyear e e e e 2L 0500)
Vested dunng the year {909)
Oustandingot 1 Apl2012. . e . 81830
Gantedduingtheyear 7T CTT T T T g
Cancelled dunng the year oo (2,091)
Ouistanding at 31 March 2013 57,383
Details of share matching awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows
Number of owards
Date of grant Normal date of vesting 2013 2012
May200 June2013 20,748 22378
May201 e _Moy20l4 18611 19072
May 2012 T May 2015 18,024 -
57,383 41,450
(ii) Fair value

The fair value of the share matching awards made dunng the year was calculated using the Monte Garlo method using the
principal assumptions set out below:

Assumphions 2013 2012
Expected volatility - Sevem Trent Plc. e 18.2% 258%
Risk free rate 03% 14%

Share price volatiity is based on observations aver a histarical penod pror to the date of grort, commensurate with the expected
term of the performance period Volatility has been coleulated based on histoncal share price movernents over the three years pnor
to the grant dote,

‘The share price at the grant date was £17.01 (2012, £15.02).

Dnadends pad on the shares dunng the vesting penod are occumuloted dunng the vesting penod and released subject to the
achieverment of the performance condition, in the same manner os the underying shares. As a result a divwdend yield assumption
5 not required.
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34 Acquisitions
In July 2012 the group acquired the trade and assets of Chlonne Engineers’ CECHLO business (CEC) for cash consideration
of £1.3 millon. This transackion has been accounted for by the purchase method of aceounting.

Book value Farr valie
£m £m

Net assets acquired: e
Intnng"tieassets 13 13
Total constderation 13

Sasfledby e et e e e e ——— -
Cash 13

CEC confributed £2 1 million to revenue and ncurred a loss before tax of £0 1 million for the period between the date
of acquisiion and the balance sheet date.

35 Disposal of businesses

On 22 fune 2012 the group completed the sale of its meter installation, repair and replacement business to Enterprise Pic.
On 4 February 2013 the group disposed of Sevem Trent Anatybical Services 1o ALS Lirmited.

The net assets of the businesses ot the dates of disposal were os follows:

Net assets disposed of

Inmangbleassets  —~ T T 7T T o 0 T 08
Property, plant ond equipment . . o ) 85
Inventory T . 2
T!E‘Q‘?H’]‘!?!t’e"ece“’_@‘?& .- e e _— e o 50
Trade and other payobles . — e - 29
Borkoverdraft L o e . R X |

Costs assodiated with dispasals,

Disposafeosts " T T T T Tt T T T T 99
Prw:snonsansmgondusposd_ ______ e L “W_MZ".}

Net loss on disposal o ) (15)
Total consideration 103
Satsfiedby:

Net cash flow ansing from disposals.

Consademtlon receved in cash and cash equivatents 103

Bank overdraft disposed of 21
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36 Cash flow statement
a) Reconciliabion of operating profit 1o operating cash flows

2013 2012
f£m £m

Profit before interest and tax _ 4922 4608

Deprecgton of property,plant andequment | " 7T T T T 26k 2560
Amortsotion ofintangible assets . L 305 308
Exceptonolimpaeent .82 229
Pensionservicecost L 32 226
Curgdmentgain " " T O T om T - X
Pension contributions ] M~ o o __fa35)  (53.5)
Share based payments charge o 68 41

Prcrﬁt an ;ale of property, plant and equipment ¢ and rntongble assets __{10. 4} B : Tl.":é)

Lo&s on dispasal of businesses 15 -

Deferred ncome movemnent ~ " T T T T T T ey T @)
Provisions charged to the ncome statement 7 mné_ 168
Utilisation of prowvisions for bobiities and charges i -: o . 0 a3y my
Decreasel(no’eose)lmmentony o . - 74)
(Increuse)ldecreoselgo[nounuz[ggg_w_gp[gw T > 6.1

{Decrease}fincrease in armounts payable Q.4 50
Cashgenergted fromoperations M2 78

Tox poid {(72.5) (72.0)
Net cosh generated from pperating activities 6587 6539

b) Non-cash transactions

No odditions to property, plant and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases {2012, nil} Assets transferred
from developers were £23 0 mdlion (2012 £37 0 millicn)

¢) Exceptional cash flows
The following cash flows arose from iterns dassified as exceptional in the income statement.

2013 2012
£fm £m

Restructunng costs &4) (44

Disposaloffoedassets sl -
Customer contractucl dsputes —— e
Regulatory matters - 3.9}

Finance costs - (16.5)
10.1 (34.8)

d) Recondiliation of maverment in cash and cash equivalents to movement [n net debt

Asot RPI uplft on Other Asat

1 Apdl Farwlue  index-inked foegn  noncosh 31 March

2012 Coshflow odpsiments debt  exchange movernents 2013

£m £m im fm Em £m £m

Coshand coshequvolents 295.1 1084 - - 01 - 4036
Bank overdmits 0.4) - - - - - (0.4)
Net cosh and cosh equivalents 2947 1084 - - 01 - 4032

Bank loans 8525 1013 (7§ - - (7587)

Otherloars _ _ _(33268)  (5097) 34 G2l __ Q1 __ 255 (38409
Finonceleases =~ (2190 174 e - ]

Cross aumency swaps 1359 T " 80} - - (27.2) 1007
Net debt {3,967 §) {282 6) {4 6) (396) {10) {1.7)  (4,297.3)
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37 Contingent habilities
) Bonds and gucrantees

Group undertakings hove entered into bonds and guamntees in the norrnal course of business. Na liability 1s expected to anse in
respect of ether bonds or guarontees.

The group has given certamn guarantees n respect of the berrowings of its assoaate, Servino Idnco Integrato 5.c.p.a. The guarontees
are {imited to €11.2 milion (2012 €112 milbon) The group does not expect any lioblites that are not provided for in these finandd
statements to anse from these arrangements.

b) Disposal of subsidiaries

The group has given certan guarantees and ndemnities in relabion to disposals of businesses.

Followng a heonng in the Commenaial Court in Belgium in February 2010 i relation to o daomn from Veolio Proprete SA. {(Veoka)
ansing from the sate of Biffa Belgiumn to Vecba i 2006, the Court rendered judgerment n faveur of the group on' 1 Apnl 2010 and
dedared all of Veolkr's daims to be unfounded. Veolia has fled an appeal aganst this decision, however, the group considers that
Vealio’s case remams unfounded and no prowision has been recorded n respect of this matter.

The group s not aware of any other llability that is likety to result from these guarantees and indemmities that has not been provided
for in these financial statements

38 Service concession armangements

The group’s cortroct to provide water and waste woter services to the Minstry of Defence (MoD) 5 o service concession
arrongement under the defintion set out in IFRIC 12 The group acts as the service provider under the MoD Project Aquatrine
Packoge € - @ 25 year contract spanning 1,523 sites acrass England covenng the Easterm seo border and from Lancashire n the
North West to West Sussex on the South Coast.

Under the cortract the group mantains and upgrades the MoD infrastructure assets and provides operating serces for water and
waste woter. The mantenunce and upgrade services are charged at an agreed rate, adjusted for inflation, that s agreed in the
contract. The operating sesvices are charged under an agreed volumetne tanff,

Since the group has an unconditional nght to receive cosh N exchonge for the maintenance ond upgrode senaces, the amounts
recenvatle are recognised as a finanaal asset wathin prepayrments and accrued mcome At 31 March 2013 the amounts recervable
were £26.8 million (2012: £25.5 million),

There have been no significant changes to the amangernent dunng the year

39 Finandal and other commitments
a) Investment expenditure commitments

2013 2012
£m £m
Controcted for but not provided in the finandial statements 2249 159.8

In addition to these contractual commitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which mdude
mvestments to achieve improvernents m performance mandoted by the Director General of Water Services (Ofwat) and to provide
for growth n dermand for water and sewerage senaces.

b) Lensing commitments

At the balance sheet dote the group hod autstanding commitments for future minimum operating lease payrments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which foll due os follows:

2013 2012

£m £m
Within1year . i . .t At
2-5 years o 109 120
After more thon 5 years 70 81
226 248

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plort and equipment.
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40 Post balance sheet events

Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dedend of 45 51 pence per share Further details of this are
shown In note 14.

41 Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, bave been elrminated on consolidahon
and are not induded in this note. Transactions between the group and its ossoaates and joint ventures are disclosed below

Trading transactions

Amounts due Amounts due

Sale of goods Purchase of goods from related porbes to related parbes

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

SII 69 5.6 - - 164 161 - -

The related parties are assoaates and joint ventures in which the group has a participating interest. The retirement benefit schernes
operated by the group are considered to be related parties Details of transactions and balances with the retrement benefit
schemes are disdosed in note 27

Remuneration of key ranagement personnel
Key management personnel comprse the members of the Executive Committee dunng the year.

The remuneration of the directors is Induded within the amounts disdosed below Further information about the remuneration of
indvidual directors 1s provided in the audited port of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 57 to 70.

2013 2012
fm fm
Shorttermemployee benefits =~ o . . -1 51
Postermploymentbenefts o o _ 01 _ 05
Share based payments 10 08

71 6.4
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42 Subsidiary undertakings

Principat subsidiary undertokings

Details of the principal operating subsidianes as ot 29 May 2013 are given below. A complete list of subsidiary undertokings
rs ovaitable on request to the cormpary ond will be fled with the next Annual Retum,

All shareholdings are in ordinary shares.

All subsidhiary undertakings have been induded in the consolidation.

Courtry of Proportion of
Name incorporabon Prngpal activty ownership interest
Provision of insurance services
DerwentInsurancelimited  ~  Gibrotar toothergoupcomparves 0 100%
SevemTrentCostonlimed  GreotBritain __ Operction of water and sewerogemfrostructure ———— "60%
Severn Trent Costain Water Limrted Great Britam Hov:stomrj_gfwuterandsmvangeservrestoMoD o 8%
Sevem Trent Environmentat Seevices Inc. US Operation of woter and seweroge inflastructure __.loo%
Sevemn Trent Select tlimited ~ GreatBitain Prowision of icensed d waterand sewerngeservices _‘100%
Sevem TrentServcesLmited  GreatBriton___ Distribution of water purification products  100%
Sagml@[ﬁmmtgpﬂgq_w______ggeut&m Provuseonofregulutedmterondsewemgeservres o 100%
Manufacture and distribubon of
Severn Trent Water Punfication Inc. Us water punfication products 100%

Subsidiary awdit exemptions

Sevem TJrent Pichas issued guarantees over the liabilities of the fallowing comparies at 31 March 2013 under section 479C of the
Companies Act 2006 and therefore cuditors have nat been appointed for these entittes.

Company number
City Anatytoal Services Limited 2050581
East Worcester Water Lirmited 2757948
Gunthorpe Fields Limited 4260764
Severn Trent (W&S) Limited 3995023
Sevemn Trent Carsmgton Limited 7570384
Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Linruted 4395566
Sevemn Trent Data Portal Limited B181048
Severn Trent Draycote Limited 7681784
Severn Trent Finance Holdings Limrted 6044159
Severn Trent Finance Limited 6294618
Severn Trent Financing ond Investments Limsted 6312635
Sevem Trent Holdings Limited 5656363
Severn Trent Investrment Holdings Limited 7560050
Severn Trent Overseas Holdings Limited 2455508
Sevemn Trert Power Generation Limited 2651131
Severn Trent Property Soluhons Limnrted 8181033
Severn Trent Services Holdings Limited 4395572
Severn Trent Services Intemabional (Overseas Holdings) Limited 3125131
Sevemn Trenit Services Purifiorhon Limited 2609826
Sevemn Trent Systems Limited 2394552
Severn Trent Utility Services Limited 4125386
Severn Trent Wind Power Limited 7742177
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of
Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2013 which
compnse the company balance sheet, the company statement
of total recognised gains and losses, and the refated notes 1 to
17 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is apphicable law and United Kingdom
Accountifig Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepled
Accountig Practice).

This report 1s reade solely to the company's members, as a
body, In accondance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Comparves Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that wa might state to the company’s members those matters
wo are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
oftier purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by taw, we do not
accept of assume responsubinyto anyone other than the
commipany and the company’s miembers as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective m_;ponsibiliﬁes of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibility
statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the parent, company financial statements and for being satisfled
that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibifity is to audit
and exprgsaan opm:on on the parent company financial
statements in accordance with agipiicable law and Intemational
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland). Those standards
require us 10 cgmpiymdth the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Augitors.

Séope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit invoives obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the finariclal statements sufficient to give
reagonable assuranée-fhat the financial statements are free
material misstatesnent, whether caused by fraud or efor.
includes an assessment of: whiether the accounting
m are appropnate to the parent company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
e reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made
by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
finahcial nfomation in the annual report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. fwe
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
(n our opinion the parent company financial statements
= give a true and farr view of the state of the parent
company’s affairs as at 31 March 2013,

+  have been properly prepared n accordancs with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companes Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters pregcribed by the Companies Act
2006
In our opinion
o the part.of the Directors’ remuneration report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with Companies Act 2006; and
» the mformation given in the Directors’ report for the
financeal year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the parent company
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2008 requires us to report to you if, in
our opinion.

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit
have not been'received from branches not wisited by
us, or

s the parent company financial statements and the part
of the Direclors’ remuneration report to be audited are
not n agreement with the accounting records and
refums, or

+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, ot

» we have not received afl the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

Other matter

We have reported separately on the group financial statements
of Sevem Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Ca N\ u}._.

Canr D Hughes (Senior statutory audior)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

29 May 2013
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Company balcmce sheet

At 31 March 2013

2013 2012
Note fm £m

Non-current assets

Tongblefredossets T "0 T T2 08 02
Investrments in subsndlunes ’ 3 3,6416 3,6380

Dernvatve financal instrments 15.8 208
3,658.2 3,6590

Curent ossets

S S} S X
Denvative finonoal mstruments 01 67

Coshatbankandnhand ~ T S T T T30 T 2346

"""""""""" o ; . . W36 2856
Creditors amounts faling due within one yeclr 5 (1856) (181 0)
Net current {labilities)/assets (142 0) 104.6
Totol ossets less current liabilibes e . . 35162 37636
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 6 {163.8) (96.9)
Net assets 33524 3,666.7

Caprtal and reserves

Called up share cupitol o - 8 2333 2326
Share premium account ST 9 897 838
e R VA Y4
Retained eamings CoT Tt 9" 28750 31979
Total caprtat and reserves 9  3,3524  3,666.7

Signed on behalf of the who approved the accounts on 29 May 2013

2N, Mo

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chairman Finarce Director

Company nurnber; 2366619

Company statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 012
£m £m

(Loss)/profit for the year (6.8) 9933

Transfers to the pmﬁtandlnssaccnuntonm flow hedges 25 23

Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss account 06) 06)
Total recognised gains and losses for the year (4.9) 995.0
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Notes to the company financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies
a) Basis of accounting

The finanaial staterments have been prepared under the histoncal
st convention as modified by the revaluation of finanoa assets
and fabilities {induding denvative Instruments) at farr value

profit or loss and n occordonce with applicable United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and comply with the requirernents
of the United Kingdom Cormpanies Act 2006 {the Act).

As permitted by Sechion 408 of the Companies Act 2006,

no profit or loss accourtt is preserted for this company

The company has taken advantege of the exempbion under
Financal Reporting Standard 1 ‘Cosh flow staternents’ and
has not produced a cash flow statement.

The cornpany meets the defintion of a qualifying entity under
FRS 100 1ssued by the Finagnaal Reperting Coundl {FRC).
Accordingly, in the year ending 31 March 2014, the company
mtends to transition ta reperting under FRS 101 as issued by the
FRC. The company intends to toke advantage of the disclosure
exemptions available under that standard. Any shareholder
who objects to this proposal should write to the Compony
Secretary at the Regrstered Office (address set out on the back
of this docurment).

Severn Trent Ple 1s a partner in Sevem Trent Lirrsted Partnership
{the partnership), which is registered in Scotland. As the
partnership s induded in the Severn Trent Plc consolidated
accounts, the company has taken advantage of the exemption
conferred by Regulation 7 of The Partnership (Accounts)
Regulchons 2008 from the requirements of Regulations 4 to 6.
b} Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are induded at cost less accurmulated
depreciation. Freehold land s not depreciated. Other assets
are depreciated on a straghit line bases over therr eshmated
economic ives, which are pnncipdily as foliows.

Years
Buldings ~ =~ = . . - 30-60_
Computers and software 2-15

) Impawment of fixed assets and investments

Imparments of fixed assets and investments are colculated
as the difference between the camying values of net assets
of mcome generating units, ndudmng where oppropriate
investrents and goodwill, and their recoverable amounts.
Recoverable amount 1s defined as the higher of net realisable
value or estmated walue in use at the date the impairnent
review is undertaken, Net reahisable value represents the net
amoutit that can be generated through sale of the assats.
Value in use represents the present value of expected future
cash flows, discounted on a pre-tax basis using the estmated
cost of capital of the income generating unit. Impairment
reviews are camed out if there i an indication that an
impainment may have occumed, or where otherwase required,
to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not camed above
their estmated recoveroble amounts. Impairments are
recognised in the profit and loss account.

d) Ainancial instruments

i) Finanaal assets

Financal assets are dassified inta the following categones.

= ot fair value through profit or loss,

» heldto matunty investments;

» avaidable for sale fmondal assets; and

» loams and recenobles.

Finanadl assets at far value through profit or loss

A finanad! asset 1s dessified at far value through profit or loss

ff it 15 so designated or if it 1s dassified os *held for treding’
Denvatve finanaat assets that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments are required to be dossified as

‘held for trading’ by FRS 26. However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
described in the Financat review on page 37, & that the group
does not hold or issue denvative finondial mstruments

for trading Finanaal assets ot fair value through profit or loss
are stated at fair vatue, with any gains of losses ansing on
rermeasurement being recagnised m the profit and loss aceount.
Farr volue is determined using the methodelogy desaribed in
note 32 tothe group’s finandidl staternents.

Held to matunty investments

Where the cornpany has the ability and intent to hold an
mnvestrment to matunty the financiol asset is dassified as held
to matunty Such financiol ossets are measured at amortised
cost using the effectve interest rate method, with ary gans

or losses baing recognised 1n the profit and loss account.

Availoble for sale financial assets

After mitiol recogniion at cost (being the fair value of the
consideration paid}, investrments which are clossified as
avallable for sale are measured at far value, with gains or losses
recogrused in equity. When an ovailable for sale nvestrent is
disposed of or impaired, the gain or loss previousty recognised

In equity 1s taken to the profit and loss account. Where there is
no active market in the Investments and the fair value cannot
be measured reliably, the Investments are held ot cost.

Loans and recenables

Trade recevables, loans and other recenvables that have fixed
or determinable payments and that are not quotedinan
active market are dassified as loans and recevables.

Such ossets are measured at fair value oninttial recogrition
and are subsequently measured at amortsed cost using the
effective Interest rate method unless there s objectve
evidence that on asset is rmpatred, when 1t is wiitten down
to its recoverable amount and the irecoverable armount s
recognised as an expense.

i} Financid habiihes

Financia! babilitres are dassified as etther

« finanad batdites ot far value through profit or loss; or
« other financial lakdities,

Finanadl lebiities at fair valtse through profit or loss

A finanact iability 1s clossified ot foir value through profit or loss
if it s so designated or if it 1s dassffied as “held for trading”
Denvative financial habilrses that are not designated and
effective 0s hedgmg instruments are required to be dassified
as ‘held for trading’ by FRS 26. However, the group's Treasury
Policy, described in the Financial review on page 37, 1s that the
group does not hold or ssue denvative finanaicl nstruments
for trading. Financial babilbes ot foir vatue through profit

or loss are stated at far value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurermnent being recogrised m the profit and loss
account. Farr value 1s determined using the methodology
descnbed in note 32 in the group finandial stoternents.

Other finanoal babilmes

Other fingnaal babilities, mchuding borrowings, are inftally
recognised at for vaiue less transaction costs. After mitiol
recognition, other finanodl liabiliies are subsequently megsured
at amorbsed cost using the effective mterest rate method.
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

d) Financial instruments {continued)

i) Hedge occounting

The company uses denvative financial mstruments such as
CTOSS QuITency swaps, forward cumency contracts and interest
rate swaps to hedge its nsks assockated with foresgn currency
ard interest rate fluctuations. Such denvative Instruments are
recognised and measured in accordonce with the accounting
policies described above.

At the inception of the hedge relattonship the company
documents

» the relationship between the hedging instrurment and the
hedged itern,

» 1ts nsk managerment objectives and strategy for undertaking
hedge tronsactions, ond

- whetherthe hedging instrurment is highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows (as appropnate)
of the hedged item.

The company continues to test and document the effectveness
of the hedage on an ongoing basis.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging
instrument expires, s sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting

Far value hedges

Where aloan or borrowing ts n a farr value hedging relationship
it Is remeasured for changes in fair volue of the hedged nsk

at the balance sheet date, wath gains of losses being recognised
in the profit and loss account.

When hedge accounting s discontinued the fair value
adjustrent to the camying amount of the hedged itern

ansing from the hedged nsk is amortised to the profit and

loss account from that date.

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging mstrument that
s determined to be an effective hedge s recogrised directly m
equity and the ineffective portion m the profit and loss account.
The gains or losses deferred n equity in this way are recyded
through the profit and loss account in the same penod in wiich
the hedged underlying transacton or firm commitrrent

15 recogrsed in the profit and loss account.

When hedge accounting is discontinued any cumulative gain
or loss on the hedging instrurnent recognised in equity is kept in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to the
profit and loss account if the forecast trmsaction s no longer
expected to occur.

Hedges of net investments m foreign openations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investrents in foreign
currency denominated operations, to the extent that they

are designated and effective as net mvestment hedges,

thay are matched in equrty against changss in value of the
related assets. Any ineffectiveness is taken to the profit and
toss account.

v} Embedded denvatives

Denvatives embedded in other finanaial instruments or other
host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when thelr

nsks and characteristics are not dosely related to those of the
host controct and the host contract is not carmed at fair value,
with gains and losses reported n the profit and toss occount.

e) Investments

Investrments in subsidiary undertakings are held at
historical cost.

After initicd recognition at cost {being the fair value of the
consideration paid), mvestments which are classified as held
for trading or qwvatlable for sale are measured at fair value,

with gains or losses recogrused n profit and loss or equity
respectively. When an ovailable for sale mvestment s disposed
of orimpaired, the gain or loss previousty recognised in reserves
is taken to the profit and loss account.

f) Share based payments

The company operates @ number of equity settled share
based compersation plans for emplayees The far value of
the employee services receivad n exchange for the grant s
recognised as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant.

The fair value of employee senices 1s determined by reference
to the fair value of the awards granted coloutated using a
pricing model, exduding the impact of any non-market
conditions, The mumber of cwords expected to vest takes

into account non-market vesting conditions induding,

where appropriate, continuing employment by the group.

The charge is adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as

a result of failing to meet a non-market based condition,

g) Deferved taxation

Deferred taxation 1s fully provided for in respect of timing
differences between the treatment of certain itemns for taxation
and accountng purposes only to the extent that the company
has an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a nght

to pay less tax in the fuhure Defemred tax assets are only
recogrised to the extent that taxable profits are expected

to anse in the future Matenal defemred taxabion balances
ansing are discourtted by applying on appropriote sk free
discount rate.

h) Pensions

The company parbapates in the group’s defined benefit and
defined contnbution pension schemes, details of which are

set out in note 27 to the group financial statements.

However, the company is currentty unable to identify its share
of assets and babilities relating to the defined benefit schemes.
The pension costs charged in the profit and loss account are
the contmbubions payable to the scherme in respect of the
accourting penod in respect of the defined benefit and defined
contribution schemes.
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Company financial statements Notes to the cormpany financia! statements

2 Tangible fixed assets

Lond and
buldngs and sof Totd
fm £m £m

Cost -

Avhn 2002 T e e e e 07 008 TS
Addmors ____ .. . S SRR .- S L .Y

At 31 March 2013 01 14 1.5
Deprecation

At1Apnl2012° T R Y ©8_ (13
Chorgeforﬂweyecr L L U > ) I _m(_O‘Q

Amounts written off ) " ) 07 - 07
At 31 March 2013 - ©n 0.7
Netboghkvulue _ ) . e e
At 31 March 2013 01 0.7 08
At 31 Morch 2012 - 0.2 02

3 Investments

Subsdiory undertokings

Shores Loans Tatal
£m fm £m
At1Apri2012 - 33073 3307 __36380

Addrtlonsnoans odvanced 32 0. 4 36
At 31 March 2013 33105 3311 36416

Details of pnncipal subsidiaries of the company are given in note 42 of the group finonaa! statements
4 Debtors

A[qqunsoupdnbxgmu_p ungg'gulangs L i 45 344

Deferedtox T L L. e 79
Coporationtoxrecoverotle B
Otherdettors e e e - 03

Prepayments and accrued income ) B 04 17

5 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2013 012
fm £m

Bank overdrofts {19.6) (310}
Othet loans (22.8)

Bomowings (note 7) (196) (538

Dervetve finonadlmstruments — T T T 0D oa
Trade creditors T .- (04)
Amounts due to group undertakings 155 200)
Othercediters _ o ) €0 (59)

Accrued expenses (4.0) (Q4)
(185 6} (181.0)
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6 Creditors: amounts falling due ofter more than one year

2013 2012
£m £m

Bormowings - other loans (note 7) {12913 (59.0)

‘Amolnts doeto goupundertalngs T BO -

Demvative finanaal instrurnents (31.7) (37“9")
{163.8) (96.9)

7 Borrowings

Bomowings due within one year 196 S3.8
‘Borrowings due after more than one year

Betweenoneandtwoyears T T T T TTUSI3 T~
Betweentwoondfveyeas 216 590

After more than five years 752 -
Total bomowings due after more than one year 1291 590
1487 1128

Borrowings analysed by interest rate after taking account of interest rate swaps entered into by the compariy were,

Non-nterest

beanng foating Fixed Index
labiibes e rate linked Totol

2013 £m Em £m £m fm
Bank loans and overdrofts - 196 - - 196

e et e A e o am—r— U U VUG USOQUSUIOUUUN) COUOUI U TP R S g A At R U [EE——

Otherloans _ - 539 - 752 129.1

Other finanoalliobihes 06 - - - 06
06 __ 735 - 752 1493

Impcct of mterest rote swups -not matched ag ogmnst
spectfic debt instruments - (225.0) 2250 - -

0.6 {151 5) 2250 75.2 1493
Weighted average interest rate 632%

Wﬂmdavaagepmodforwhd\mterestlsfmed(years) 25

2012 £m £m
JBank loans ond overdrofts - 310

e s e e w6 am - [ e e oM b e [O PR o ame e

Other loans - 818 - - 8158

Cther finanaal liabilties 0.4 - - - 04

04 _ 1128 - - 1132

Impactofnterstruteswupsmtmatd'tedogam
specific debt mstruments - (2250} 2250 - -

04 (1122} 2250 - 113.2
Waighted average interest rate 632%

Weightedaverugepemdfmwfm:ntemstsﬁxed(yeurs) 3.5
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Company financial statements Notes to the company finanaal statements

7 Borrowings (continued)

The company’s borrowings are denominated in sterling, after taking account of cross currency swaps the company has entered mto.
There 15 no signficant difference between the book value and the fair value of the company’s borrowings. Fair values are bosed on
the expected future cash flows discounted using zero coupen forward interest rotes reloted to the expected tmng of payments

At the balonce sheet date the company had commutted undrawn bormowing faclties expinng as follows:

2013 2012
£m £m
Within one year L . o i T
1-2yeqrs L o o . = -
2-5 years U T 2000 2000
2000 2000
Thus fadlity s shared with Severn Trent Water Limied.
8 Share capital
2013 2012
fm £m
Totalissued and fully paid share capital o o S
238 365 734 ordinary shares of 37'7hsp (2012 237608111) ) 2333 2326
Changes in share copital were gs follows
Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97sp o . ) i L L
At1 April 2012 o _ 237608111 2326
Shares rssued under the group” s Ernployee Sharesave Scheme 757,623 07
At 31 March 2013 238,365,734 2333
9 Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ equity
Capttal
Share Hedgng  redemption Rettined
Shore caprta premiurn resene reserve egmings Total
fm fm fm £m £m £m
At1 Aprit 2011 ) ) _ 2322 800 {5.5) 1561 23595 28223
Cash flow hedges - T
- transfers to net profit I ¥ - - - s
Share based payments s e
— proceeds from shares tssued ) i - (34__ ~ 3.8 t = "-_ ______ - 82
-owordsgrontedbysupidiones -0 - - - A 41
Net profit for the year ) e - - - 993._3___“ 9933
Dmidends - - - - (1590) (159 0
At1 Aprl 2012 2326 838 (6.7 1561  3,1979  3,666.7
Cash flow hedges ~ e
-tl'GFISfEfStOFEtpfOﬁ[ _ o T Do 20 =T ____2_0__
Share based payments o S o o
-proceedsfomsharesissueed T 97 T8¢° T U7 . T 7 e
—awurdsgmntedbywbsd"ans L ::_ - - - &0 60
Net profit for the year - - TS - 69 69
‘Dindends ST o LT o T T T e T (220)
Ar31 March 2013 2333 897 (1.7) 1561 28750 33524

The capttal redermnption reserve arose on the repurchase of B shares, This is not distributable
In previous years £1,221.2 million of the company’s retained profit arose as a result of group restructunng exercises, and is nat

considered iikely to be distributable.
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10 Employee costs and auditors’ remuneration

2013 2012
fm £m
Wages and salanes R 4 L
Social securty costs .. 63 02
Pensoncosts o s s T/ T e e e n e 11 17
Total employee costs 3.1 33

For detals of directors’ remuneration see the Directors' remunenabon report on pages 57 to 70,

Fees payoble to Deloitte LLP and 1ts ossoaotes for non-audit senaces to the company are not required to be disclosed becouse
the consolidated finanoat statements are required to disdose such fees on a consolidated basis.

11 Employee numbers
Average number of employees of the company (including executive directors) dunng this year was 12 (2012: 12).
All were based in the United Kingdom.,

12 Employee share schemes

For details of employee share schermes and options granted over the shares of the company, see note 33 of the group financiat
staternents Details of the LTIP condtional awards and share options granted by the company to ts employees are set out below

The company has charged £0 1 million (2012 £0 1 million) to the profit and loss account in respect of share based payrnents.
At 31 March 2013, there were no options (2012 no options) exerasable under any of the share based remunerotion schemes,
a) Long Term Incertive Plan

Changes in the number of awards outstanding duning the year:

Number of awards
Oulstal)dn_')g_qtlepn]ml‘l o o L o __12,_80_1
Grunteddun_[tg:m_ejé"gf__”-_ __ _ L L 3702
Lapsed during the year (3,566)
Outstanding at 1 April 2012 129
Gronteddunngtheyear L 3,35
Vesteddunngtheyear L, 1,36)
Lapsed during the year (3,447)
QOutstanding at 31 March 2013 11,480
Awurds outstanding at 31 March were

Number of awards
Date of grant Normal date of vestng 2013 2012
ay2005 T Twm L
wyo0” DT TT T T T T T T T Tk hen
July 2013 e e e e e e e e e 20043702 3,702
July 2012 2015 3356 -

11,480 12,937
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Company financial statements Notes to the company finanaal statements

12 Employee share schemes {continued)
b) Employee Sharesave Scheme
Changes in the nurnber of options outstanding dunng the year:

Welghted
average
Number of exercise price
share options )
Outstandingat1Apm2012 o i .. 4385 856
Gunteddumgtheyeor T I T T T am
Forfetted duning the year L I . 862
Transferred from other group comparves o 1301 996
Exercised dunng the year o T Gla 1221
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 . i i . _ ... 583 _ 918
Granted dunng the year o o . o o153 12#‘1"
‘Exergsed during the year I . . 256h) 930
Transferred during the year i 4,858 947
Qutstanding at 31 March 2013 10,082 951
Options outstanding at 31 March were;
Number of share options
Date of gront Normal date of vesting  Opbon pnce 2013 2012
January 2009 o B 20120r20%4  862p 4352 3,723
January2010 T '20130r2015  806p 1,602 898
Jowary201x T 2014002016 1137 949 316
January2012 o ] 2015002017 11770 1,247 916
January 2013 20160r2018  1,241p 1,932 -
10,082 5,853
¢) Share Matching Plan
Changes in the number of awards outstanding dunng the year:
Number of ownrds
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2011 U, =L
Granted dunng the yeor 360
Outstandmgat 1 April 2012 i _ o i 817
Granted during the yeor o T 348
Qutstanding at 31 March 2013 1,165
Avwards outstanding at 31 March were:
Number of owards
Date of award Normal date of vesting 2013 2012
my2010__ I = E R A
May 2011 e e o e e et i o e e o May2034 360 360
May 2012 May 2015 348 -
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13 Pensions

The compary partinpates in two defined benefit pension schemes {being the Severn Trent Pension Scheme and the
Sevemn Trent Miror Image Pension Scherme). In addition, the company operates an unfunded arrangement for certain
employees whose eamings are above the pension cap.

Further detafls regarding the operation of these schemes are givenin note 27 of the group finanoal stotements

The company s cumently unable to identdy its share of the underlying assets and babilities from the group’s defined
benefit pension schemes, and hence it continues to account for the cost of contributions as if the scheme was a defined
contnbution pension scheme

The pension charge for the year was £1 1 million (2012 £1 7 million).

14 Related party transactions

The compary has taken advantage of the exemnption under FRS 8 ‘Related Party Dsdosures’ and not dsdlosed detalls
of transactiens with other undertakings within the Sevemn Trent group of companies

The retirement benefit schemes operated by the company are considered to be related parties. Detalls of transactions
and balances with the retrerment benefit schernes are disdosed innote 13,

15 Contingent liabilties
a) Bonds and guarantees

The company hgs entered into bonds and guarantees in the normoal course of business. No liabiites are expected
to arse n respect of etther the bonds or guarantees.

b) Bark offset ormengements
The bankmg amangements of the company operate on o poaled bass with certain of its subsidiary undertakings.

Under these amangerments parbiapating companies guarantee each other’s overdrawn balances to the extent
of ther credt batarces, which can be offset against balonces of parbapating companies.

16 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the baard of directors has proposed a findl dvidend of 45 51 pence per share.

17 Dividends

For details of the dividends paid in the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 see note 14 1n the
group finanaal staterments,
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Five year summary

03 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m Em £m £m

Turnover . 18316 17706 17113 1,7039 16422

Profit before nterest, toxand exceptiondltems ™ 4980 TSs2 5191 5571 4699
Netexcepfiondt femsbeforetax T TTeB 609 | e1e]  an (89

Net interest paydble before lossés on finanad instruments and
‘exceptional finarce costs (2319) (2290) (2306) _ (2188}  (1964)

Llossesonfinancalinstruments ———— ~ " " "7 TTTGS3)”  §77)  (142) 457 (870

Results of associates and jont ventures 0.2 01 01 01 -
Profit before toxation 2152 1567 2530 3344 1676

Current taxation 126 605 | @21) o )

Deferred taxation 26 782 536 @22y (1715
Profit after taxation 23064 1764 2745 2515 (56 0}

Netassetsempﬁlo‘yet_i_ . o L o
Fixed assets 6926_1 __ 67436 66353 65161 61659

Other net liabities exdudlng net debt, retirement benefit obhgancm,
prowsions and deferred tax 2738y  (3413)  (3204)  (3172) (2872

Demvatve finanodl nstruments' " T T T0m98)  2618)  (905)(1253)  (1539)
Retirerment benefit obligation L Mm_____(383 7)_ (3458) (2921)  (3%49)  (2330)
Provsions for liabiities and charges and deferredtax ~ —(8275) (8455 _ (9574) (1,0103)  (9880)

Net assets held for sale - - - - 4.2
51413 494912 49749 47084 45120

F;nuncedby _ o B _
Called up share capital . .. Lo .33 w6 2312 nB16 0

Reserves 599.9 - 8676 7081 -7151
Total shareholders’ fu funds 8332 9735 1,0998 940.7 9461

Noncontolingmierests 108 79 63 & €0

Net debt? 4,297 3 39678 38688 37614 35599
51413 49492 49749 47084 45120

Eammgspershare-pence T "Tg53” " Tyrs T 1152 1056 (246)
Adjusted earmings per share ~ pence " =®s 889 1056 1218 927
Dividends per share (excluding speaal dvidend) - pence 758 701 651 723 §_‘£§_
_DMden_dgmef(befOteexceptlondrtemsunddeféFr—ed—@_ 13 13 16 11 1A
Gearing ———— 836%  802% _ 778%  79%%  789%

Ordsmryshompnceuﬂl March - pence o 17120 15640 16460 1,1950 9900
Averoge number of ofemployes

ettt % e v - . - R J— - ST P ——

—Sevemn Tren Water 5 45! 458 5 162 5 237 5,686 5624

"~ COther 2763 2889 3045 3,102 314":.

1 Exdudes mstruments hedgng foresgn cumency debt
1 Indudes nstrumesits hedgng foreagn qurrency debt.
Geanng has been colculated as net debt divided by the surn of equity and net debt,
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Severn Trent Water — delivering against our KPls

201213 2011112
Bass  KPI Outtum  Outtum
MAT 1 Lost tmeincidents per 100,000 tus worked? 02 03
QR 2 Employee mothabon %2 - TR %
MAT3  DWIReportable events (Coteqory345)° R -
MAT 4 SeviceIncertve Mechansm-Qualtatve®  — ~ 436 : 396
MAT'S_ Sevce Incentive Mechansm - Quanbtatives ~ L M1 2
MAT 6 Unplanned nterruptions (per 1,000 properties) T ST e 1112
MAT 7  Serwceabilty Waste o o .18 . Wa
MA'[B Serviceabilty Water _ B . ) N . _wa
AT 9 Copex-fm . . ... M8 na
ACT 10 Debtordays“_ R o . L o N 3@7“_“ 358
ACT 11 Opex-fm S ) T 567 S48
MAT_llf“Eollu'aon nodents (Catego:)ry123)3'6 T o N 3%__ 458
ACT 13 Sewage treatment works - faling consent brrits % T T 7T Toss% | 254%
ACT 14 SeaumtyofSupply® o } 39 = R
_MﬁT_lS Net energy use GWh* i oo T ) "§“90 679
MLE 16 1eokage MU/d ~ Post MLE> T T I 441 464
Notes 1. Actuat performance across all KPI 3 Drinking Water Inspectorate -
MAT = Moving Annual Total employees and agency staff. Reportoble events. This KPI measures
OR=Quarterty Review 2 Performance bosedonannual suvey e number of significant events
MLE=MummLém Likelihood Estrmate of all employees, reported to the DW1
ACT = Year End Actuat KPI 7 Serviceability Waste Water.

3 xﬁﬁﬂ"ﬁéﬁ"&ﬁ,ﬁuﬁ Y Thskelsan indg based on pollutions
figures are provisiondl at ths stogeas  and blockages (both measures of how
the Annuol Requiatary Performance our below ground assets are performing)
Report will be published on the and sewoge treatrnent works
Severn Trent Water webstte non compliance {above ground).
(wwwistwatercouk) on 17 June 2013 The index reflects 6 50:50 wexghting

4 Actual performance based wholyor 10 bove and below ground assets.
partially on intemal dota. KPT BSmn‘ceqblrtyWater This ndexis

5. Actual performance bosed on mmwﬂ;ﬂ?&ﬁ
audited UK GAAP finoncial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (both measures of how our below

' ground assets are performing) and
6. Measure for calendar year to Water Tragtment Works (ATW)
31 December 2012. non mrn‘mm (OtXJVE grwnm

The index reflects a 50-50 wesghting
for above and below ground ossets.
KPI 14 Secunty of Supply Index (SOSD isa
measure of how resilient we are against
periods of drought. The index calculation

1s based upon the difference between the
water available to use and the volume of

wuter we expect to put mnto our supply
network in order to meet demand.
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The company’s registrar s Equinti Limited. Equinuti's rnaim
resporssibities indude mantaining the shareholder regrster and
making dividend payments.

If you have any quertes relating to your Sevem Trent Pic
shareholding you shoutd contact Equin

Regstrar contact detalls;

Online; www.shareview.co.uk from here, youwill be able
to securely emnail Equint with your query

Telephone: 0871 384 2967*

Overseas enquiries: +44 121 415 7044

Text phone: 0871 384 2255*

By post: Equinitr, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Laritng,
West Sussex, BNG9 6DA

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit our website

www severntrent.com which provides.

« company news and information,

= links to our operational businesses’ websites,

+ details of our governance arangements;

« detalls of our strateqy;

* details of the group’s business models and business plan; and

* the company’s approach to operating responsibly

There 5 also a dedicated Investors section onthe website which

contains up to date information for shareholders indudmng:

= comprehensive share pree information;

* financial results;

* a hstory of dividend payment dates and omounts; and

* access to aurrent and histoncal shareholder documents such
as the annuat report and accounts.

Electronic communications
By regrstenng to receive shareholder documentation from
Sevemn Trent Plc electronically shorehwolders can benefit from
being cbleto,
» view the annud report and accounts on the day it
& published;
* recenve an emal dert when shareholder documents
are gvailable;
+ cast their AGM vote electronically; and
* manage their shareholding quickly and securely ontine,
through Shareview.
Electromc shareholder commurucations also enable the
comparty to reduce its mpoct on the environment and
benefit from savings assaciated with reduced printing and
maiing costs.
For further information and to register for electronic shareholder
communicabons visit www.shareview.co uk

+

Dividend payments

Bank mandates

Drvidends can be paid auterratically into your bank or building

s00ety oocourt.

The benefits of domg this cre you will

* receive deared funds in your bank account on the
payment date,

+ avoid postal delays; and

= remove the risk of your cheques getting lost in the post.

To take advantage of this service o for further details contact

Equmit or visit www.shareview.co.uk

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gves shareholders the optran of using therr dvidend
payments to buy more Severn Trent Plc shares instead of
recemingeash If you would tke to participate in the DRIP,
please request a dwidend remvestment plan mandate from
Equirvt: Finanaial Senvices Limrted.

Telephone: 0871 384 2268
Telephone number from cutside the UK: +44 121 415 7173

Buying ond selling shares in the UK

If youwsh to buy or sell certrficated Severn Trent Ple shares, you
will need to use ¢ stockbroker or high street bank whuch trades
on the London Stock Exchange There are also mony telephone
and online senvices available to you. If you are selling, you will
need to present your share certificate at the trme of sole
Detafls of low cost deding serwces moy be obtained from
www.shareview co uk or 0845 603 7037+

Share price information

Shareholdess can find share pnce information on our website
and in most nattonal newspapers, For areal time buying or
selling price, you should contoct o stockbroker.

Shareholder security

Share froud indudes scams where investors are called and

offered shares that often tum out to be worthiess or non-

exstent, or an inflated pnce for shares they own. These calls

corme from fraudsters operating n ‘boller rvoms’ that are mostly

based abroad.

If you are offered unsoliated investrent advice, discounted

shares, a premiurmn pice for shares you own, or free company or

research reports, you should toke these steps before handing

Over ary money:

* get the norne of the person and organisation contacting you;

+ check the Ainancial Senvices Register {the Regsster) ot
www.feaorg.uk to ensure they are authorised;

* use the detolls on the Register to contact the fi

+ call the Financicl Conduct Authority (FCA) Consurmrer Helpline
on D800 111 6768 if there are no contact details on the
Register or you ore told they are out of dote;

+ search the FCA list of unauthonsed fims ond indivduals to
avoid doing business with, and

+ remermber, if it sounds too good to be true, it probably s,

* Colls cost 8 pence mmmmmm@mmmmmmmm
"mww&m.mb#mhmﬂﬂmmfwm




Other information Information for shareholders

If yout use an unauthonsed firm to buy or sell shares or other
imvestrments, you will not have occess to the Financial
Ombudsman Service or Financial Senaces Compensation
Schemne if thmgs go wrong.

If you are approached about a share scam you shauld tell the
FCA using the share fraud reporting form at www fra.org.uk,
where you can find out about the latest investment scams.
You can also call the Consumer Helplne on 0800 111 6768

You shoutd contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 f you have
already paid money to share fraudsters.

Unsolicited mail

The comparny is legally obliged to make its share reguster
available to the general public. Consequently some
sharehalders may receive unsolicited moil I you wish to bt
the amount of unsoliated mail you receive please contact:
The Mafing Preference Service (MPS), Freepost 29 LON20771,
london WI1E OZT

Altematwely, register onfine at www mpsonline org uk or

call the MPS Reqgistrabion ine on 0845 703 4599.
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American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Sevemn Trent has a sponsored Level 1 American Depositary
Receipt (ADR) programime, for whuch The Bank of New York
Mellon acts os Depostary.

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on OTCQX which 5 the
prermier tier of the US over-the-counter (OTC) market under
the syrmbol STRNY (it 1s not bisted on a US stock exchange).
Each ADR represents 1 Sevem Trent ordinary share.

If you have any enguines regarding Sevem Trent ADRs please
contact The Bank of New York Mellon.

By post: The Bank of New York Mellon, PO Box 358516,
Fittsburgh, PA 15252 - 8516, US

By telephone:

1 colling from within the US. (888) 263 2377 (toll-free)
If colling from cutside the US: +1 201 680 6825

By email. shrrelabons@bnymelion com
Website: www.bmymellon.comishareowner

Financial catendor
Ex dvidend date - final dividend ~ o 18 June 2013
Record date to be eligible for the final dvdend _ e 21 Jne 2013
AGM T e T 171uly2013
Iterim management statement - Q1 Yearendng 31 March 2014 " T T 17 nty2013°
Final dvidend payment date o _ 261uly2013 |
Jntenm resuits cnnouncemert - Year ending 31 March 2014 i o 26 Novemnber 2013
Ex dvidend date - intenm dnvidend ) T T T 4December 2013
Record dotetobe eligble for theintenm dwdend C T T T 6December 2013
Interim dividend payment date "10 January 2014
All dates are indicative and may be subject to change.
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Logo removed

Severn Trent Plc
Registered office
Sevemn Trent Centre
2 St John's Street
Coventry

vz

Tel 02477 715000
www.severmntrent.com

Registered in England and Wales
Registration number: 2366619




